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SUBJECT: PETITION FOR THE DETERMINATION OF MARKET OPERATION FEE 
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR 2022-23.  

Central Power Purchasing Agency (Guarantee) Limited is company ftinctioning as the 

market operator to carry out market operation in accordance with the National Electric Power 

Regulatory Authority (Market Operator Registration, Standards and Procedure) Rule, 2015 (the 

'Market Rules"), since June 2015. Under the Rule-3 of the National Electric Power Regulatory 

Authority (Market Operator Registration, Standards and Procedure) Rules, 2015, the National 

Electric Power Regulatory Authority has granted a certificate of registration to Central Power 

Purchasing Agency (Guarantee) Limited. The registration number of the Market Operator is 

MOR!01/2018. 

As per Clause 11.1.1 of the Commercial Code, CPPA-G requires to file the petition of Market 

Operation Fee to Authority for the Determination. In this connection please find the documents as 

follows; 

a. Market Operation Fee 2022-23. 
b. Affidavit. 
c. Certified True Copy of Board Resolution. 

It is further submitted that the Authority has not yet finalized the mechanism for determination of 

petition filing fee. The instant petition is being filed without the fee and the same would be paid 

once it is decided by the Authority. 

No. CPPA-G/2022/CEO/ 

The Registrar NEPRA 
NEPRA Tower, 
Islamabad. 
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1. Petitioner Information 

1.1. NAME 

Central Power Purchasing Agency (Guarantee) Limited ("CPPA-G"). 

1.2. ADDRESS 

Shaheen Plaza, Plot No. 73-West, Fazal-e-Haq Road, Blue Area, lslamabad. 

1.3. COMPANY DETAILS 

Central Power Purchasing Agency (Guarantee) Limited CPPA-G (the "Petitioner" or the "Company") is a 

company incorporated under the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984 (now the Companies Act, 2017) 

and granted a Corporate Universal Identification No. 0068608 by the Security Exchange Commission of 

Pakistan in the year 2009. 

In exercise of the powers conferred by Rule-3 of the National Electric Power Regulatory Authority 

(Market Operator Registration, Standards and Procedure) Rules, 2015, the National Electric Power 

Regulatory Authority has granted a certificate of registration to Central Power Purchasing Agency 

(Guarantee) Limited. The registration number of the Market Operator is MOR/01/2018. 

1.4. THE BOARD'S AUTHORIZATION 

Board of Directors (BoD) authorized the Chief Executive Officer and other senior officers to sign, file and 

represent this petition and to submit any additional document/information to the Authority (Annex-A). 

1.5. COMPANY REPRESENTATIVES 

The following officers of CPPA-G have been authorized by the Board of CPPA-G to sign, file and represent 

this petition and to submit any additional documents/information to the Authority: 

• Mr. Rihan Akhtar, Chief Executive Officer / Chief Financial Officer 

• Mr. Majid Khan, Chief Legal Officer 

• Mr. MubasherAhmad, Chief Technical Officer 

• Mr. Arshad Minhas, Chief Information Officer 

• Mr. Rehan Hameed, Chief HR & Admin Officer 



2. GROUNDS AND FACTS FORMING BASIS OF THIS PETITION 

I. In order to meet with the expenses for discharging the functions and plans mentioned, the 

petitioner requires revenue to be approvea y tne iutnority in terms of ciause -e-)nd (j)  of 

subsection 2 of Section 7 of the NEPRA Act and chapter 11 of the Commercial Code. 

ii. Chapter 11 of the Commercial Code deals with the Market Operation Fee and clause 11.1.1 

provides that the existing cost associated with CPPA of NTDC shall be separated from the Use of 

System Charge (the "UoSC") of NTDC. In this manner, the UoSC of NTDC, already being paid by the 

exWAPDA DISCOs, shall be reduced by the amount corresponding to the expenses of CPPA-G. 

iii. As per the broad guidelines laid down in Chapter 11 of the Commercial Code, the general heads of 

costs associated with the operations of the petitioner have been provided in clause 11.1.2. 

iv. In terms of these broad guidelines the petitioner is also permitted to include any cost estimate for 

future capital expenditure required for compliance with current and future provisions contained in 

the Commercial Code. 

v. As such the total revenue requirement of the petitioner shall comprise of the existing cost 

separated from the UoSC of NTDC, additional operating cost in view of present operations 

independent of NTDC and the Capital cost required for effective operations of CPPA-G for 

compliance with present and future requirements of the Market Rules and Commercial Code shall 

form the Market Operation Fee of the petitioner. 

vi. These guidelines also provide that the formula for calculating the Market Operation Fee shall be 

similar to the formula of calculating the UoSC i.e., dividing total determined cost by peak demand 

of ex-WAPDA DISCOs. 

vii. Rule-9 (1) (d) of the NEPRA Market Operator (Registration, Standards and Procedure) Rules, 2015 

(the "Market Rules") state that "In addition to the obligations in the applicable documents, each 

market participant shall have the obligation to pay the market operation fee as per Commercial 

Code and such other charges as specified by the Authority." 

viii. Rule 4 (7) of the NEPRA (Tariff Standards and Procedures) Rules, 1998 state that 'The Authority 

may, while admitting a petition, allow the immediate application of the proposed tariff subject to 

an order for refund for the protection of consumers, or for satisfactory security to be provided for 

refund, while the proceedings are pending before the Authority" 
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The Multiyear Petition for FY 2021-22 to 2023-24 was filed with the Authority for MOF determination 

however Authority in its decision dated March 18, 2022 stated that since the registration of CPPA-G 

is only till May 2023, and going forward, MO function would be separated from CPPA-G existing 

function, the Authority has decided to approve the instant taritftition only for a perioa of one year 

i.e. FY 2021-22 and CPPA-G may file Multi Year Tariff Petition once both CPPA-G and MO functions 

are legally separated and a clear break-up of costs and manpower is available for both organizations. 

In accordance with the revenue requirement of the company, CPPA-G is hereby submitting a petition 

for Market Operation Fee for FY 2022-23. This petition is filed in line with Rule 3 of the Tariff 

Standards & Procedure Rules, 1998 and in line with the Chapter 11 of the Commercial Code approved 

by Authority. 

3. COMPLIANCE OF THE AUTHORITY DIRECTIONS 

Directions Compliance Status 

1. 

Submit its Power Purchase Price (PPP) 

forecast report updated every year after 

accounting for upcoming addition in 

Generation, changes in demand pattern, and 

other variables like exchange rate parity, 

changes in local! US CPls, LIBOR, KIBOR etc., 

for consideration of the Authority. 

PPP report is developed on the basis of 

IGCEP every year. Currently the 

development of IGCEP (model) is under 

process by NTDC. Once the model is 

finalized, CPPA will develop and submit the 

ppp report to NEPRA within 14 days as per 

its regulatory mandate. However, latest 

Power Purchase Price (PPP) forecast report 

for FY 2022-30 has been shared with 

Authority vide letter no CPPA- 

G/2021/CEO/8340 dated June 14, 2021. 

2 

Continue sharing its HR development 

progress at the end of each quarter and also 

include therein department wise detail of 

employees, functions being performed by 

each department and plans for future 

recruitment, if any, along-with their 

proposed iDs etc. in its HR Report. 

Attached at Annex-B 

Provide composition of its Board of Directors, 

with brief profile of each member, basis of 
Attached at Annex-C 
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their appointment and their roles and 

responsibilities. 

Ensure provision of monthly information to 

the Authority in terms of energy generated, 

energy, capacity & other charges, and 

payments etc. as per the prescribed formats, 

already shared with the Petitioner, including 

Fuel stocks held at each Power Plant on 

monthly basis. CPPA-G is also directed to 

4. submit complete details for deviation from 

EMO, showing hourly generation along-with 

financial impact for deviation from EMO, a'id 

the reasons thereof, in coordination with 

NPCC, and within the given timelines, as also 

directed by the Authority in the monthly FCA 

decisions, while submitting the monthly FCA 

data. 

Information is regularly being shared with 

the Authority. 

Provide party wise breakup of amounts 

payable & receivables as per the following 

format on monthly basis, in addition to the 

5.
monthly circular debt reporting as per the 

agreed formats. 

Latest party wise amount payable & 

receivables is attached at Annex-D 

and D-1. 

However, the circular debt reporting 

Information is regularly being shared with 

the Authority. 

Regarding Market Transactions Audit as 

required under clause 11.2 of the 

Commercial Code, the Authority again directs 

CPPA-G to carry out the Market Transactional 

Audit according to the Authority's approved 

ToRs and submit the report to the Authority. 

Similarly, compliance status on "Terms and 

Conditions" of its Registration be also 

submitted. 

Market Transactions are covered under 

the annual statutory audit of CPPA-G by 

the independent external A-rated 

chartered accountant audit firm. The audit 

report on the financial statements for the 

year ended June 30, 2021, has been shared 

with the Authority. 

Compliance status on Terms and 

Conditions of its registration is Attached at 

Annex-E. 

Provide the detail of all legal cases against 
Attached at Annex-F. 

various entities including international 
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arbitrations and their status and also those 

cases filed against NEPRA 

Since CPPA-G is engaged in the local and 

international legal proceedings in its 

capacity as agent of DISCOs, the litigation 

To make these legal costs as part of its charges incurred by CPPA-G on behalf of 

8. market operation fees and the same shall be DISCOs are passed on to DISCOs in 

got approved from the Authority, accordance with the Article Ill of the Power 

Procurement Agency Agreement (PPAA) 

between CPPA-G and DISCOs dated June 

03, 2015. 

Provide monthly report regarding LDs 

imposed on Generation Companies along 

with reasons specifically pursuant to Section Attached at Annex-G 

9.4(b)(iii) and (c) of the 2002 Power Policy 

PPAs. 

CPPA-G is regularly sharing audited 

10. 
Ensure submission of its Audited financial financial reports of every year. However 

reports of every year in time. the latest audited financial is attached on 

Annex-H. 

11. 
The Authority directs to complete the Currently 0.6 million old record is uploaded 

digitization of old record at the earliest. and the remaining is under process. 

The Authority again directs CPPA to resolve A draft UoSC/ T&T losses agreement has 

the issue completely by June 30, 2022 and been prepared and negotiated with NTDC. 

12. 
updated the status of Authority regarding Delay is on part of NTDC. NTDC has yet to 

finalization the agreement of T&T Losses execute Connection Agreements with the 

with NTDCL. DISCOs & K-Electric prior to the execution 

of the UoSC I T&T losses agreement. 

4. REVENUE REQUIREMENT FOR CPPA-G: 

CPPA-G revenue requirement includes General Establishment Cost (Pay & Allowances, Employees 

benefits, Training & Capacity Building, & Consultancy), Administration Cost (rent rate & taxes, power 

light & water, office supplies, telephone internet fax & postage, travelling expenses, subscription & 

periodicals, presentation & entertainment, professional fee & BoD fee, outsourcing services, 

advertisement & publications expenses, Office running expenses (outsourced services), corporate social 

responsibilities, NEPRA Petition Fee and NEPRA Licenses Fee, Insurance, Finance Charges, Office 
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Operation, Services & Maintenance (R&M General, IT Services, R&M, Support Fee, etc.) and Capital 

Expenditure (Capex) etc. 

The head wise breakup of the revenue requirement for FY 2022-23 along with comparison of Authority 

allowed revenue requirement for FY 2021-22 is given below. 

Description FY 2O21-22 

Allowed 

General Establishment Costs 592 

Administrative Costs 237 

Office Operations, Services & Maintenance 55 

Insurance 1 

Finance Charges 1 

Total O&M Cost L 885 

CAPEX 155 

Min.Rs 

FY 2022-23 

Requested 

1,018 

254 

75 

5 

3 

1,355 

46 

The requested revenue requirement for FY 2022-23 is discussed in detail in the ensuing paragraphs. 

4.1. GENERAL ESTABLISHMENT COST 

This head mainly includes cost associated with pay & allowances and other benefits of the employees, 

training and capacity building cost and cost regarding consultancy services. 

The pay and allowances for FY 2022-23 are proposed at Rs. 709 million as compared to the last year 

allowed figure of Rs. 444 million. Following are the reasons behind the increase in overall pay and 

allowances cost: 

a) Annual Increment Policy for CPPA-G Employees has been approved by the Board, according to 

which employees are entitled to annual increment based on individual performance as well as 

annual inflation compensation envisaged by average inflation rate forthe immediately preceding 

year as published by Pakistan Bureau of Statistics. Therefore, the budgeted figure is inclusive of 

annual CPI rate of 11.04% declared by the Pakistan Bureau of Statistics in April 2022. Keeping in 
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view the above and "pay scales structure" already approved by the Authority, Pay & Allowances 

for FY 2022-23 are projected after applying 16% increase over "Actual Basis pay" of each 

employee for the period of April 2022. 

b) Board of CPPA-G has also approved "Promotion / Upgradation Policy" for CPPA-G employees 

upon certain performance and experience-based criteria, therefore, as per the approved 

promotion policy, increase in pay and allowances for all 43 employees becoming eligible in the 

next financial year, has also been considered. 

c) The pay and allowances expenses pertaining to MOD department of CPPA-G were not included 

in the cost allowed bythe Authority in FY 2021-22 which is also included in the requested amount. 

Keeping in view the above and the fact that these expenses cater essential business needs of the 

company, the Authority is requested to approve the same in the head of Pay & Allowance of the 

Employees for FY 2022-23. 

The employees benefits head consist of provident fund, gratuity, earned leave, EOBI, GLI, medical 

benefits, overtime and Honoraria. Corresponding with the pay and allowances cost, the employees' 

benefits are projected around Rs. 133 million for FY 2022-23 keeping in view the "pay scales structure" 

already approved by the Authority. 

The Authority is requested to approve the same in the employee benefits for FY 2022-23. 

The HR department planned to fill 55 vacant positions in various departments against the vacant posts 

of 141. Out of which, 53 positions are to be filled in CPPAG & 02 positions are planned to be filled in MO 

Function. The HR department is of the view that the proposed hiring is in process and would be 

completed soon, therefore the projected pay and allowance are based on 3 to 6 months salaries. 

In this regard the Authority is requested to allow the cost to be incurred against the proposed new hiring 

in the budget of FY 2022-23. 

Training and Capacity Building: - This head mainly includes cost associated with the following training 

courses planned for the employees of CPPA-G and other sector stakeholders in FY 2022-23: 

- Workshops and seminars pertaining to competitive market development 

Process automation and Oracle suits trainings 

Market trainings and capacity building of all stakeholders in the power sector are essential for effective 

implementation of CTBCM and operations of the competitive market. Market Operators across the globe 
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are mandated to offer and organize market-related trainings to the market stakeholders. For this 

purpose, Power Sector School of Excellence has been established in collaboration with Lahore University 

of Management Sciences (LUMS) which will roll out various trainings among the participants nominated 

by power sector organizations. i-urthermore, corporate trainings (indudirig soil skiistIdIiiI) Ce 

envisaged for CPPA employees. 

Keeping in view the above and future training needs an amount of Rs. 40 million for FY 2022-23 are 

proposed in the head of training and capacity building. The required budget would be utilized for CPPA-

G MOD, finance, technical, HR& Admin, P&P, Legal, IT, Company Secretary, Internal Audit departments. 

The Authority is requested to approve an amount of Rs. 40 million for FY 2022-23 under the head of 

training & capacity building. 

Consuitancy Services: - This head includes outsourcing of the following consultants: 

- Business Process Re-engineering Consultant required for developing, reviewing and improving the 

Corporate Business Processes of the Market Operator and specialized business functions of the MO 

as per the defined standards. The consultant will also lead and manage the automation of 

ERP/Backoffice functions for CPPA-G and MO. Contract executed with consultant and detailed ToRs 

including key responsibilities and deliverables are attached as Annex-I. 

Consultant on Code & Registration matters required for working on the details of Market Model so 

that it is aligned with the Regulatory Codes, Rules and Regulations of Pakistan. Contract executed 

with consultant and detailed ToRs including key responsibilities and deliverables are attached as 

Annex-J. 

- Recruitment Firms for the transparency in Hiring process of CPPA-G. Agreements are attached as 

Annex-K 

- Tax Consultant for tax compliance, advisory and income / sales tax appeal services. 

- Legal Consultant to support the Market implementation process. 

In this regard the Authority is requested to allow Rs. 17 million to be incurred against the consultancy 

services for FY 2022-23. 

The Authority is requested to approve an amount of Rs. 1,018 million under the head of General 

Establishment Cost. 
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Furthermore, it is delineated that the requested expenses are legitimate and essential in nature and any 

reduction in these expenses would result in disruption of operational activities of CPPA-G. Hence the 

Authority is also requested to allow the actualization of expenditure of General Establishment Cost based 

on tne auaittfinanctaktatements of FY 2022-23when dVdTtdbtU.  

4.2. ADMINISTRATIVE COST 

The sub heads of administrative expenses are rent, rate & taxes, power light & water, telephone internet 

fax & Postage, office supplies and other expenses, subscription of periodicals, presentation & 

entertainment, travelling expenses, BOD and auditor fees, Office running expenses (outsourced services) 

advertisement & publication expenses, corporate social responsibilities (CSR), NEPRA Petition fee and 

NEPRA Licenses fee. 

The head wise breakup of the cost proposed for FY 2022-23 is as follows: 

Description 

MIn.Rs 

FY 2O2122FY 202223: 

Allowed Requested 

Rent Rate & Taxes,Power Light etc, Communication 117 134 

Office Running Exp.(outsourced services) 8; 12 

Other Expenses 111 108 

Tota! 237 254 

The administrative expenses are proposed at Rs. 254 million for FY 2022-23 as compared with the last 

year allowed figure of Rs. 237 million for FY 2021-22. This has increase of 7% over the last year allowed 

administrative cost. The proposed administrative cost along with justifications is discussed in detail in 

the following paragraphs. 

Rent, Rate & Taxes: - These expenses are mainly related to the building rent, being paid for occupying 

office space to carry out CPPA-G operations. As per the rent agreement, there is annual increase of 5% 

over the last year rent, which becomes on average an increase of Rs. 5 million for each financial year. 

The CPPA-G also hold around 2,325 and 1,589 square feet space in WAPDA house and sunny view Lahore 

respectively. The estimated rent of these offices is around Rs. 4.7 million. The total amount required in 

this head are Rs. 101 million for FY 2022-23. 
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Power light and Water: - In order to estimate expense in this head, the electricity bill of building is 

assumed @ 1.4 million p/rn for each financial year, keeping in view the current and expected increase in 

electricity prices and the average historical bill of almost of same size NEPRA building. Water 

expenditures are assumed around Rs. 0.54 million and after consolidating the above figures an amount 

01 Ks. 1/ million br i-Y LULZ-3 are proposea in tii heaaf power, itght andwater. 

Communication: - This head mainly includes the following expenses: 

- Internet bandwidth and email services amounting to Rs. 6 million (Agreement attached as Annex-L). 

- Reimbursement of employees' official cell phone connection as per approved limits amounting to 

Rs. 7 million. 

- Telephone charges & courier for external commination amounting to Rs. 2 million. 

Keeping in view the historical trend of these expenses an amount of Rs. 16 million is proposed for FY 

2022-23. 

Office Running Expenses (Outsourcing Services): - This head includes following services: 

Hired Services of Security Company (14 Security Guards + 1 Supervisor) an amount of Rs. 6 

million (Contract executed). 

- Hired Services for Outsourcing of Manpower (09 Supporting Staff for reception, daycare and 

other support staff) an amount of Rs. 3 million (Contract executed). 

Other services include Mineral water, Newspapers, TV Cable, Cleaning & Pest Control Service, / 

Elevator Services, Generator services, Record Shifting, Glass Window Cleaning Services and etc 

an amount of Rs. 2.7 million. 

Keeping in view the recent hike in prices, the budget in this head is proposed to be Rs. 12 million for FY 

2022-23. 

Others Administrative Expenses: - The remaining head of administrative expense consists of office 

supplies, entertainment, travelling, advertisement and publications, BOD and auditor fee, corporate 

social responsibilities (CSR), NEPRA Petition Fee, NEPRA Licenses Fee and other expenses. 

Other administrative expenses are proposed at Rs. 108 million for FY 2022-23 against the last year 

allowed figure of Rs. 111 million for FY 2021-22. This has a decrease of 3% for FY 2022-23 over the last 

year. Further more, in compliance to the Authority direction that "Licensee shall submit a report on social 

investment for five years immediately preceding the day these guidelines come into force." CPPAG have 
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initiated to prepare five-year plan on social investment as directed by Authority, tentatively budget of 

Rs. 5 Million has been incorporated to plan and execute the social investment activities. The Authority 

is requested to allow an amount of Rs. 108 million for FY 2022-23 in the head of other administrative 

cost. 

In this regard, the Authority is requested to approve an amount of Rs. 254 million under the head of 

Administrative Cost. 

Furthermore, it is delineated that the requested expenses are legitimate and essential in nature and any 

reduction in these expenses would result in disruption of operational activities of CPPA-G. Hence the 

Authority is also requested to allow the actualization of expenditure of Administrative Cost based on the 

audited financial statements of FY 2022-23 when available. 

4.3. INSURANCE, FINANCIAL CHARGES 

The insurance expenses of Rs. 5 million for FY 2022-23 is proposed for its various assets like office cars, 

l.T equipment and other assets. Financial charges are normal bank charges, charged by banks against 

total transactions / projected payments of over Rs. 1.5 trillion. Finance charges of Rs. 3 million is 

proposed for FY 2022-23. 

Furthermore, it is delineated that the requested expenses are legitimate and essential in nature and any 

reduction in these expenses would result in disruption of operational activities of CPPA-G. Hence the 

Authority is also requested to allow the actualization of expenditure of Insurance and Financial Charges 

based on the audited financial statements of FY 2022-23 when available. 

4.4. OFFICE OPERATIONS, SERVICES & MAINTENANCE 

The office operations, services & maintenance expenses consist of repair and maintenance of furniture, 

office equipment, vehicle, IT equipment's, l.T services, software's and running cost of vehicle inclusive 

of fuel, oil and lubricants, annual fee and token taxes. 

The head wise breakup of the cost proposed for FY 2022-23 is as follows. 
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Mm. Rs 

   

Description FY 202 1-22 

Allowed 

FY 2022-23 

Requested 

R&M General 6 7 

I.TServices 40 45 

Vehicle Running Cost POL, Repair & Licenses 9 23 

total 55 75 

The office Operations, Services & Maintenance expenses are proposed an amount of Rs. 75 million for 

FY 2022-23, against the last year allowed amount of Rs. 55 miiiion. The proposed Office operation, 

services & maintenance cost along with justifications is discussed in detail in the following paragraphs. 

Repair & Maintenance General:- This head includes R&M of office furniture, Sanitary & Plumbing 

works, Carpentry items, Electrical Fixtures, Gardening, R&M Lifts and other misc items. These 

expenditures mainly relate to office day to day operations. The budget in this head is proposed to be Rs. 

7 million for FY 2022-23. R&M general expenses are projected after applying 13% average inflation for 

the month of April-22 (Pakistan Bureau of Statistics) over last year allowed amount in this head. 

The Authority is requested to allow an amount of Rs. 7 million for FY 2022-23. 

IT Services:- This head mainly include the cost related to software licenses fee, l.T support, l.T services 

and l.T repair & maintenance. These expenses represent annual subscriptions and licence renewal of 

already executed contacts. The head wise breakup of the cost proposed for FY 2022-23 is as follows. 

Project Description Detail Description Amount Recurrence 

Office 365 E3 

Renewal'+20 Additional 

Licenses 

Annual Subscription of 180 Microsoft Office 

365 E3 Licenses (SharePoint ECM, MS 

Office, MS Teams, One Drive etc) 

11,160,258 Recurring 

Adobe CC 2019 Package 

(Creative Cloud for 

Teams - Annual 

Subscription) Renewal 

Annual Subscription to be paid for Graphics 

Designing Tools. 
263,000 Recurring 

Geny Motion (Emulator 
for Android 

Emulator for Android Development -Annual 

Subscription) Renewal 
35,000 Recurring 
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Development -Annual 

Subscription) Renewal 

JQStoiieAccowit_ 
It is required to publish lOS apps that will be 
. . 35,000 Recurring 

aeveioping Tor u-'PA-G 

Robotic Automation - 

Automation of Data 

Collection Direct from 

the Source 

Version Control System Annual 

Subscription 
2,500,000 First time 

Trello Task Management Annual Subscription of Trello 360,000 Recurring 

Power Apps and Power 

Automate Licenses 

Provide professional developers the tools 

to seamlessly extend app capabilities with 

Azure Functions and custom connectors to 

proprietary or on-premises systems. 

500,000 Recurring 

Board PAC Subscription 
Annual Subscription for Board Pac used for 

conducting Board meetings Electronically 
900,000 Recurring 

SMS Gateway 

SMS Gateway for sending System 

Generated Notification of Critical Events to 

Internal and External Stake holders of 

CP PA-G 

300,000 First time 

Dark Trace (Enterprise 

Immune System) License 

renewal 

Renewal - To provide Darktrace's 

Enterprise Immune System in CPPA 

network which determines what data is 

collected and what information Darktrace 

is able to use for analysis. Using machine 

learning and Al algorithms, 

Darktrace creates a unique behavioral 

model that defines this 'pattern of life' for 

each device, user and the network as a 

whole. 

4,000,000 Recurring 

Info Blox (Blox One DDI 

& Threat Defence 

Advanced) 

Renewal - To protect corporate users and 

roaming users of CPPA from DNS based 

Threat Vectors and to provide the visibility 

what is going on DNS protocol. 

4,400,000 Recurring 

Oracle EBS Applications 

License (Renewal of 

Licensing) 

ERP Phase-i licensing fee 1,300,000 Recurring 
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Oracle EBS Applications 

License (Renewal of 

Licensing) 

Renewal of FMC (Maintenance and 

support) required after 30-06-2022 
500,000 Recurring 

Solar Wind NPM License Renewal 

nt hc hjn_ciqnp d_hptp c ri_CP P- 

Solar Wind NPM License 

Renewal 

G and M/s Techaccess for 3 years starting 

from 18th April 2021. Next renewal is due 

on 19th April 2023 followed by yearly 

payment to M/S Techaccess 

500,000 Recurring 

Renewal of Symantec 

Antivirus Endpoint 

Protection (200 Clients) 

with Techaccess 

Symantec Antivirus Endpoint Protection 

(200 Clients) License Renewal agreement 

has been signed between CPPA-G and M/s 

Techaccess for 3 years starting from 12th 

May 2021. Next renewal is due on 11th May 

2023 followed by yearly payment to M/S 

Techaccess 

420,000 Recurring 

CPPA-ZOOM Account 

Yearly Renewal. License 

Expiry Date: Sep 15, 

2021 and one New 

Account 

ZOOM account has been purchased which 

is due for renewal on Sep 15, 2022. 
90,000 Recurring 

Website 

(Hosting+Domain Name 

Registration) 

CPPA-G's Web hosting and domain 

Registration Fee needs to be paid annually 
250,000 Recurring 

Annual ERP Phase-I 

(Renewal of Support) 
Annual Support Renewal of ERP Phase -! 5,500,000 Recurring 

Maintenance & Support 

Services for IT 

Infrastructure including 

Data Centre & backup 

Site Facilities (with 

parts)- Renewal of 

agreement with Fortek 

Maintenance & Support Services for IT 

Infrastructure including Data Centre & 

backup Site Facilities (with parts) 

agreement has been signed between CPPA-

G and M/s Fortek for Three Agreement 

Years (Started from 16-02-2021) the 

support contract is required for continuity 

of business in case of any fault occurred in 

datacenter facility. 

1,753,169 Recurring 

The Maintenance & 

Renewal of Support 
Services and Service 

Level Agreement 

The Maintenance & Renewal of Support 

Services and Service Level Agreement (SLA) 

For Servers, Storage Software and Network 

Equipment (with parts)-agreement has 

7,250,565 Recurring 
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(SLA) For Servers, 

Storage Software and 

Network Equipment 

(with parts)-Renewal of 

agreernentwith CNS-F 

been signed between CPPA-G and M/s CNS-

E for three years starting from 2020. The 

support contract is required for continuity 

of business in case of any fault occurred in 

critical IT equipment (Servers, Storage 

Network Equipment etc) 

Old Record Migration to 

ECM 

Digitization of Old Historical Record to ECM 

to Vendor 
2,500,000 Recurring 

Misc. (External Hard 

Disk, USB Flash, & Data 

Recovery services etc, 

Laptops computers, 

Printers Repair Not 

covered under warranty) 

Purchase of Misc IT Equipment or Services 

like External Hard Disk, USB Flash , & Data 

Recovery services etc, Laptops computers, 

Printers Repair which Not covered under 

warranty 

500,000 Recurring 

The Authority is requested to allow an amount of Rs. 45 million for FY 2022-23 in the head of l.T Services. 

Vehicle Running Cost:- This head includes the following: 

- Vehicle running cost (Petrol! Diesel, Oil lubricant & etc) amounting Rs. 20 million. The major increase 

in this head is due to recent hike as well as expected future increase (almost double) in Petrol Oil 

Lubricant prices in international and local market. 

- Vehicle R&M and vehicle registration & annual token tax an amounting Rs. 3 million which almost 

last year allowed amount. 

The Authority is requested to allow an amount of Rs. 23 million for FY 2022-23 in the head of vehicle 

running cost. 

In view of above, the Authority is requested to approve an amount of Rs. 75 million for FY 2022-23 in the 

head of office operations, services & maintenance. 

Furthermore, it is delineated that the requested expenses are legitimate and essential in nature and any 

reduction in these expenses would result in disruption of operational activities of CPPA-G. Hence the 

Authority is also requested to allow the actualization of expenditure of Office Operations, Services and 

Maintenance based on the audited financial statements of FY 2022-23 when available. 

4.5. CAPITAL. EXPENDITURE 

The requirement of capital expenditure for FY 2022-23 have been estimated in the following categories. 
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V' IT Equipment & Software 

" New Vehicle 

" Other Capex 

i ne summary of CAPLA requiredfor YZ022231sgiven asbeiow. 

Mm. Rs. 

Description 

IT Equipment & Software 

New Vehicle 

Other Capex 

Total 

FY 2021-22 FY 2022-23 

Allowed Requested 

155 23 

ITEquipment and Software's: - - The proposed expenses in the head of IT equipment mainly include Rs. 

15 million for Purchase of new laptops. This amount is required for the new hiring staff as well as 

replacement of old laptop as per the IT policy, Rs. 5 million for Server! Storage expansion for Primary 

and Backup Site (to meet the growing requirement of CPPA-G Primary and Backup Site new machines 

for new applications and SAN storage to cater the growing data needs), Rs. 2 million for Datacenter 

Expansion Phase-I (For enabling CTBCM and ensuring 24/7 availability of services the current CPPA-G's 

Datacenter space is being used at its full capacity. Therefore, new datacenter facility is required to be 

established), Rs. 0.5 million for Window Server Licenses (CPPA critical IT services hosted on the newly 

procured server, will run on Window Server machines and require Window servers licenses for security 

and smooth operations), Rs. 0.2 million for Network Expansion including Parts and Labor (New 

data/telephony points expansion to accommodate new employees), and Rs. 0.5 million for Contingent 

Hardware/Software (In Order to Cater Unforeseen Compulsory Procurement of IT Hardware /Software). 

The Authority is requested to approve an amount of Rs. 23 million for FY 2022-23 in the head of IT 

software's and equipment. 

New Vehicle:- It is highlighted that 16 numbers of vehicles have been returned to NTDC as per BoD 

direction. After handing over of these 16 no of vehicles, it will be difficult to manage the transportation 

with the current fleet of vehicles. Transportation include routine staff local! outstation movement, visits 

of technical staff on power testing and other departments outstation visits on trainings/seminars etc. 
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Therefore, it is proposed to procure One Hiace (Hi-roof) 09-11 passengers for covering all official 

outstation tours i.e., group visits of technical staff to different power plants for testing and group visits 

of MOD departments for seminars I trainings etc and one car (1000 CC) for Admin Pool duty in order to 

run transport tunctions more eTticientiy andffectiveiy. 

The Authority is requested to approve an amount of Rs. 10 million for FY 2022-23 in the head of New 

Vehicle. 

Other Capex:- :- In other capex, procurement of installation of new racks at basement for record after 

scanning, installation of new workstations and furniture for new incumbent, Creative Agency, Gym Setup 

in CPPA-G Building, additional camera installation in buikling. The Authority is requested to approve an 

amount of Rs. 12.5 million for FY 2022-23 the head of other capex. 

Furthermore, it is delineated that the requested expenses are legitimate and essential in nature and any 

reduction in these expenses would result in disruption of operational activities of CPPA-G. Hence the 

Authority is also requested to allow the actualization of Capital Expenditure based on the audited 

financial statements of FY 2022-23 when available. 

5. RECOVERABLE LOAN ADVANCES TO EMPLOYEES 

As a practice in public sector organizations, CPPAG tends to take care of employees' personal and social 

needs so that they are in a better position to perform their duties. Employee loan has been approved by 

BoD of CPPAG, to be disbursed upon certain eligibility criteria in terms of service tenure with CPPAG. 

Hence, the budget amount in employee loan has been incorporated for eligible employees only and will 

be recoverable in equal monthly installments. As per the approved SOP, the loan amount shall not 

exceed the terminal benefits available on the date of loan disbursement. 

The Authority is requested to allow an amount of Rs. 240 million for FY 2022-23 for employee's loan. 

6. PRIOR YEAR ADJUSTMENT (PYA) 

The Authority has determined the MOF of Rs. 2.71/kW/M to meet the revenue requirement of the 

company for FY 2021-22. Therefore, the working of the PYA for FY 2021-22 (Projected) has been 

computed based on the determination of FY 2021-22 and Projected expenditure of CPPA-G for FY 2021-

22 as tabulated below: 
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FY 2021-22 Mm. Rs. 

Determined 864 

Recovery (Projected) 620 

243 

O&M Expenses 

Determined 885 

Projected 1,023 138 

Capex 

Determined 155 

Projected 42 (113) 

Other Income 

Determined 269 

Projected 416 (147) 

Tax 

Determined 46.9 

Actual 46.6 (0.31) 

PriorYearsTax 95.0 95 

PVA for FY2021-22 216 

It is brought to consideration of the Authority that, a reconciliation has been carried out for the tax 

amount paid by CPPA-G as per audited financial statements / tax returns and tax allowed by the NEPRA 

in Market Operation Fee during the period of FY 2016 to 2021. As per the reconciliation, it is observed 

that CPPA-G has paid an amount of Rs. 391 million however NEPRA has allowed Rs. 297 million, in the 

aforesaid period. The difference of Rs. 95 million is yet to be allowed by the Authority. The reconciliation 

and documentary evidence of Tax paid by CPPA-G for said period is already submitted to the Authority's 

perusal vide letter no. CPPA-G/2021/CFO/27839-40 dated: December 10, 2021. 

In view of the above submissions, the Authority is requested to allow Rs. 216 million in the head of Prior 

Year Adjustment. 

7. COST ACTUALIZATION 

It is delineated that CPPA-G, operating under Market Rules 2015 and performing various functions on 

behalf of DISCOs, meets its operational needs solely through Market Operation Fee determined by the 

Authority. It is important to highlight that around 70% of total Market Operation Fee represents salaries 

& wages of employees and remaining 30% portion covers other essential needs like office rent for space 

requirement, travelling, office supplies, repair & maintenance, BoD & Audit Fee, NEPRA Licensing Fee, IT 

services, capex etc. It is submitted to the Authority that all expenditures are essential and legitimate in 

nature and by applying a cut on the actual expenditure, CPPAG will be unable to run its operational 
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activities smoothly. Hence the Authority is requested to allow the actualization of expenditure based on 

the audited financial statements of FY 2022-23 when available. 

8. PROPOSED MARKET OPERATORS FEE 

In view of the above discussion the summary of the revenue requirement is produced hereunder. 

Mln.Rs. 

Description FY 22 FY 23 

Allowed Requested 

General Establishment Costs 
Administrative Costs 
Office Operations, Services& Maintenance 
Insurance 
Finance Charges - 
CAPEX 
Total Revenue Requirement 
Less: other income 

ftccv J.9!n_Yc 
Tax 
PYA 

592 
237 
55 

2 

155 
1,040 
(269) 

- - 
47 

45 

1,Q18 
254 
75 

3.  
46 

1,400 
(416) 

70 
216 

Revenue Requirement + CAPEX 864 1,510 

Avg MDI 26,535 27,588 

Rs. /kW/M 2.71 4.56 

9. PRAYERS: 

(I) In view of above submissions, it is respectfully prayed that the Authority may approve the Market 

Operation Fee @ Rs.4.56 per kW / Month for FY 2022-23. 

(ii) Authority is requested to allow the actualization of expenditure based on the audited financial 

statements of FY 2022-23 when available. 

(iii) Authority may allow immediate application of above-mentioned Market Operations Fee under 

Sub-Rule 7 of Rule 4 of the NEPRA (Tariff Standards and Procedures) Rules, 1998. 

(iv) Any other relief which the Authority deems fit in the circumstances may also be granted. 

(Ru an Ak 'ar 

Chief Executive efficer CPPA-G' 
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Chief Executive Officer 

The Affidavit of the Chief Executive Officer of the Petitioner, in Support of the Application 

AFFIDAVIT  

I, Rihan AkJitar, ChJef Executive Officer, Central Power Purchasing Agency (Guarantee) Limited 

being duly authorized representative / attorney of Central Power Purchasing Agency (Guarantee) 

Limited, hereby soiemnJy affirm and declare that the contents of the accompanying petition including 

all Supporting documents are true and correct to the best of my knowledge and belief and that nothing 

has been concealed. I also affirm that all further documentations to be provided by me in connection 

with the accompanying petition shall be true to the best of my knowledge and belief. 
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Central Power Purchasing Agency Guarantee Limited 
A Company of Government of Pakistan 

No. CPPA-G/2022/CS/2--- 9 01St June 2022 

BOARD RESOLUTION IX (1)/82 

APPROVAL OF BUDGET AND MARKET OPERATION FEE FOR FY 2022-23  

A meeting of Board of Directors of Central Power Purchasing Agency (Guarantee) Limited (CPPA-G) 
was held on 26th  May 2022 at CPPA-G office, Shaheen Plaza, 73-west, Fazal-e-l-Iaq Road, Blue Area 
Islarnabad. 

The Board of Directors of Central Power Purchasing Agency Guarantee Limited (CPPA-G) has decided 
as follows; 

I. Resolved that "CPPA-G Biiilget of Rs. 1,400 million aizd Rs. 240 in/I/ion for Employees 
Loan for FY 2022-23 and its utilization us per Book of Fijiancuil Powers, he il/li! IS 

I, ereby appro veil. 

II. Further resolved f/sat "C/s/cf Executive Officer be and is hereby authorized for re-
appropriation of O&M and C'apital expenditure budget among I/s dr respective sub-
heads on the recommendations of FO GPPA-G, (IS per allowed li/flit of Book of 
Financial Powers." 

Furtli er resolved 1/i at "GPPA - G management he and is hereby ui/owed to file approved 
Budget, after incorporating impact of Prior Year Adjustment, as C'PPA-G's Market 
Operation Fee for FY 2022-23, before National Electric Power Regulatory Authority 
(NEPRA)." 

IV. Further resolved that "CEO CPPA-G be and is hereby authorized to: 

i. s/gil individually or jointly the necessary documents for filing of Market 
Operations Fee (MOF, application for MOF for FY 2022-23. 

ii. file subsequent review motion petition after determination on the said application 
of FY 2022-23. 

iii. pay the necessary Market Operations Fee (MOF) petition filing fees. 

iv. appear before f/se A ut/sority as Flee(led (111(1 do all acts izecessary for completion 
anti processing of/lie applications. 

CERTIFIED TO BE TRUE COPY 

Certified that the above resolution was passed by the Board of Directors of Central Power Purchasing 
Agency (Guarantee) Limited in its 82id  meeting held on 26  May 2022 and has been duly recRrded  in the 

minutes book of the Company. 

Noman Raliq 
Coin pany Secretary 

Distribution:  
j/ Chief Executive Officer, CPPA (G) Ltd. 
ii. Chief Financial Officer. CPPA (C) Ltd. 

Shaheen Plaza, 173 West. Fazal-e-I-Iaq Road. Blue Area, Islamabad. 
Ph: 051-9213619 www.c,pa.ov.pk   Fax: 051-9213617 
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introduction: 
This report succinctly details the key development areas and progress made by the Human Resource 

& Admin Department CPPA-G during the first quarter i.e., from Jan to Mar2022, as directed by NEPRA 

as an obligation under determination of its market fee. Here at CPPA-G, HR&A Department has 

transformed itself from support function to a corporate Business Partner and take every step to 

support the organization functions while maintaining a congenial & conducive working environment. 

Brief Details of HR&A Functions: 
HR&A department covers multitude of HR functions to provide smooth and non-stop services to all 

the sections of CPPA-G. The synopsis of HR role is given as under: 

HR. Operations 

> HR Service Delivery 

> Employee Record Mgt 

> Employee Relations 

> Contract & Vendor Mgt 

Recruitment & Selection 

> Job Advertisement 

> Written Test & Interview 

> Onboard & Orientation 

> Offer & Acceptance 

Compensation & Benefit 

> Payroll Processing 

> Exit Management 

> Employee Terminal Benefits 

> Group Health Insurance 

> Life Insurance 

Organization Development Training & Development HR Legal Framework 

> Organization Restructuring > Training Need Assessment > Employee Grievance 

> Policies & Procedures > Profiling of Training Needs > Legal Matters 

> HR Manual > Training Programs in > Legal Compliance 

> Employee Handbook collaboration with PPRA Rules > Contract Management 

> Recreation Activities > Training Feedbacks & ROI 

Procurement & Logistics Fleet Management Facility Management 

> Ensuring all procurements > Vehicle Record Keeping > Keeping Office Ambiance 

while following the designated > Vehicle Fuel Management > Facilitating all in-house 

Supply Chain procedures > Vehicle Timely Maintenance meetings/trainings etc 

> Keeping ample quantity of > Vehicle Tour Operations > Office House Keeping 

different kinds of entities' stocks ) Travel Arrangements 
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HR&A and Support Staff Working Strength: 
HR&A Department 

Functional Head 01 

Deputy Manager 03 

Assistant Manager 04 

-M--Offieer 01 

Assistant Private Secretary 01 

Senior Assistant 02 

Junior Assistant 01 

Transport Supervisor 01 

Support Staff 

Caretaker 01 

Drivers 08 

Electrician 01 

Naib Qasid 20 

Sanitary Workers 05 

Daily Wager 03 

CPPA-G Departments & its Functions: 

Finance Department: 
All financial matters of CPPA, both internal and external are performed by this department. The core 

functions which are performed under this department for CPPA-G includes: 

• Billing and Settlements 

• DISCOs and Bulk Consumers Billing 

• internal Accounting 

• Market Accounting 

• Treasury 

Finance Department Working Strength: 
Finance Department 

Functional Head 01 

Deputy General Manager 03 

Manager 07 

Deputy Manager 14 

Assistant Manager 21. 

Accounts Officer 05 

Senior Assistant 03 

Assistant Personal Secretary 01 
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Technical Department: 
This department manages the procurement of power and energy on behalf of DISCOs through 

negotiating and finalizing Power Purchase Agreements (PPAs) and Energy Purchase Agreements 

(EPAs) with the generators. In addition, the Technical Department is also responsible for the 

verification of the invoices raised by the NTDC and generators. The core activities of this department 

include: 

• Procurement of power on behalf of DISCOs 

• Establishing contracts for supply 

• Coordination with PPIB, AEDB, Ministry of Energy (MOE) Power Division, Ministry of Finance, 

Ministry of Law and other governmental agencies 

• Meter Readings Management 

• Supplier and NTDC Invoice Verification 

• Meter Audit & Annual Capacity Testing of Power Plants 

Technical Department Working Strength: 
Technical Department 

Deputy General Manager / Functional Head 01 

Manager 05 

Deputy Manager 07 

Assistant Manager 14 

Junior Assistant 01: 

MTO:: 02 

Assistant Personal Sécrétary 01 

Market Operations & Development (MOD): 
This department of CPPA-G leads the development of a competitive wholesale electricity market and 

facilitates its implementation in Pakistan. MOD department is also involved in outlining the business 

strategy of CPPA-G along with the preparation of the company's Strategic Plan. The main objectives 

of this department are: 

• Designing of a wholesale electricity competitive market model and its transition road map. 

• Research and document conclusions for the next stage of market reforms. 

• Play the role on behalf of CPPA-G in facilitating the implementation of CTBCM Plan to develop a 

competitive market. 

• Market coordination and development activities including the training and capacity building of 

market stakeholders. 

• Suggesting and building strategic partnerships with global like institutions 

• Market simulations for analysis of market architecture on prices moving forward. 
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égàlDepartment. 

Functional Head 01 

Manager 03 

Assistant Manager 03 

Junior Assistant 01 

Program management and coordination for donor funded projects. 

MOD Working Strength: 
MOD Department 

Functional Head 01 

Manager 06 

Deputy Manager 06 

Assistant Manager 09 

Legal and Corporate Affairs Department: 
The work of Legal Department spans the breadth of the Company and is hailmarked by the unique 

ability to work collaboratively and to respond quickly to major issues and changing priorities. Bearing 

in mind the motive of sustainable growth and development of CPPA's objectives, Legal Department 

has remained actively and prudently involved in the affairs of the Company. Our core function 

encapsulates ensuring compliance through advisory within the ambit of sustainable solutions for the 

energy sector while maintaining effective contract management with adequacy of safeguards ranging 

multitude of dimensions from negotiations to litigation/dispute resolution. 

Legal and Corporate Affairs Working Strength: 

Policy & Planning (P&P) and CEO Office: 
This department of CPPA-G provides executive support in a one-on-one working relationship with 

CEO. The main functions of this department are: 

• Acting as the primary point of contact for internal and external constituencies on all matters 

related to the functions/ responsibilities of CEO especially pertaining to Policies, Governance & 

Corporate Planning 

• Supporting CEO in development/changes of power/ energy policies for sustainable power market 

operations and to reduce liabilities and guarantees of Government of Pakistan. 

• Facilitation in internal development and streamlines operations to align with the prevailing 

policies. 

• Collaboration for the strategic initiatives being taken in the sector for long term sustainability. 
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P&P and CEO Working Strength: 
P&P and CEO Office 

CEO/Functional Head 01 

Manager 01 

Assistant Manager 05 

Technical Assistant 06 

Assistant 02 

Office of Company Secretary: 
The Office of the Company Secretary maintains compliance of SECP Act, 2017 and Public Sector 

Companies (Corporate Governance) Rules 2013. The other functions of this office are: 

• Engagement of external audit and preparation of Directors Report; organizing important hi-level 

meetings for CPPA-G including Annual General Meetings/Extra Ordinary General Meetings 

(EoGMs) Board meetings, Board Committee meetings, and Commercial Code Review Panel (CCRP) 

meetings. 

• Maintaining documentation of above-mentioned meetings; provide Secretarial support to the 

General body, Board of Directors, Board Committees and CCRP and follow-up implementation on 

the General body, Board of Directors, Board Committees and CCRP decisions. 

• Maintaining the Record, maintenance of Books of Accounts, preparation of financial statements 

and filing of tax returns of CPPA Employees Gratuity Fund & CPPA Employees Provident Fund. 

Office of Company Secretary Working Strength: 
Office of Company Secretary 

Company Secretary/Functional Head 01 

Assistant Manager 02 

iuniorAssistant 01 

Information Technology (IT) Department: 
IT Department is focused on optimizing Information Technology (IT) investments and more rapidly 

deployment of IT capabilities, drawing on our highly skilled and innovative workforce positioned to 

meet emerging and expanding requirements. IT Department of CPPA-G is the custodian of all the ERP 

modules and CPPA-G's IT infrastructure. 

IT Department Working Strength: 
IT Department 

Functional Head 01 

Manager 02 

5J Page 



99 

198 256 58 

67 32 

Total Working Strength of CPPA-G 

Working (indudingMTO, & Daily 

Wagers etc) 

TotaI Wórkiri'Stréngth:bf MOD 

Sanctioned Positions Working (including consultants Vacant 

Deputy Manager 03 

Assistant Manager - 20 

ITOfficer 01 

Assistant System Engineer 01 

Network Technician 01 

MTO —06---- 

Assistant Private Secretary 01 

Technical Assistant IT 05 

Sanctioned Positions of CPPA-G / MOD and Total Working 
Strength: 
According to the Vacancy Statement of CPPA-G & MOD, it has a sanctioned strength of working 

employees. It also includes the daily wagers to support the important assignments and necessary 

tasks. The complete snapshot of CPPA-G I MOD sanctioned, working, vacant, other employees and 

total strength is summarized in the table below: 
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HR&A Function-Wise Progress: 
Recruitment: 

CPPA-G advertised multiple positions to fulfil its manpower needs during the first quarter of 2022. 

The recruitment process is currently underway. The snapshot for the various positions advertised by 

C  DO 

Advertised Positions Qi 2022 

Total Positions 

Assistant Manager(s) 

Deputy Manager(s) 

Trainings: 
The first quarter of 2022 saw an uptrend in number of trainings at CPPA-G. There was a total of 11 

on-site and 01 off-site training session organized for the capacity building of CPPA-G employees. 

Training providers who rendered their services included Mehergarh: A Centre for Learning, Security 

Experts Pvt Ltd, Corporate Trainings & PR and QMS.9000. The Training Dashboard for the first quarter 

is as under: 

TRAINING INDEX 
Qi 2022 

Total Participants Total Training Hours 
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Promotion & Travelling Policy: 

The HR Team worked extensively on the Promotion & Travelling Policy for CPPA-G which was long 

overdue. After countless manhours and thorough analysis of various policies & practices in the power 

sector, the final draft policy for Promotion & Travelling was finalized and submitted before the HR 

Committee of CPPA-G for vetting and onward submission to the Board of Directors CPPA-G. 

Common Room for Female Employees: 

The Admin Section played a pivotal role in setting up a separate space in the form of Common Room 

for the female employees to relax and pray while taking short break from office hours. 

81 Page 

S
\oS  

- -c
C, 

"S C -c--
"

ç:C'
< S.' C 

, , ._,y , CS 

- - C' ,,V V
- 

.,q,/ 'sL 

U
s

s 

I
\ c \c

•s  



Furthermore, keeping in view the working mothers' hassle, a day-care facility has been established so 

that female officers having babies & toddlers can bring them to office under the supervision of 

babysitter. 

Admin Support: 
 brefsapshoofAdn4ervkeswith regardstomeetin  sprovkid hIow 

Inter Departmental Meetings Dashboard Qi 2022 

Meeting Hours 

No. of Meetings 

0 50 100 150 200 250 300 350 400 
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Test Centre Mu/tan 

Miscellaneous GaHery CPPA-G: 

Test Centre Is/amabad 

10 I P a g e 



Test in progress 

Test in progress 
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Awareness sessian on Anti-Sexual Harassment at Warkplace 

Awareness sessian an Anti-Sexual Harassment at Warkplace 
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Sub-Total 1 

1 G-11 

CEO Office  

Chief Executive Officer 

d. a. 

1 

1 

Risk Management  

2 Asstt. Manager 

 

G-06 1 

 

Sub-Total 

 

1 

3 P01kv & Planning 

5 Asstt. Manager (Market& Simulation) 

6 Asstt. Manager (Finance) 

7 Asstt. Manager (P&P) 

8 Asstt. Manager (Economics Studies) 

10 Sr. Technical Assistant 

 

G-06 

G-06 

G-06 

G-06 

5-01 

2 

1 

1 

1 

3 

 

Sub-Total 

 

8 

Company Secretary 

2 Deputy Manager G-08 1 

5 Office Assistant G-05 1 

   

Sub-Total 

 

2 

1 Dy Mananger Legal 

2 Dy Mananger Taxation 

Sub-Total 

G-09 

G-06 

1 

1 

2 

Internal Audit  

1 Chief Internal Auditor 

2 Audit Associate 

Sub-Total 

G-10 1 

G-05 1 

2 

CPPA-G Recruitment Plan FY 2022-23 

0 Remarks (Status of Working 
Employees) 

o.g 

Sr. No. Nomenclature of Post 
CPPA-G 
Grade 

pa
 

e. f. 

0 1 Vacant 

1 

0 1 Recruitment in Process 

0 1 

0 

0 2 Recruitment in Process 

0 1 Recruitment in Process 

0 1 Recruitment in Process 

0 1 Recruitment in Process 

0 3 Recruitment in Process 

0 8 

0 1 Recruitment in Process 

0 1 Recruitment in Process 

0 2 

0 1 Vacant 

0 1 Vacant 

0 2 

o i Vacant 

o i Recruitment in Process 

0 2 

Technical: 

1 Chief Technical Officer (CTO) 1 Vacant G-10 1 0 

2 Dy.G.M (Tech) 6-10 1 0 1 Vacant 

3 Manager (Tech) 6-09 1 0 1 Vacant 

4 Dy. Manager (Tech) 6-08 2 0 2 Recruitment in Process 

5 Asstt. Manager (Tech) G-06 6 0 6 Recruitment in Process 

Sub-Total 11 0 11 

Finance 

7 Dy. Manager (Fin) G-08 1 0 1 Recruitment in Process 

8 Asstt. Manager (Fin) G-06 9 0 9 Recruitment in Process 

Sub-Total 10 0 10 



Remarks (Status of Working 

Employees) 
CPPA-G 

Grade 

0 
Sr. No. Nomenclature of Post 

f. e. C. g. 

G-08 1 0 1 Recruitment in Process 

G-06 1 0 1 Recruitment in Process 

G-07 1 0 1 Recruitment in Process 

Sub-Total 3 0 3 

G-04 2 0 2 Recruitment in Process 

G-01 1 0 1 Recruitment in Process 

Sub-Total 3 0 3 

G-05 1 0 1 Recruitment in Process 

Sub-Total 1 0 1 

G-09 1 0 1 Vacant 

G-06 2 0 2 Recruitment in Process 

G-05 2 0 2 Recruitment in Process 

Sub-Total 5 0 5 

9 (a) R&l Section (IT Department) 

2 Junior Assisatnt 

3 Dispatch Rider 

(b) Admin. Section  

3 Receptionist 1 0 1 

1 0 1 

G-0S 

Sub-Total 

5 0 5 Recruitment in Process 

5 0 5 

11 0 11 

G-02 

Sub-Total 

Sub-Total 

(b-i) Transport Section 

2 Drivers 

Recruitment in Process 

-Total (a) •- 55 - 55 

10 Legal  

4 Office Assistant 

HR &Admn  

(a) (HR Section)  

2 Manager (HR) 

4 Asstt. Manager (HR) 

8 Office Assistant 

a. b. 

9 Information Technology / ERP 

4 Dy. Manager (DBA) 

17 Software Enineer (Oracle Developer) 

18 Asstt. Manager (Software Engineer) 
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PROGFtESS FEPORT 
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Introduction: 
This report succinctly details the key development areas and progress made by the Human Resource 

& Admin Department CPPA-G during the third & fourth quarter i.e., from July to December 2021, as 

directed by NEPRA as an obligation under determination of its market fee. Here at CPPA-G, HR&A 

Department has transformed itself from support function to a corporate 5us1ness Partner and take 

every step to support the organization functions while maintaining a congenial & conducive working 

environment. 

Brief Details of HR&A Functions: 
HR&A department covers multitude of HR functions to provide smooth and non-stop services to all 

the sections of CPPA-G. The synopsis of HR role is given as under: 

HR Operations 

> HR Service Delivery 

> Employee Record Mgt 

> Employee Relations 

> Contract & Vendor Mgt 

Recruitment & Selection 

> Job Advertisement 

> Written Test & Interview 

> Onboard & Orientation 

> Offer & Acceptance 

Compensation & Benefit 

> Payroll Processing 

> Exit Management 

> Employee Terminal Benefits 

> Group Health Insurance 

> Life Insurance 

Organization Development Training & Development HR Legal Framework 

> Organization Restructuring > Training Need Assessment ) Employee Grievance 

> Policies & Procedures > Profiling of Training Needs > Legal Matters 

> HR Manual > Training Programs in > Legal Compliance 

> Employee Handbook collaboration with PPRA Rules > Contract Management 

> Recreation Activities > Training Feedbacks & ROl 

Procurement & Logistics Fleet Management Facility Management 

> Ensuring all procurements > Vehicle Record Keeping > Keeping Office Ambiance 

while following the designated > Vehicle Fuel Management > Facilitating all in-house 

Supply Chain procedures > Vehicle Timely Maintenance meetings/trainings etc 

> Keeping ample quantity of > Vehicle Tour Operations Office House Keeping 

different kinds of entities' stocks > Travel Arrangements 
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inanceDepartmen 

Functional Head 01 

Deputy General Manager 03 

Manager 07 

Deputy Manager 14 

Assistant Manager 21 

Accounts Officer 05 

Senior Assistant 03 

Assistant Personal Secretary 01 

HR&A and Support Staff Working Strength: 
HR&A Department 

Functional Head 01 
Deputy Manager 03 
Assistant Manager - - 04 
Admin Officer 01 
Assistant Private Secretary 01 
Senior Assistant 02 

Junior Assistant 01 
Transport Supervisor 01 

SupportStaff, 

Caretaker 01 

Drivers 08 

Electrician 01 

Naib Qasid 20 

Sanitary Workers 05 

Daily Wager 03 

CPPA-G Departments & its Functions: 

Finance Department: 
All financial matters of CPPA, both internal and external are performed by this department. The core 

functions which are performed under this department for CPPA-G includes: 

• Billing and Settlements 

• DISCOs and Bulk Consumers Billing 

• Internal Accounting 

• Market Accounting 

• Treasury 

Finance Department Working Strength: 
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Technical Department: 
This department manages the procurement of power and energy on behalf of DISCOs through 

negotiating and finalizing Power Purchase Agreements (PPAs) and Energy Purchase Agreements 

(EPAs) with the generators. In addition, the Technical Department is also responsible for the 

verification ot the invoices raised by the NTDC and generators. I lie core activites of tn's dEpartment 

include: 

• Procurement of power on behalf of DISCOs 

• Establishing contracts for supply 

• Coordination with PPIB, AEDB, Ministry of Energy (MOE) Power Division, Ministry of Finance, 

Ministry of Law and other governmental agencies 

• Meter Readings Management 

• Supplier and NTDC Invoice Verification 

• Meter Audit & Annual Capacity Testing of Power Plants 

Technical Department Working Strength: 
Technical Department 

Deputy General Manager / Functional Head 01 

Manager 05 

Deputy Manager 07 

Assistant Manager 14 

Junior Assistant 01 

MTO 02 

Assista nt Personal Secretary 01 

Market Operations & Development (MOD): 
This department of CPPA-G leads the development of a competitive wholesale electricity market and 

facilitates its implementation in Pakistan. MOD department is also involved in outlining the business 

strategy of CPPA-G along with the preparation of the company's Strategic Plan. The main objectives 

of this department are: 

• Designing of a wholesale electricity competitive market model and its transition road map. 

• Research and document conclusions for the next stage of market reforms. 

• Play the role on behalf of CPPA-G in facilitating the implementation of CTBCM Plan to develop a 

competitive market. 

• Market coordination and development activities including the training and capacity building of 

market stakeholders. 

• Suggesting and building strategic partnerships with global like institutions 

• Market simulations for analysis of market architecture on prices moving forward. 
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egal Department 

Functional Head 01 

Manager 03 

Assistant Manager 03 

Junior Assistant 01 

Program management and coordination for donor funded projects. 

MOD Working Strength: 
MOD Department 

LLi _ 
I UI I'..I.IUI IQI I IQU 

Manager 06 

Deputy Manager 06 

Assistant Manager 09 

Legal and Corporate Affairs Department: 
The work of Legal Department spans the breadth of the Company and is hallmarked by the unique 

ability to work collaboratively and to respond quickly to major issues and changing priorities. Bearing 

in mind the motive of sustainable growth and development of CPPA's objectives, Legal Department 

has remained actively and prudently involved in the affairs of the Company. Our core function 

encapsulates ensuring compliance through advisory within the ambit of sustainable solutions for the 

energy sector while maintaining effective contract management with adequacy of safeguards ranging 

multitude of dimensions from negotiations to litigation/dispute resolution. 

Legal and Corporate Affairs Working Strength: 

Policy & Planning (P&P) and CEO Office: 
This department of CPPA-G provides executive support in a one-on-one working relationship with 

CEO. The main functions of this department are: 

• Acting as the primary point of contact for internal and external constituencies on all matters 

related to the functions/ responsibilities of CEO especially pertaining to Policies, Governance & 

Corporate Planning 

• Supporting CEO in development/changes of power/ energy policies for sustainable power market 

operations and to reduce liabilities and guarantees of Government of Pakistan. 

• Facilitation in internal development and streamlines operations to align with the prevailing 

policies. 

• Collaboration for the strategic initiatives being taken in the sector for long term sustainability. 
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P&P and CEO Working Strength: 
P&P and CEO Office 

CEO/Functional Head 01 

Manager 01 

Assistant Manager 05 

Technical Assistant 06 

Assistant 02 

Office of Company Secretary: 
The Office of the Company Secretary maintains compliance of SECP Act, 2017 and Public Sector 

Companies (Corporate Governance) Rules 2013. The other functions of this office are: 

• Engagement of external audit and preparation of Directors Report; organizing important hi-level 

meetings for CPPA-G including Annual General Meetings/Extra Ordinary General Meetings 

(EoGMs) Board meetings, Board Committee meetings, and Commercial Code Review Panel (CCRP) 

meetings. 

• Maintaining documentation of above-mentioned meetings; provide Secretarial support to the 

General body, Board of Directors, Board Committees and CCRP and follow-up implementation on 

the General body, Board of Directors, Board Committees and CCRP decisions. 

• Maintaining the Record, maintenance of Books of Accounts, preparation of financial statements 

and filing of tax returns of CPPA Employees Gratuity Fund & CPPA Employees Provident Fund. 

Office of Company Secretary Working Strength: 
Office of Company Secretary 

Company Secretary/Functional Head 01 

Assistant Manager 02 

Junior Assistant 01 

Information Technology (IT) Department: 
IT Department is focused on optimizing Information Technology (IT) investments and more rapidly 

deployment of IT capabilities, drawing on our highly skilled and innovative workforce positioned to 

meet emerging and expanding requirements. IT Department of CPPA-G is the custodian of all the ERP 

modules and CPPA-G's IT infrastructure. 

IT Department Working Strength: 
IT.Dèpartment 

Functional Head 01 

Manager 02 
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256 198 58 

Total Working Strength of CPPA-G 

TotaJWoringStrengthof: 

99 67 32 

Deputy Manager 03 

Assistant Manager 20 

IT Officer 01 

Assistant System Engineer 01 

Network Technician 01 

MTO 06 

Assistant Private Secretary 01 

Technical Assistant IT 05 

Sanctioned Positions of CPPA-G / MOD and Total Working 
Strength: 
According to the Vacancy Statement of CPPA-G & MOD, it has a sanctioned strength of working 

employees. It also includes the daily wagers to support the important assignments and necessary 

tasks. The complete snapshot of CPPA-G / MOD sanctioned, working, vacant, other employees and 

total strength is summarized in the table below: 
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HR&A Function-Wise Progress: 
Recruitment: 
CPPA-G, as per its sanctioned strength, fulfilled its manpower needs to keep up with the high demands 

of the Power Sector. The recruitment domain made sure that the finest resources take up the key 

positions within CPPA-G to sustain and surpass high-level objective of the transition from current 

single-buyer model to competitive market. 

The snapshot for the recruitment numbers for third & fourth quarter Q3 & Q4 are as under: 

Recruitment Dashboard 
Q3&Q42021 

Application(s) Received 

Shortlisted + Invited for Interview 

Offer(s) Extended 

190 

4]. 

Orientation of New Hires: 
The orientation of all the new hires was organized by the HR&A Dept. in the Training Hall of CPPA-G. 

The CEO CPPA-G was the chief guest for the occasion. The proceedings were started with the welcome 

note followed by the speeches from each Functional Head of CPPA-G. The new hires were given the 

information regarding the CPPA-G's operations, achievements, and the future plans. Finally, the 

session was culminated in an interactive exercise where the new hires got to know each other. 

Trainings: 
The training programmes for the third & fourth quarter were arranged in collaboration with 

Schuitema, Human Excellence Group (one of the leading training service providers in Pakistan who 

are credited with their own patent work). The second leg of "Self & Peer Leadership" was organized 

in-house specifically targeting the Mid-Career Management Professionals of CPPA-G to equip them 

with leadership traits. Furthermore, an off-site strategic retreat on "Leadership Challenges & it's 

Resolution for the Public Sector Organizations" was arranged for the senior management of CPPA-

G. It was focussed on a unique intervention regarding leadership role during turbulent times, dealing 

with red-tape and striving for strategic excellence while consolidating leadership traits to deliver the 
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organizational objectives. It was a huge success as everything was executed perfectly ranging from 

logistic to technical support of the Admin Section of the HR&A Dept. The Training Dashboard for third 

& fourth quarter are as under: 

TR I1Cth1flFM 

Q3 & Q4 2021 

Total Participants ..Total Training Hours 

90 

• 80 

70 

U 60 

50 

40 

30 

E 20 

Z 10 

0 

Self & Peer Leadership Strategic Retreat 

Training Name 

Number of Participant(s) Training Hours 

Admin Work Progress: 
The Admin Section played a pivotal role in establishment and smooth operations of Receive & 

Issuance (R&l) Section alongside sorting the official record. Furthermore, the renovation and 

expansion of the Ladies Common Room was carried out. 

The meeting of USAID and World Bank representatives with Market Operations & Development 

(MOD) Department, previously known as Strategy & Market Development (SMD) was organized. 

Furthermore, Admin Section also facilitated the meeting between Secretary Power Division with the 

World Bank at CPPA-G premises. 
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Meeting Hours 

No. of Meetings 

Admin Support: 
A brief snapshot of Admin Services with regards to meetings is provided below: 

Inter Departmental Meetings Dashboard Q3 & Q4 2021 

0 50 100 150 200 250 300 350 400 450 

Miscellaneous Operations: 

• Initiative taken to automate leave management process in ERP to achieve paper less 

environment. 

• Provident Fund of the employees who opted for regular service in CPPA-G were regulated in 

the ERP. 

• Initiative was undertaken for retrieving tax related documents in ERP. 

• Initiative was undertaken for the Day Care facility for female employees of CPPA-G. 

• Hire / Resign report has been updated with basic salary on last day and details of all the 

designations held by the incumbent. 

9lPage 



Highlights of the Workshops/Sessions at CPPA-G: 

Centra' Power Purchasing Agency (CPPA-G) 
Leadership Challenges & its Resolution in Public Sector Organizations 

16tt - 17th DEC 2021 PC BHURBAN 

Workshop at PC Bhurban 

Orientation of new hires 2021 
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Orientation o 

Orientation of new hires 2021 
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Mr. Waseem Mukhtar 
Mr. Waseem Mukhtar has been working as Additional Secretary-TI, Power Division since 

 Februry 2ftL8andhe isthC-airrnaa oECPEA-GBoird He alsoeered different 

Government departiiients i.e. MD Utility Stores Corporation, MD National Fertilizer 

Marketing Ltd., Secretary Housing, Urban Development & Public Health Engineering Dept., 

Secretary Transport Dept. Govt. of Punjab, Member Colonies, Board of Revenue, Govt of 

Punjab, Special Secretary, Health Department, Govt. of Punjab, Special Secretary / 

Secretary, Communication & Works Dept. Govt. of Punjab. 

Mr. Muhammad Anwer Sheikh 
Mr. Muhammad Anwer Sheikh is Government Officer and currently has been working as 

Additional Secretary in Ministry of Finance, Mr. Sheikh did master's in 

Commerce/Finance (with distinction) and LLB. He also poses the Leadership Program 

training on campus Executive Education in Public Financial Management from JFK 

School of Government, Harvard, National Management Course from National School of 

Public Policy, Pakistan. 

Over 26 years' experience in public administration, corporate sector management, local 

and international financing, investment dispute settlement, taxation laws, international 

aid architecture etc. Served in Revenue Division, PM Secretariat, Economic Affairs 

Division and currently in Finance Division and also serving different Boards of DISCOs 

and other Public Sector Entities. 

Engr. Dr. Muhammad Amjad Khan 
Dr. Muhammad Amjad Khan is an engineer by profession and has a vast experience of 

working in Power Sector of Pakistan. Dr. Amjad holds Masters Degree in Engineering and 

then PhD in management with the experience of Planning, Distribution of Power, currently 



he has been working as Chief Executive Officer of Islamabad Electric Supply Company 

(TESCO) and is a Board member of CPPA-G in his ex. Officio capacity. 

Mr. Muhammad Iniiraii Mian 
Mr. Muhammad Imran Mian is a qualified professional Accountant and his experience covers 

over two decades. Currently he is serving as Chief Executive Officer of GENCO Holding 

Company and is a Board member of CPPA-G in his ex. Officio capacity. 

Mr. Mahfooz Ahmad Bhatti 
Mr. Mahfooz Ahmad Bhatti is a Public Sector Financial Management Specialist with more 

than 17 years of experience of working with the Pakistan Public Sector. Public sector Audit, 

Public Sector Accounts, Project Management, Policy Development and Analysis and 

Project Oversight, Monitoring and Evaluation are key expertise. Currently working as Joint 

Secretary (Power Finance) at Ministry of Energy (Power Division) and is a Board member 

of CPPA-G in his ex. Officio capacity. 

MDNTDC 
The Position is vacant since 16-05-2022. 

Mr. Rihan Akhtar 
Mr. Rihan Akhtar is a Fellow Member of ICMAP, and currently having portfolio of Chief 

Financial Office of CPPA-G and Federal Government also assigned him additional charge 

of Chief Executive Officer CPPA-G. 



LIST OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS AS ON 27-05-2022  

Name of Company: Central Power PurchasinR Aaencv (Guarantee) Limited (CPPA-G 

Registered Address: 73-West, S/ia/teen Plaza, Fazal-e-Haq Road, Blue Area Islamabad 

S. No Full Name of Director 
Date of Birth 

DIMlY 
Nationality Representation 

1 Mr. Waseem Mukhtar 22-04-1968 Pakistan 

Ministry of Energy / 
Addi. 

Secretary — II Ministry 
of Energy (Power 

Division) 

2 Mr. M. Anwer Sheikh 20-01-1963 Pakistan 
Mjiistry of Finance / 

Addi. Secretary 

3 Mr. Amjad Khan 02-07-1961 Pakistan 
DISCOs 

CEO IESCO 

Mr. Muhammad Imran 
Mian 

17-08-1972 Pakistan 
GENCOs 

CEO GHCL 

Mr. Mahfooz Ahmad 
Bhatti 

29-07-1970 Pakistan 
Ministry of Energy! 

Joint Secretary 

6 Vacant Pakistan 
NTDC/ 

MD NTDC 

7 Mr. Rihan Akhtar 22-04-1968 Pakistan 
CFO CPPA-G/ CEO 

Addi. Charge 

8 Independent Director Vacant 

9 Independent Director Vacant 

10 
Independent Director Vacant 



Payable By Market Participants Representing Demand To The Market 

Participants Representing Offer 

As at April 30, 2022 

Am,n+ 

Sr.No Discos Name (PKR) 

1 FAISALABAD ELECTRIC SUPPLY COMPANY 103,293,487,615 

2 GUJRANWALA ELECTRIC POWER COMPANY 35,270,569,173 

3 HYDERABAD ELECTRIC SUPPLY COMPANY 359,901,288,536 

4 ISLAMABAD ELECTRIC SUPPLY COMPANY 138,723,597,541 

5 KARACHI ELECTRIC SUPPLY COMPANY 409,009,318,250 

6 LAHORE ELECTRIC SUPPLY COMPANY 281,269,263,359 

7 MULTAN ELECTRIC POWER COMPANY 174,674,305,081 

8 PESHAWAR ELECTRIC SUPPLY COMPANY 505,155,945,322 

9 QUETTA ELECTRIC SUPPLY COMPANY 510,545,776,222 
10 SUKKUR ELECTRIC POWER COMPANY 325,332,1 87,833 
11 TRIBAL AREAS ELECTRIC SUPPLY COMPANY 51,852,477,499 

Grand Total: 2.895,O28,216431 

Tariff Differential Subsidy - unallocated - 196,005,054,000 

TOTAL :- 2,699,023,162,431 



ECEIVABLE BY MARKET PARTiCIPANTS REPRESENTING OFFER INCLUDING NTDCL PHI. ETC. 

.S AT APRIL 30. 2022 

I (R.in ncllHn) 

St. Entity Nrnne 

GENCOs )OILJGASIRLNG)0&M( 
G-1 Janinhoro 567 
0-Il Gudda 65.634 
0-Ill Muzffrgrh 17.426 
G-IV LAkhru 

Total: (GENCOS) 83627 
2 )lPPs) 

HUECO )RFO) 46.336 
KAPCO (GAS & RFOIRLNGI 39.134 
ABS (Pukgen( )RFO) 6.123 
AES (LcIRL!lJ.RFO( 1.933 
KEL (RFO( 1.366 
SUBA (RFO) BBS 
LIBERTY (GAS) 11.042 
UCH (GAS) 75.302 
ROUSCH (GASIRLNG) 8.086 
FAUJI )GAS(RLNG) 4.920 
HABIBULLAH (GAS) 5.950 
ALTERS )GASIRLNG) 208 
DAVIS ENERGEN )GASIRLNG) 63 
AGL POWER )RFO) 8.336 
THE HUSCO NAROWAL (RFO) 14,323 
ATLAS POWER (SF0) 14,599 
FJISHAT POWER )RFO( 11.599 
NISHATCHUNIAN (SF0) 12.484 
LIBERTY TECH. (SF0) 32.544 
ORIENT POWER (GASIRLNG/HS0) 8.740 
SAIF POWER (GASIRLIIGIHSD) 7.685 
SAPPHIRE ELECTRIC (GAS/RLNG/HSD) 7.111 
HALMORE POWER (GASIRLNGIHSD( 8.966 
ENGRO POWER (GAS) 9.492 
FOUNDATION POWER (GAS) 13.782 
UCH -II (GAS) 62.154 
PEDOISHYDO POWER )HYDEL( 1.021 
LAKAIB ENERGY (HYDELI 4,794 
FFC ENERGY (WIND) 1.392 
ZORLU ENERJI (WIND) 1.649 
JOW SUGAR MILLS-Unit-il )BAGASSE( 731 
JEW SUGAR MILLS-Unit-Ill (BAGASSE) 625 
THREE GORGES FIRST (WIND) 4,541 

FOUNDATION ENERGY-I WIND) 4,293 

FOUNDATION ENERGY.II (W(ND) 4,329 

RYK MILLS (BAGASSE) 895 

QUAID-E-AZAM (SOLAR) 3,324 

SAPPHIRE POWER )VOND( 1,749 

CHINIOT POWER )BAGASSE( 3,468 

APOLLO (SOLAR) 2,520 

BEST GREEN ENERGY (SOLAR) 1,849 

CREST ENERGY (SOLAR) 2,993 

YUNUS ENERGY (WIND) 3.693 

METRO POWER (SAND) 2,733 

TENAGA EGERGY )W1ND) 3,059 

MASTER ENERGY WIND) 1,920 

ACT (WINO) 1,006 

GUL AHMEO (WINO) 3,453 

HAMZA SUGAR MILLS )BAGASSE) 282 

HYDRO CHINA (WiND) 3,143 

SACHAL ENERGY (WIND) 2,862 

QUAID-E-AZAM THERMAL POWER )RLNG( 45,320 

UEP POWER (WIND) 4,555 

HUANENY SHANDONG RUY1 (COAL) 78,242 

NPPMCL HAVEU BAHADUR SHAH (RLNG) 58.385 

RESHMA POWER GENERATION (SF0) - 

NPPMCL BALLOKI POWER (RLNG) 67,898 

HARAPPA (SOLAR) 332 

STAR HYDRO POWER (HYDEL) 3,476 

THAI. INDUSTRIES CORPORATION (BAGASSE) 310 

AJ POWER (SOLAR) 35 

PORT QASIM ELECTRIC POWER (COAL) 71,097 

ARTIStiC ENERGY (WINO) 5,567 

HAWA ENERGY (WIND) 1,981 

JHIMPIR POWER (WIND) 1,851 

THREE GORGES SECOND (WIND) 2,329 

THREE GORGES THIRD (WINO) 2,442 

TRICON BOSTON CONSULTING (WIND) (A) 2,053 

TRICON BOSTON CONSULTING (WIND) (B) 1,B64 

TRICON BOSTON CONSULTING (WIND) (C) 1,962 

ALMOIZ INDUSTRIES LIMITED (BAGASSE) 17 

CHANAR ENERGY UMITED (BAGASSE) 190 

ZEPHYR POWER (WIND) 2,003 

ENGRO POWERGEN THAR (COAL) 33,393 

CHINA POWER HUB GENERATION (COAL) 51,655 

AZAD JAMMU & KASHMIR (JAGRAN)(HYDEL) 

PEHUR HPS-PEDO (HYDEL) - 

NEELUM JHELUM HYDROPOWER COMPANY 74,855 

MIRA POWER (HYDROPOWER) 3,905 

MASTER GREEN ENERGY UMITED (WINO) 14 

LUCKY RENEWABLES (PRIVATE) (WINO) 27 

ARTISTIC WIND POWER )PVT) LTD. 8 

CHASHMA (Nuclear) Plant-I 15.645 

CHASHMA (Nuclear) Plant-2 30,384 
CHASHMA (Nuclear) Plaflt-3 45.512 

CHASHMA (Nuclear) Plant-4 43.554 

Karachi Nuclear Power P(aBts-K2 25.626 

NTDC 31.497 

NTDC )PMLTC( 9.209 

TAVANIR IRAN 7,437 

WAPDA Hydel 233.766 

Allied Off(cau 
PHPL )DebL Servioe))Markup) 

Total: 1,523,463 

Payable to Fuel Suppliers by GENCOs 88,088 

Total: (Circular Debt.) 1,611,552 

Loan - Power Holding Limited 838,063 

G/Total: (Circular Debt.) 2,449,615 
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Terms and Condit 

CPPA-G Complian  

ons of MO Authorization — 

V. General 

5.1 During 

Obligations 

the term of this registration, the CPPA-G shall: 

(i)  Perform the market operator functions reliably, 

transparently, objectively and independently and in a non- 

discriminatory and unbiased manner; 

MO authorization warrants CPPA to carry out market operator 
functions reliably, transparently, objectively and in a non- 
discriminatory manner. In this regard, it is pertinent to highlight that 
under the current regime of single-buyer market, CPPA is efficiently 

performing its functions both as an agency as well as the operator 

of the single-buyer market as mandated by the regulator in the MO 
a uthorization. 

(ii)  Carry out all works related to the market operator functions, 

including but not limited to: 

(a) Preparation of a modelforcompetitivemarketoperations 

that encompasses both sale of power at wholesale and 

sale of power at retail and submit the same for the 

approval of the Authority 

Followed by the approval of the Hi-Level Conceptual Design of 

CTBCM by NEPRA in December 2019, CPPA prepared the Detailed 
Design arid Implementation Roadmap of CTBCM as per the given 

mandate. The Detailed Design also includes the aspect of Market 
Evolution which entails the gradual transition to retail market. The 

Detailed Design and Plan of CTBCM was approved by NJEPRA in 
November 2020 and the implementation of the same is in progress. 

(b) Developing, administering and enforcing the Commercial 

Code; 

The CTBCM regime will have two Commercial Codes. One for the 

Market Operator and other for the Special Purpose Trader. The new 
Market Commercial Code has been submitted to NEPRA after the 

approval of CPPA-G Board in October 2021 along with MO Licensing 
Application as part of CTBCM approved plan and the regulatory 

review and regulatory approval process on the same is in progress 
by NEPRA. The SPT Code will be submitted for regulatory approval 

after the completion of internal review process and obtaining of the 

approval from CPPA-G Board. 



(c) In the case of bilateral contracts between multiple buyers 

and sellers, settlement of imbalances; 

The approved CTBCM model is essentially a bilateral market with 

balancing mechanisms, therefore all the principles based on which 

the market operations including settlement of imbalances will be 

carried out are fully consistent with this obligation. 

(d) Development of commercial standard operating 

procedures; 

Comprehensive process manuals entailing the standard operating 

procedures of the business functions of the Market Operator has 

been developed. The processes and procedures depicted in the 

process manuals has also been automated under the Market 

Management System for seamless execution of the MO functions in 

a digitized manner. 

(e) Procurement of power on behalf of DISCOs during the 

Single Buyer Phase and Single Buyer Plus Phase; and 

CPPA-G in the singlebuyer model has been procuring the power on 

behalf of the DISCOs under its agency function. Given the fact that 

after the commencement of the CTBCM, the DISCOs will directly 

enter into bilateral contracts with the generators for procurement 

of power, therefore the agency function of CPPA-G will transform 

into the Special Purpose Trader wherein the legacy contracts will be 

administered by CPPA-G. Though, special attention has been given 

to the implementation process to ensure that not only there will not 

be interference with the pre-CTBCM business, arid the transition 

take place smoothly. 

(f) Cash flow management, treasury management and other 

relevant functions for the purposes of collection and 

disbursement as per the Commercial Code; 

CPPA-G Finance Department may confirm compliance against this 

point. 

(iii)  Not discriminate between market participants, whether 

prospective or incumbent and whether sponsored privately 

or by the Federation or Provincial Governments of Pakistan; 

Governance, SOPs, systems, reporting, etc are aimed to guarantee 

that the new power market in Pakistan is fully compliant with this 

obligation. 

(iv)  Employ a sufficient number of qualified personnel to ensure 

that its activities are conducted effectively, efficiently, 

reliably and prudently; 

For the last 5 years, CPPA G has been actively working in developing 

its human capital, consistently with the objectives for the pre-

CTBCM and post-CTBCM regimes. HR development is one of the 

important aspect of the overall restructuring activity. Capacity 

building is another pillar for the new market development. This is 

the reason, the CPPA-G for the last few years is not investing heavily 

on its own organizational capacity building but also focusing on the 



training, strengthening and capacity building of the implementing 

power sector entities. 

(v) Ensure that it possesses the technical and financial capability, 

material and human resources, and organizational structure, 

to perform its activities effectively, efficiently, reliably and 

prudently; 

Same comments as the previous one. 

(vi)Pay applicable fees; CPPAG has and will pay the applicable fee as and when required. 

(vii)  Not engage in any activity that may disrupt or interfere with 

the promotion of competition in the market; 

The governance structure proposed for the CPPA G successor 

entities once the CTBCM starts, guarantee the full compliance of this 

obligation. 

(viii)  While performing its activities relating to competitive market 

operations, not engage in any activity that can impair its 

functioning as an independent and impartial market 

operator 

The market operator function will be a fully regulated one and will 

be governed through codes and regulations issued by NEPRA. 

Besides the governance structure of MO guarantees that due to 

confrontation of conflictive interests a natural balance should lead 
. . 

all the process related to transparency, independency, impartiality, 

etc. 

(ix)Furnish to the Authority such information, documentation or 

data, and in such manner and time, as the Authority may 

require from time to time; 

Is and will be complied with as and when require. 

(x) Submit progress reports to the Authority on the status of 

activities being undertaken and, where required by the 

Authority and applicable law, publish the required reports in 

the appropriate manner; 

As mandated by the Authority in its CTBCM approval determination, 

CPPA-G has been submitting the Progress Reports on CTBCM on 

quarterly basis. 

(xi)Comp1y at all times with the directions and determinations made 

by the Authority; 

Is and will be complied with as and when require. 

(xii) Comply with the Act, rules and regulations made in pursuance 

of the Act, applicable documents, the Commercial Code and 

the terms and conditions of this registration; and 

Is and will be complied with as and when require. 

(xiii Submit compliance reports in accordance with Article 12.2; This document is a form of Compliance Report in line with Article 

12.2. 



VI. Technidal 

6.1 During 

Obligations 

the term of this registration, the CPPA-G shall: 

(i)  Facilitate the National Grid Company/System Operator in 

performance of its functions in accordance with law; 

For the last few years, there has been an intense cooperation 

ambience between NTDC/NPCC and the CPPA G. This is 

indispensable for a sound performance of the market. This 

cooperation has taken place in several disciplines, including of 

personnel secondment, capacity building, provision of tools, 

systems deployment, software development, technical assistance, 

provision of international consultants etc. 

(ii)  Ensure that it organizes and develops the model for 

competitive market operations in consultation with the 

relevant stakeholders; 

The CTBCM Detailed Design and Plan prepared by CPPA-G in light of 

Authority'sdirectionwaspreparedafterextensiveconsultationwith 

the relevant stakeholders. Details of the stakeholder consultation 

sessions along with the discussion/notes of the same were annexed 

with the Detailed Design and Implementation Roadmap reports 

submitted to the Authority for approval. 

(iii)  Establish an efficient system of collecting, organizing and 

processing data sent by the National Grid Company/System 

Operator; 

The CPPA G has implemented a web-based IT system titled SO Data 

Exchange Portal (SDXP). One of its modules entails precisely the 

automated exchange and processing of information with the NPCC, 

through web based data portal. The system is live and well-

functioning. 

(i)  Implement the Market Rules; and The CTBCM model and implementation plan approved by the 

Authority are fully compliant with the Market Rules. 

(ii)  Keep records of contracts and contractual obligations with 

the Market Rules, the Commercial Code, the terms and 

conditions of this registration and the directions of the 

Authority issued from time to timeS 

This is part of the SOP that will be part of the functioning of the MO, 

in a transparent manner and clear accountability. The MO also will 

performtheroleofContractRegistrar,whatwillbeanessentialpart 

of the CTBCM to ensure the formalities necessary for running the 

commercial aspects of the market. 

VII. Comn1iercial 

7.1 During 

Obligations 

the term of this registration, the CPPA-G shall: 



(I) Establish processes ensuring adherence of market 

participants to the Market Rules and to the Commercial Code; 

The participation in the CTBCM for both, market participants and 

service providers, will require registrations with the Market 

Operator. The Service Providers will sign a Service Provider 

Participation Agreement (SPA) and the Market Participants will sign 

a Market Participation Agreement (MPA) with the MO. The SOPs for 

the same have been developed during the market implementation 

phase. This is being followed by automation of the same under the 

MMS for carrying our market operations in adherence to the 

governance and regulatory structure. 

(ii)  Manage the processes of financial settlement of energy sale 

transactions in accordance with the Commercial Code; 

The new Market Commercial Code has been adjusted to respond to 

the new trading mechanisms under implementation, for both 

bilateral contracts and balancing mechanisms (not only for sale but 

also for buying energy). 

(iii)  Keep or cause to be kept separate accounts for the distinct 

market operator functions; 

This will he done after the separation of MO and SPT functions. 

(iv)  Provide data to the Authority, as and when directed, relating 

to the generated and/or sold quantities of electricity as well 

as the amounts paid under power purchase contracts; 

Will be complied with as and when directed by the Authority. 

(v)  Provide information to the Authority, as and when directed, 

relating to executed power purchase contracts; and 

Will be complied with as and when directed by the Authority. 

(vi)  Submit to the Authority, as and when directed, correct and 

reliable information regarding prices, number of market 

participants, percentages of market share, forecasted prices 

and statistics; 

A comprehensive report on Integrated Electricity Market Simulation 

Model (IEMSM) has been submitted to the Authority in Feb 2020 

along with the submission of CTBCM Detailed Design and Roadmap. 

This report presents a detailed overview of the market projections 
. . . . 

and statistics including pricing. 

VIII. Procurement of Power on Behalf of Distribution Companies 

8.1 Within 

of 

the 

bet 

a time period not exceeding one (01) month from the Date 

egistration, the CPPA-G shall submit a comprehensive plan to 

Authority for novation of power purchase contracts executed 

veen the NTDC and an IPP or assigned/novated under the 

Comprehensive novation plan was formulated, strategized and 

updated with novation's undertaken thereunder with power 

projects. 



tranmission license of NTDC th'ted 2002; 

8.2 Before 

pres 

purcnase 

unbiased 

con. 

the commencement of competitive market operations as 

:ribed in the Market Rules, the CPPA-G shall execute power 

contracts in an objective, non-discriminatory and 

manner and at the price and rates, and on the terms and 

itions, determined by the Authority; 

Execution of PPAs/EPAs by CPPA-G in its Agency function is in 

accordance with the policy, legal and regulatory framework. 

8.3 The 

DISCOs 

and 

regulations 

CPPA-G shall undertake procurement of power on behalf of 

in accordance with this registration, the Act, the rules and 

made there under, and the determinations, directions 

orders of the Authority; 

Procurement of power done by CPPA-G in its Agency function is in 

accordance with the policy, legal and regulatory framework. 

8.4 The 

Code; 

exe.uted 

terms and conditions of any power purchase contract to be 

by the CPPA-G shall be in conformity with the Commercial 

Execution of PPAs/EPAs by CPPA-G in its Agency function is in 

accordance with the policy, legal and regulatory framework. 

8.5 The 

purhase 

foregoing terms and conditions shall be applicable to all power 

contracts to be executed after the Date of Registration; 

Noted. 

IX. Procur 

9.1 Within 

the 

Buy?r 

the 

relating 

of Registration, 

ment of Power by Distribution Companies 

a time period not exceeding three (03) months from the Date 

the CPPA-G shall submit a comprehensive plan to 

\uthority, for its approval, for the implementation of the Single 

Plus Phase, along with to the Commercial Code to cater for 

Single Buyer Plus Phase including but not limited to provisions 

to the following: 

The plan on the implementation of Single Buyer Plus Phase has been 

submitted to NEPRA along with the Commercial Code in May 2019 

in compliance to this direction. 



(I) Settlement of imbalances in the case of bilateral contracts; 

Development of commercial standard operating procedures; 

(iii) Establishment of escrow accounts by DISCOs; and 

(iv)  Reporting standards and requirements; 

x. Development of Competitive Energy Market Frameworks 

10.1 Befdre the commencement of competitive market operation as 

prescribed in the Market Rules, the CPPA-G shall remove any 

conflicts of interest that may impact its functioning as an 

independent and impartial Market Operator, including but not 

limit 

proc 

fu nc 

ed to segregation, bifurcation or removal of its power 

urement and agency functions from other market operator 

tions; 

In light of this direction from the Authority, the approved CTBCM 
Design envisages bifurcation of CPPA in to sperate and independent 

MO and agency functions to remove the conflict of interest. The 
approved CTBCM Plan also enlist a dedicated action for the CPPA-G 
under which the company is undergoing an organizational 
restructuring which will conclude with the functional and legal 

separation of the MO and SPT before the commencement of 

CTBCM. 

10.2 Befdre the commencement of competitive market operation as 

precribed in the Market Rules, the CPPA-G shall cease participation 

in ny activity or function that may, directly or indirectly, 

coHpromise its objectivity, effectiveness, independence or 

impartiality as the Market Operator; 

The restructuring measures, the governance scheme and the 
regulated activities will ensure that this obligation is met. These are 

also fully embedded in the design of the CTBCM. 

10.3 Witl 

of R 

the 

The CTBCM Hi-Level Design submitted to NEPRA in March 2018 

followed by the Detailed Design submission in Feb 2020 comprised 
all the requirements listed under point i — ii with exception of the 

plan for retail market. 
corr 

un a time period not exceeding three (03) months from the Date 

egistration, the CPPA-G shall submit a comprehensive plan to 

Authority, for its approval, for the implementation of 

petitive market operations which shall include the following: 

(i) A proposal for rationalization of power purchase contract 

tenures and a cut-off date after which the CPPA-G shall cease 

Therefore, in compliance to this direction of the Authorityto submit 

a plan regarding sale of power at retail level, CPPA-G submitted to 

NEPRA the concept paper on the retail market in April 2019. 



execution of long-term power purchase contracts, other than 

those executed for maintenance of required load/demand; 

and 

(ii) Preparation of the model for competitive market operations 

by the CPPA-G to encompass the following: 

(a) Sale of power at wholesale and sate of power at retail, 

including but not limited to the development of a trading 

platform; 

(b) Product development and evolution of market, including 

but not limited to development of frameworks for 

execution and trading of day-ahead spot contracts, base 

toad contracts, peak toad contracts, intraday spot 

contracts, physical forward contracts, futures and 

options; 

(c) Restructuring of the CPPA-G to ensure objective, 

effective, independent and impartial execution of its 

market operator functions; and 

(d) Conformity with the scheme, framework, terminology, 

nomenclature and pinciples prescribed by the Act, as 

amended from time to time; 

10.4 Within 

G 

approval 

amendments 

coilpetitive 

catering 

model 

a time period not exceeding three (03) months from the 

of the plan to be submitted under Article-10.3, the CPPA- 

shall submit to the Authority for its approval adequate 

to the Commercial Code for administering 

market operations and shall include provisions 

for the features of the competitive market operations 

outlined in Article-10.3(ii) above; 

The new Market Commercial Code administrating the competitive 

wholesale market has been submitted to NEPRA after the approval 

of CPPA-G Board in October 2021 along with MO Licensing 

Application as part of CTBCM approved plan and the regulatory 

review and approval process on the same is in progress by NEPRA. 



10.5 The 

or the 

amendment 

provisions 

CPPA-G shall ensure that the Commercial Code, or any 

thereto, does not conflict or is inconsistent with the 

of the Act, the rules and regulations made there under, 

Market Rules (as may be amended from time to time); 

The new Market Commercial Codes ensures conformity to this 
obligation. 

10.6 The 

suffi 

tim 

tim 

requirements, 

func'tions 

opeations 

CPPA-G shall ensure that it maintains adequate facilities and 

:ient financial capacity, and complies with the capital adequacy 

as may be directed by the Authority from time to 

to ensure efficient performance of the market operator 

and provision of services under the competitive market 

model as approved, and amended, by the Authority from 

to time; 

During the CTBCM implementation phase, CPPA-G is working on its 

readiness to act in the capacity of independent Market Operator of 
the competitive wholesale market of future. During this period, 

CPPA-G is investing heavily on its adequacy requirement in terms of 

human resources, technical and IT infrastructure so as to enable it 
offer seamless services as an MO to the market participants. 

10.7 Wittin 

of Rgistration, 

govrnance 

a time period not exceeding three (03) months from the Date 

the CPPA-G shall comply with applicable corporate 

laws; 

CPPA-G is fully compliant with the corporate governance laws. 

Xl. Codes 

11.1 In 

comply 

1ind 

standards 

Standards 

erforming the market operator functions, the CPPA-G shall 

with all applicable codes, guidelines, directions and 

issued by the Authority from time to time; 

Is and will be complied with as and when require. 

XII. Compliance 

12.1 This 

the 

registration is granted subject to compliance and fulfillment of 

terms and conditions contained herein; 

Noted. 

12.2 The CPPA-G shall provide to the Authority, for its review, yearly Noted. 



rep)rts 

regi;tration; 

relating to compliance with the terms and conditions of this 

XIII. Fines and Penalties 

13.1 Wit lout prejudice and in addition to the powers of the Authority 
Noted 

under the Act, and rules and regulations made there under, where 

the Authority determines that the CPPA-G is in violation of any 

applicable law or the terms and conditions of this registration, the 

Aut lority may: 

(i) Investigate the violation as per Section-27A of the Act; 

(ii) Order the CPPA-G to: 

(a) Cease a specific activity; or 

(b) Direct its external auditor to report directly to the 

Authority; 

(iii) Appoint and engage an external auditor to review the 

operations and compliance of CPPA-G with applicable law 

and this registration; 

(iv)Appoint an administrator to take over the operation of the 

market operator for such time or until such event as the 

Authority may approve; or 

(v) Increase the reporting requirements of CPPA-G on any matter 

related to its technical and financial performance or related 

to service quality; 

13.2 Any contravention or non-compliance on part of the CPPA-G or any 

of its officers with respect to this registration, or the conditions and 

time limits prescribed herein, shall constitute grounds for penal 



acti 

13.3 Any 

therof, 

and 

compliance 

amended 

n by the Authority; 

instrument, document, contract or agreement, or any part 

may be declared void if executed in contravention or non 

of this registration, the provisions of the Act, the rules 

regulations made there under, or the Commercial Code (as 

and approved by the Authority from time to time); 

XIV. Settlement of Disputes 

14.1 Any 

or te 

activities 

dispute arising out of or in relation to this registration or the 

performed by the CPPA-G in pursuance of this registration 

Market Rules shall be referred to the Authority for decision; 

Noted 

14.2 In cse 

but 

prices, 

of a dispute relating to Article 8.2ofthisregistration,including 

iot limited to a dispute relating to contractual terms, rates and 

non-price terms or undue delay or refusal on part of the 

CPP -G in execution of contract, the matter shall be referred to the 

AutIority 

accdrdance 

for decision and shaH mutatis mutandis be dealt with in 

with the National Electric Power Regulatory Authority 

Coniplaint Handling and Dispute Resolution (Procedure) Rules, 

2015; 



S.No Case No. wiW 
Party iiain 

Case 
Initiation 

Date 

Forum/Court Nature of Case Quantum of 
Amount 

Legal Fee 

C.A 1461/2021 
in CPLA 
1938/2016 
Title: Nishat 
Chunian vs 
FOP 

09.11.2021 Supreme Court Leave to appeal in CPLA Nos. 1938,1939 and 1940 of 2016 is 
granted. NEPRA ordered Nishat Chuniaii IPP to pay PKR. 
2,34,702/- million. Likewise, Nishat Power is ordered to pay 
PKR 290,423/- Million and Liberty Power to pay PKR 1,57,454/-
million. The lPPs challenged the decision before the Supreme 
Court. 

. 

PKR 2,34,702/- 
Million 

Rs. 300,000/- 

2.  C.A 1462/2021 
in CPLA 
1939/20 16 
Title: Nishat 
Power vs FOP 

09.11 .2021 PKR 290,423/- 
Million 

Rs.300,000/- 

3.  C.A 1463/2021 
in CPLA 
1940/20 16 
Title: Liberty 
Power vs 120  V 

09.11.2021 PKR 1,57,454/- 
Million 

Rs.300,000/- 

4.  Suit. 2127/2018 
Title: 
Transatlantic 
Province of 
Sindh 

vs 

13.11.2018 Sindh I-ugh Court The primary respondent is the Province ofSindh. The Petitioners 
allege that due to a claimed delay on the part of CPPA to issue a 
certificate of power purchase, the site lease issued by the GoS was 
cancelled. The Petitioners have sought a stay order preventing the 
cancellation of the site lease and a court order directing CIPA and 
AEDB to issue the said certificate. 

n/a Rs.300,000/- 

5.  Const. P.(D) 
3871/2018 

Title. 
Foundation 
Power Co. 
Daharki Ltd. 
vs. FOP & 
Others 

16.05.20 18 Sindh 1-ligh Court Principal dispute pertains to Workers Welfare Fund (WWF). 
Constitutional petitions touching upon the uncertainty after the 
I 81h  amendment and the clarity sought after Supreme Court 
decision in the matter of WWF. 

n/a 



6.  W.P. 
3983/2017 
Title: FPCDL 
vs FOP and 
others 

22.11 .2017 IsIamabad I-ugh 
Court 

Principal dispute pertains to release of Workers Welfare Fund 
(WWF) as per I 81h  amendment. Constitutional petitions touching 
upon the uncertainty after the 8' amendment is pending before 
the Supreme Court, therefore the case is sine die adjourned. 

n/a Rs.500,000/- 

Bagasse/B iom ass 

7.  W.P. 704/2018 

Title: 
Sadiqabad 
Power Pvt. 
& Others vs 
FOP & Others 

Id. 

03.03.2018 Islamabad High 
Court 

Seeking direction for forthwith notifying the tarrif. 

The petition is filed on behalf of 23 petitioners 12 
hagasse/biomass projects along with their directors as co- 
petitioners. The petitioners are aggrieved with the inaction of 
CPPA with respect to NEPRA Upfront Tariff Decision for 
Petitioner Projects, the letter dated 25 May 2017 sent by CPPA 
based on the CCE decision which result in rendering the 
Petitioner's Projects, as it is contended, financially unviable. The 
above referenced CCE decision states that the only projects with 
which the IA or PPA have been signed already and that all future 
projects will come through the process of competitive bidding. 
The petitioner asserts that an exception has been created for 
Trimmu RLNG and Zorlu Solar and thus the decision and actions 
of the Respondents are discriminatory and unlawful. 

n/a Rs. 1,000,000/- 

8.  W.P. 
2862/2018 

Title :Kashniir 
Power PVT. 
Ltd vs FOP etc. 

18.07.20 18 Islamabad I-ugh 
Court 

Seeking direction for implementation of agreement dated 

19.07.2017 Letter of Support Policy for development of 
renewable energy of power generation 

n/a Rs.500,000/- 



9.  W.P. 
286812018 
Title: lttcEiq 
Power Ltd vs 
FOP etc 

18.07.201 8 IsIamabad High 
Court 

ibid n/a Rs.500,000/- 

10.  W.P. 
3603/201 8 
Indus Energy 
Ltd. vs FOP 
etc. 

29.09.2018 Islamahad 1-ugh 
Court 

ibid n/a Rs.500,000/- 

II. W.P. 558/2018 
Title: 
Bahawalpur 
Energy Ltd 
FOP. Etc. 

Vs. 

13.02.2018 IsIamabad Iligh 
Court 

Petitioner seeking direction for implementation of letter of intent 
regarding the 2006 Policy for Development of Renewable Energy 
Generation 

il/a Rs. 7,50,000/- 

12. W.P. 267/2018 
Title: l-lunza 
Power Ltd 
FOP etc 

24.01.2018 Islambad lligh 
Court 

Petitioner Seeks direction for Implementation of electricity 
Purchase agreement. 

n/a 1,500,000/- 

NEPRA Cases 



13.  W.P. 
1571/20 18 

Title : CPPA 
Vs. NEPRA 
Others 

24.04.2018 Islamahad High 
Court 

Principal dispute of extending defunct upfront tariff of 2013. 
CPPA has Challenged NEPRA for allowing 12 bagasse projects 
to avail and opt for superseded tariff by the 2017 Upfront Tariff. 
The applicable levelized tariff under 2Oli tariff is 
Rs.10.4078/kWh, whereas the levelized tariff applicable under 
2017 Tariff Rs. 7.9741/kwh. As a consequence, Rs.2.4337/kWh 
shall be paid by the Petitioner to the Respondents, in excess of the 
rate notified by the Federal Government vide the Upiront tariff of 
2017 dated 22.01.2018 and would result in total loss of a 
minimum of Rs. 190 billion over the term.' 

Rs. 190 Billion Rs. 
3,600,000/- 

14.  W.P. 
3681/2018 
Title: C1PA 
NEPRA & 
others 

vs 

03.10.2018 Islamabad Iligh 
Court 

NEPRA has issued a SCN to CPPA dated August 17, 2018 
alleging non-fulfillment of obligations as Market Operator in 
which different observations were raised against CPPA which 
included inter-alia denial by CPPA to procure power by qualified 
power producers without legal justification. Several 1PPs in 
Khyber-Pakhtoonkhwa have been issued tariff which is notified 
in Gazette by the Federal Government yet CPPA did not execute 
PPA with them. CPPA submits that negotiations are taking place 
between the PEDO Projects, and that there is no policy in field on 
the basis of which an EPA can be executed with the futtire 
renewable projects. 

n/a Rs.7,00,000/- 

15.  W.P. 
2809/20 18 

Title : CPPA 
NEPRA etc. 

VS 

16.06.2018 Islamahad High 
Court 

CPPA impugns the SCN dated 11.01.2018 issued by NEPRA 
calling the Market Operator as to why its registration should not 
be cancelled and why a fine of PKR 100 million should not be 
imposed on CPPA. The CPPA submits that the impugned SCN 
was issued in transgression of procedure prescribed in Rule 4 of 

NEPRA (Fines) Rules, 2002 as the petitioner was not given the 

Rs. 100 Million Rs.7,50,000/- 



opportunity to admit or deny the occurrence of violation of 
provisions of the Rule 4(2). 

16.  W.l'. 
3046/2018 
HNDS Ener,y 
Pvt.Ltd etc. 
FOP etc. 

's 

02.08.2018 Islamabad 1-ligh 
Court 

Petitioners seek direction to set aside the CCE decision dated 
12.12.2017 (wherein the CCE decided inter alia that: 'Only those 
projects shall be implemented out of the current list where either 
IA or EPA has been signed already'; 'All projects based on wind, 
solar, small hydel and bagasse energy will be awarded through 
competitive bidding.'; 'All contracts arising out of competitive 
bidding should be for a term of 15 years) and Cabinet committee 
memorandum dated 03.0 1.20181 

n/a Rs.5,00,000/- 

17.  W.P. 
2450/20 I 8 
Title: CPPA 
NEPRA (4 
bagasse) 

vs 

26.06.2018 lslaniahad I-ugh 
Court 

The CPPA is aggrieved by the NEPRA's decision dated 
06.06.201 8 bearing no. NEPRA/SAT-l/TRF-UTB-20 1 3/891 8 
(the "Impugned Order") is in violation of express, binding and 
mandatoiy provision of MO Rules, NEPRA Act, and settled 
principles of law, as enunciated by the Superior Courts of 
Pakistan. The aforementioned decision of NEPRA would have a 
substantial impact on the rights and liabilities of the Petitioner, 
and particularly, a loss o Rs. 3.3 Billion approximately to the 
national power sector and ultimately the end consumer. The 
Petitioner, despite the lapse of 4 months, was not provided any 
notice of hearing nor provided any opportunity to make oral 
submissions before NEPRA in this respect. 

[Petitioner Challenged the order dated 06.06.20 18 passed by 
N EPRA whereby petitioner's electricity procurement reference is 
decided against the Petitioner.1 

Rs. 3.3 Billion Rs.5.00,000/- 



18.  W.P. 655/208 
Title: CPPA 
Vs. NEPRA 
(small hydel) 

20.02.2018 IsIamabad High 
Court 

The CPPA is aggrieved by the NEPRA's decision to issue the 
Extended Upfront Tariff and to reject the Rehearing Request in 
terms of the Rehearing Rejection, without giving the CPPA an 
opportunity to be heard as required by NEPRA under Regulation 
3(2) of 2011 Regulations as well as Regulation 3 of 2009 
Regulations. It is contended that NEPRA unilaterally Extended 
tJpfront Tariff and re-determined the Reviewed Tariff Expiiy 
Date, without seeking input of CPPA and without holding a public 
bean 11g. 

n/a Rs.1,500,000/- 

19.  W.P. 
2929/20 18 
Title: CPPA 
NEPRA & 
another 

vs 

23.07.2018 Islamabad High 
Court 

CPPA has Challenged the NEPRA determination dated 
12.07.20 18 in the Islamabad High Court. 

n/a Rs.5,00,000/- 

20.  W.P. 
1365/20 17 
Title: CPIA 
NEPRA etc. 

vs 

I I .04.201 7 Islamabad Iligh 
Court 

NEPRA has ordered to reimburse the LDs imposed on FFC 
amounting US$0.447 million, therefore the petition is filed to set 
aside the said order. 

US$0.447 million Rs.700,000/- 

21.  W.P. 
1804/2016 
Title: CTGl- 
WK Cholistn 
Solar Power 
Project vs 
NE1RA etc. 

12.05.2016 IslamahacI High 
Court 

Principal dispute arising out of non-issuance of Power 
Acquisition Request (PAR) or non-execution of the PPA/EPA by 
CPPA owing to the CCE decision which mandates application of 
reverse bidding. CPPA is of the considered opinion that mere LOI 
or LOS, in tile absence of a validly executed contract, does not 
accrue any vested rights in favor of the IPPs. Unjustified 
enrichment contrary to tile public interest and processing in 
contravention to CCE decision lacking codal formalities such as 
absence of notified tariff provide for impasse ill processing. It 
must be noted that, vide its letter no.lPPs-6( I 0)/20 17-C dated 
05.01.2018 the Ministry of Energy intimated the decision of the 
Cabinet Committee on Energy ("CCE") in case no.CCE- 
41/10/2017 dated 12.12.2017 ("CCE Decision") wherein the CCE 

n/a 



decided inter al/a that: 'Only those projects shall be implemented 
out of the current list where either IA or EPA has been signed 
already'; 'All projects based on wind, solar, small hydel and 
bagasse energy will be awarded through competitive bidding.'; 
'All contracts arising out of competitive bidding should be for a 
term of 15 years'. 

[Petitioner challenged the letters of NEPRA] 

22.  lCA 352/2017 
Title: CPPA 
Access Pvt. 
Ltd. etc. 

vs 
17.11.2017 Islamabad Iligh 

Court 
Intra Court Appels were filed by CPPA against order passed in 
writ petition filed by Access Electric, wherein Il-IC remanded the 
matter to NEPRA for re-determination on tariff 

n/a Rs.l.5 Million 
each ICA 

23.  1CA353/2017 
Title: CPPA 
Access Solar 
Pvt. Ltd etc 

is 
17.11.2017 

24.  l.C.A 521/2018 
Title: Triden 
GB vs Mb 
Energy 

10.12.2018 Islamahad High 
Court 

Ititra Court Appeal in Writ Petition 21 of 2018 seeking directions 
for LOS from PPDB & PPIB. 

n/a Rs.l ,000,000/- 

25.  W.P. 
1298/2019 

Title : JDW 
Sugar Mills 
Ltd. vs FOI tc 

04.04.2019 Islaniabad Iligh 
Court 

The Company has challenged/impugned the notices of CPPA 
regarding deductions made pursuant to the Tariff Determination 
of NEPRA. 

n/a Rs.2,000,000/- 



26.  W.PNo. 
2008/2019 
titled: Norinc 
International 
Thatta Power 
Limited vs.F 
etc. 

)P 

22.05.20I9 Islaniabad I-ugh 
Court 

The Company/Norinco has challenged the impugned decision 
dated 27.2.19 and 12.12.17 regarding extension in validity period 
of letter of intent by submitting extended bank guarantee. 

n/a 

27.  W.P 3257/2021 

Title NPGCL 
vs. NEPRA 

I 5.09.2021 

24.09.2021 

Islamahad 1-ugh 
Court 

Petitioner Challenged the decision of NEPRA regarding the 
change of regime from take or pay to take or pay. 

n/a Nill 

28.  W.P 3414/20fl 

Title Jarnshoio 
vs. NEPRA 

Clubbed with ICA 3257/2021 

29.  W.P 3830/21 
PESCO vs. 
NEPRA etc 

27.10.2021 Islamabad 1-ugh 
Court 

n/a Nih 

Wheeling Cases 

30.  W.P 
25814/2020 

Title: NTDC 
vs. NEPRA 

18.09.2020 Lahore I-high 
Court 

Relates to wheeling of electric Power 

____________________________________ 

n/a Nill 

31.  W.PNo. 
25925/2020 

18.09.2020 



Title: LESC€ 
Vs. NEPRA 

32.  W.P.No.26544/ 
2020 FESCO 
vs. NEPRA 

18.09.2020 n/a 

33.  W.P 
No.28404/20 
GEPCO vs. 
N EPRA 

0 
18.09.2020 il/a 

34.  W.P 
No.568/2021 
IESCO vs. 
NEPRA 

11.02.2021 Islanmbad 1-ugh 
Court 

Petitioners impugned determination ofNEPRA regarding cost of 
Wheeling and Challenge vires of NEPRA (wheeling of electric 
power) regulations 2016. 

il/a Rs. 100,000/-. 

35.  W.P 
No.569/2021 
SEPCO vs. 
NEPRA 

11.02.2021 Rs. l00,00O/. 

36.  W.P 
No.570/2021 
MEPCO vs. 
NEPRA 

11.02.2021 Rs. 100,000/-. 

37.  W.P 
No.571/2021 
1-lESCO vs. 
NEPRA 

11.02.2021 Rs. 100,000/-. 

38.  W.P 
No.572/2021 

11.02.2021 Rs. 100,000/-. 



GEPCO vs. 
NEPRA 

39.  W.P 
No.623/2021 
FESCO vs. 
NEPRA 

15.02.2021 Rs. 100,000/- 

40.  W.P 
No.624/2021 
LESCO vs. 
N EPRA 

15.02.2021 Rs. 100,000/-. 

4!. W.P 
No.625/202 I 
PESCO vs. 
NEPRA 

15.02.2021 Rs. 100,000/-. 

42.  W.P 
No.626/2021 
QESCO vs. 
N EPRA 

15.02.2021 Rs. 100,000/-. 

Cases related to 9tPPs Award 

43.  C.A 
No.722/201 
Title: Taisci 
Corporation 
A.M. 
Constructioi 

vs. 

08.08.2012 Suprenic Court 
of Pakistan 

Relates to the issue of "Whether Arbitration Act, 1940 is 
applicable to the 9 IPPs Award". 

n/a Rs. 2 Million 



44.  Civil Origiiil 
Suit No. 428 
2017 Title : 
Atlas Power 
Ltd vs NT1) 

13- 
17.06.20 17 Lahore Iligh 

Court 
An award has been passed in LCIA Arbitration No. 142730 
against CPPA to pay the specified amounts to the 9 IPPs. Atlas 
Power has flied the enforcement Petitions ofthe said award while 
objections are filed by CPPA. 

Rs.600,000/- 

45.  Civil Origiiu 
Suit No. 
428 12/20 17 

Title: Atlas 
Power Ltd vs 
NTDC 

I 17.06.2017 Lahorc 1-ugh 
Court 

Ibid Rs. 600,000/- 

46.  Civil Origim. 
Suit No. 
19263/20 17 
Title: NTDC 
vs. Islamic 
Republic oF 
Pakistan 

I 19.04.2017 Lahore I-ugh 
Court 

Ibid 

47.  Civil Original 
Suit 
169041/201 
Title :Atlas 
Power vs 
NTDC 

29.11 .201 7 Lahore High 
Court 

Ibid Rs. 2,500,000- 

48.  NTDC vs. 

Liberty Power 
Tech. 

24.05.201 8 Civil Court 

Lahore 

These cases are filed by CI'PA to set aside the Interim Award 
issued in LCIA Arbitrations No. 1 73405 & 173706. 



49.  NTDC vs. 
Nishat Chuniin 
Li in ited. 

24.05.2018 

50.  CPLA 31.05.2017 Supreme Court Relates to the Enforcement Petitions for LCIA award in Rs. 500,000/- 

No.1820/20 I 7 of Pakistan arbitration No. 142730 filed against CPPA mentioned at Serial 
No.41-43 

Title: i\tlas 
Power vs 
Islamic 
Republic of 
Pakistan etc., 

51.  Cr1. No. 5754- 03.08.20 17 Lahorc 1-ugh Rs. 600,000- 

17 Court 

Title: Islamic 
Republic of 
Pakistan vs 
Liberty Power 

52.  1.C.A 31697/17 27.05.2017 1.3 million 

Title: Orient 
Power 
Company Pv 
Ltd. etc.vs 
Islamic 
Republic of 
Pakistan etc. 

53.  Cr1. Org. No. 22.05.2017 Clubbed with 1.C.A. No.31697/2017 

29093/2017 
Title: lslami 
Republic of 
Pakistan vs 



Atlas Power 
Ltd.etc 

54.  Civil Rcvisi 
No 10249/2 
Title: Atlas 
Power vs 
NTDC 

ii 
17 

I I .08.201 7 1)istrict Court 
Lahorc 

Relates to the Enforcement Petitions for LCIA award in 
arbitration No. 142730 flIed against CPPA, mentioned at Serial 
No. 4 1-43 

Rs.700,000/- 

55.  Islamic 
Republic of 
Pakistan vs. 
Atlas Power ltd. 

Civil Court 
Lahcrc 

56.  Civil Rcvisicn 
No. 
57600/20 17 
Title: lslami 
Republic of 
Pakistan vs 
Liberty PowL'r 
Tech 

03.08.20 17 Lahore I-ugh 
Court 

Rs. 600,000/- 

57.  W.P. 66100- 
2017 Title: 
Atlas Power 
Ltd etc vs 
Islamic 
Republic of 
Paki stan 

06.09.20 17 Rs. 800,000/- 

58.  W.P. 66145- 
2017 Atlas 

06.09.2017 Rs. 800,000/- 



Power Ltd ct: 
vsNTDC 

59.  NTDC vs Prof 
Douglas Joncs 

05.07.2017 Civil Court, 
Lahore 

Application under section 30 of the Arbitration Act has been filed 
against the Arbitrator for proceeding in 9 IPPs case/Arbitration 
despite the injunction from Pakistani Court. 

Relates to enfrrcement Petitions in 9IPPs award. 

Rs.3 Million 

L/C related cases 

60.  W.P. 
6793/20 15 

Title: Orient 
Power 
Company Lt 
vs. NTDC ci 

I. 

10.03.2015 Lahore l-ligh 
Court 

CPPA has encashed the Letter of Credit of IPP to the tune of US 
$ 2,658,750/- as LDs, and has also deducted PKR. 283.5 million 
as Interest on LDs. The encashment of LCs and the deduction of 
interest thereupon is subject to the outcome of the case. 

$2,658,750!- and 
PKR. 283.5 million 

N/A 

Environment related case 

61.  W.P. 
8960/2019 

Title: Maria 
Khan etc. Vs. 
FOP etc. 

2019 Lahore High 
Court. 

Writ Petition filed by Ms Maria Khan etc. for the lrornotioil of 
renewable energy in power sector. 

n/a Rs. 500,000/- 



Enforcement related to LCJA Arbitration 

62.  NTDC vs 
Edwin Glasgow 
(Liberty Power 
Tech Ltd) 

24.05.2018 Civil Court, 
Lahore 

The case is filed by CPPA to set aside the Final Partial Award 
issued in LCIA Arbitration No. l737O5 & 173706 respectively. 

Rs. 500,000/- 

63.  NTDC vs 
Edwin GIasow 
(Nishat 
Chunian Poier 
Ltd.) 

24.05.2018 Rs. 500,000/- 

64.  NTDC vs. 
Nishat Power 

Civil Court 
Lahore 

Suit is filed to challenge the Final Award issued on 06.07.2020 
in the LCIA arbitration No.173712 titled Nishat Power Ltd vs. 
NTDC. 

Rs.750,000/- 

65.  C.O.S 
No.227789/201 
8 tiled: Nish 
Power Ltd. 
vs.NTDC & 
another 

it 

Lahore I-ugh 
Court 

It is an application u/s 6 of the Recognition & Enforcement 
(Arbitration Agreements and Foreign Arbitral Award) Act, 2011 
regarding the Partial Final Award dated 13-07-2018 as passed in 
LC IA Arbitration No. 173712. 

Rs. 700,000/- 

66.  C.O.S No. 
1440/202 I title: 
Nishat Powr 
ltd. vs. NTDC 
etc. 

Lahore 1-ligh 
Court 

It is an application u/s 6 of the Recognition & Enforcement 
(Arbitration Agreements and Foreign Arbitral Award) Act, 2011 
regarding the final award dated 06-07-2020 as passed in LCIA 
Arbitration No.173712. 

Rs. I Million 

67.  NTDC vs 
Orient Power 

Civil Court 
Lahore 

Objections under section 15 & 16 of Arbitration Act are filed to 
Arbitration Award dated 02.05.2017 in LCIA arbitration award 
153156. 

Rs.500,000/- 



Company 
Limited 

68.  Exc.Petition 
No.2/2020 

Title: Nishal 
Chunian Pover 
Ltd.Vs. NTE)C 
& another 

9.12.2020 Islamahad I-ugh 
Court 

Application Under 6 of the recognition & enforcement 
(Arbitration Agreements & Foreign Arbitral Awards) Act, 2011 
read with other applicable provisions of the Law. 

For the enforcement of final Award 28.10.2019 

Rs. I Million 

69.  Exe.Pctition 
No.3/2020 

Title: Liberty 
Power Ltd.\'s. 
NTDC & 
another 

09.12.2020 Rs. I Million 

Cases related to Recovery/Liquidation 

70.  NTDC vs JPGL 02.09.2013 Civil Court. 
Lahore 

Suit for Recovery pursuant to winding up of Japan Power by 
Lahore High Court, Lahore in C.O. No. 88286 of 2017. 

71.  Execution 
Petition No. 
725/1-2015, 

2015 Civil Court, 
Lahore 

Execution Petition for the enforcement of arbitration award dated 
09.07.2013. 



Title: NTDC 
SEPCOL 

vs 

K-Electric & related Cases 

72.  CP No. D- 
4485/201 2 
Title: M/s SI7E 
Association of 
lndusrty vs 
FOP & others 

20.12.2012 Sindl High 
Court 

Restrained from interfering with the functioning of the PPA & 
supply of electricity. 

73.  SuitNo. 
205/2014 

Title: K-electric 
Limited & 
other vs. FOF 
& others 

06.02.2014 

74.  Suit no. 1728- 
2012 

Title: Abdul 
Karim Khari 
Federation of 
Pakistan & 
Others 

vs 

19.12.2012 

75.  Const.P. 
6254/201 8 
Title: K- 
Electric Ltd.ys 

10.08.2018 Sindh Iligh 
Court 

NEPRA vide its decision rell no. NEPRA/SAT-1/LAD-01/1206 
imposed a tine of PKR 10 million on CPPA. CPPA submits that 
the impugned decision illegal, arbitrary, mala Tide and without 
justification. K-Electric receives 650 MW electricity on a Pl'A 

Rs. 10 million Rs. 150,000/- 



NEPRA & 
another 

signed in 2010 for five years, and the petitioner requested K-
electric to extend the PPA but formal extension has not been 
made till date. 

76.  NTDC vs. K- 
electric 

Civil Court 
lslamabacl 

Principal dispute pertains to recovery of amounts due and 
payable by K-Electric for electricity supplied by Power 
Purchaser. Suit for Recovery before Civil Court Islamabad of Rs. 
83,990 Million along with interest from the date of default. 
pendent lite and till realization of the Decretal Amount and 
Expenses. 

Rs.7,50.000/- 

Cases related to Lalpir & Pakgen 

77.  I.C.A. no. 
575/2016 

Title: GM 
WAPDA vs 
Lalpir Power 
Ltd 

2016 Lahore High 
Court 

The W.1 was agitated for unlawful set-off of LDs which was 
decided in favor of IPP(Lalpir/Pakgen). The same was assailed 
in l.C.A & till date the order of single bench stands suspended. 

Engagement 
made by 
NTDC 

78.  I.C.A. 110. 

577/2016 

Title: GM 
WAPDA vs 
Pakgen Pow)er 
Ltd. 

2016 

79.  I.C.A. 
I 13/2020 

27.04.2020 Islamabad High 
Court 

Rs. I Million 



Title: PSO v 
Lalpir Powci 
Lid. 

The Appellant being aggrieved of Disposal of W.P 

No.3320/2018, 3740/2018,3319/2019 & 424/2019 liled these 
l.C.A.s 

80. 1.C.A. 
114/2020 

Title: PSO v; 
Saba Power 
Ltd. 

27.04.2020 

8l. l.C.A. 
I 15/2020 

Title: PSO v; 
Pakgcn Pow 
Ltd. 

r 

27.04.2020 

82.  1.C.A. 
116/2020 

Title: PSO 
Kohiiioor 

s. 

27.04.2020 

83.  W.P No 
1367/2020 

Title: P50 LId. 
Vs. FOP etc 

13.05.2020 Islaniahad I-ugh 
Court 

Petitioner questions validity of order dated 10-10-2019 passed by 
NEPRA tribunal. 

Rs.400,000/- 

84.  C.P No. 
3720/20 

Savy Link v;. 

Phydo,eic 

14.01.2021 Suprenic Court 

. . 
ol Paistan 

Savy Link has assailed the decision of Peshawar High Court 

whereby the W.P filed by Savy Link is dismissed being meriticss. 



85.  C.O. No. 
1448/21 Lalpir 
Power vs. 
WAIDA 

12.01.202 I Lahorc High 
Court 

Au Award has been passed in ICC case No.23792/1-ITG against 
CPPA to pay specified amounts to both companies i.e.Lalpir 
Power Ltd. & Pakgen Power Ltd. whereby CPPA has filed 
objections 

Rs. 400,000/- 

86.  C.O. 
No.1453/21 

I'itle Pakgcu 
Power Vs, 
WAPDA 

12.01.2021 Rs.400,000/- 

Other Cases 

87.  W.P 173/2022 

L'iraib Encr'y 
Limited vs. 
FOP 

1 8.01 .2022 IsIamabad High 
Court 

Petitioner raised that its request for quarterly indexation has not 
been allowed and instead indexation for O&M Component for a 
certain period was requested. 

The petitioner challenged the decision of NEPRA and C1PA to 
renegotiate the operation and maintenance component of tariff. 

Rs. 
1,000,000/- 

88.  W.P 
56243/2021 

Ali enterprises 
vs. FOP etc 

2021 Lahore Iligli 
Court 

Relates to electricity bill issued by LESCO against the SRO 12 of 
2019 which is US9 cents /Kwh 

n/a Nill 

89.  W.P 
48959/2021 

04.08.2021 Lahore 1-ligh 
Court 

Relates to special relief package of zero rated sector n/a Rs. 100.000/- 



Eniaan 
Weaving 
Factory vs. lop 

90.  l.C.A No. 
1037/2013 

M uhamniad 
Tariq .Javecl 

FOP 
vs. 

28.1 I .2013 Lahore Iligh 
Court 

Challenge! relates to variation in fuel surcharge. u/a N/a 

91.  W.P No 
15298/2020 

NEPRA vs. 
NAB 

06.05.2020 Lahore I-ugh 
Court 

NEPRA has challenged the inquiry under the provisions of NAB 
Ordinance 1999. 

n/a N/a 

92.  Lucky Elcctiic 
Power 
Company LTD. 
vs. CPPA & 
another 

12.04.2022 ADD. I)istrict 
.Judge Zalr lqbal 

Impugned the letter of CPPA to encash LC of Lucky Electric 
Power Company 

Rs.500,000/- 

TAX CASES 

93.  CPPA vs. FOI' 

etc 

2022 lahore high court Rs.500,000/- 

94.  W.P. 39189- 

2016 

Title:CPPA 

F BR etL. 

vs 

2016 Lahore 1-ligh 

Court 

The tax authorities have created a demand ofRs 1.915 billion as 

Advance Tax under section 147 for I & 2 Qytr (2016-17) read 
with section 13 of Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 against which a 
writ petition has been filed in the Lahore High Court. However, 
the Company has already discharged tax liability for the year 2017 



in conipliance with original assessment amended by the CIR 
under section I22(5A) of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 

Decided cases 

Sr. No. Case No. Forum Legal Fee 

95.  W.P. 
1592/2020 

Islamabad High Court. Representation 
made by DAG 
office 

IESCO vs. 
NEPRA 

96.  W.P I605/2)20 

1-IESCO 
NEPRA 

Islaniahad High Court Representation 
made by DAG 
office. 

97.  W.P Islaniabad I-ugh Court Rs. 1,00,000/- 
No.3473/20 17 

Sajjad Haidr 
Vs CEO, CPPA 

98.  W.P 1957- Peshawar I-ugh Court PKRI.00,000/- 
P/2016 

Sarhad Textile 
Mill and others 
VS FOP. 

99.  W.P lslainabad 1-ligh Court Rs. I Million 
No.3320/201 8 

Lalpir Powr 
Limited &o.her 



vs Pakistan 
Water & Power 
Development 
Authority 
&otlicrs 

100. W.P 
No.3319/2018 

Pakgen Power 
Limited VS 
Paki stall 
Power& 
Dcvelopmci 
Authority 

t 

Islamabad 1-ugh Court Rs. 1 million 

101 . R.A No. I 5 
/20 19 

Lalpir Powei 
Ltd Vs Pakistan 
Water and 
Power 
Developmcii 
Authority. 

t 

Islamabad I-high Court Rs. 250,000/- 

102. R.A No.16 
/2019 

Pakgen Power 
Ltd-VS-
Pakistan W 
& Power Lt] 

tCt 

Islamahad High Court Rs. 250,000/- 



103. R.A No.17 
12019 

Saba Power 
Company Pvt 
Ltd-VS-FOP 
Etc 

Islamabad I-ugh Court Rs. 250,000/- 

104. R.A No.1 8 
12019 

Kohinoor 
Energy Ltd-VS
FOP Etc 

- 

IsIamahad High Court Rs. 250,0001- 

105. Suit 
No.1411/2018 
Title: 1-tUB 
vs CPPA 

0 

Siridh 1-ugh Court Rs.2,000,000/- 

106. W.P 
No.2994/201 

Shahtaj Sug 
Mill vs. FO1 

8 

r 

Islamabad I-ugh Court Rs.6,00.000/- 

107. W.P 23 1/20 

Zorlu Solar 
FOP 

9 

's. 

Islamabad I-ugh Court Rs. 500,000/- 

108. STA 1544 
/LB/2019 

CPPA VS 
CTO LHR 

Appellant Tribunal Inland Revenue 



109.  W.P 8146/201 

CPPA Vs FBR 

9 Lahore High Court 

110.  W.P 
No.257691/201 

8 

CPPA Vs FB . 

Lahorc High Court 

111. STR No. 
249724/201 8 

CPPA Vs FU . 

Lahore High Court 

112.  \V .P. No. 
7457/20 18 

CPPA Vs FB 

lahorc II igh Court 

113.  CPPA VS 
Corn in iss I oner 
(Appcals)/F13 R 

Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue 

114.  CPPA VS 
Corninissioner 
(Appeals)/FBR 

Appellatc Tribunal Inland Revenuc 



IDS DATA for the Fiscal Year 202 122 
IPP Name LO Jul-21 Aug-21 • ; Sep-21 Oct21 Nov-21 Dec-21 Jan-22 Feb-22 Mar-22 

AttockGen Ltd 
FO/PFO consumed (kWh) 1,971,792 992,997 6,172,420 1,732,373 84,876 11,965,752 8,485,428 6,912,241 12,381,764 

Capadty Deduction (kWh) - if any 309,663 271,980 176,831 273,084 59,229 92,145 181,967 43,757 627,915 

Atlas Power Ltd 
FO/PFö corsumed (kwh) 1,675,138 329,363 14,246 15,930,426 21,662,307 5,313,554 28,800 1,516,411 13,022,599 

Capacity Deduction(kWh) if any 798,929 302,516 219,318 241,084 16,668 52,341 127,050 35,770 133,635 

Engro Powergeri Qadirpur Ltd. 
FO/PFbcorwumed (kwh) 30,634,417 1,665,571 724,000 1,969,531 - 4,310,690 32,255,746 18,400 - 

Capacity Deduction (kwh) - if any 572,114 1,557,195 2,323,149 2,293,102 2,259,827 1,802,734 1,321,243 1,035,606 - 

Saif Power Ltd 
Eb/ypo consumed (kwh) 673,355 698,216 141,671 4,652,723 7,076,990 82,538,189 - - 1,209,821 

Capacity Deduction (kWh) - if any - - - - - - - - - 

Orient Power Company Ltd 
FO/PFO consumed (kWh) 8,991,056 7,872,759 4,185,054 8,009,821 - 3,172,278 1,592,320 3,243,459 978,367 

Capacity Induction (kwh) - If any 4,957 4,957 5,130 1,539 - - 2,130 - 2,409 

Nishat Power Ltd 
#O/PFO consumed (kWh) 12,030,531 10,110,202 6,722,574 1,455,230 4,490 11,057,638 12,522,452 11,910,355 7,597,092 

Capacity Deduction (kwh) . if any 116,786 232,408 557,769 652,438 28,988 90,035 131,329 17,655 225,249 

Nishat Chunian Power Ltd 
FO/PFO consumed (kwh) 53,224,044 4,422,854 - 557,581 400 446,068 152,903 1,878 907,271 

Capacity Deduction (kwh) if coy 672,135 21,239,847 412,592 771,225 18,561 70,341 73,517 46,528 161,710 

Sapphire Electric Company Ltd 
FO/PFoconsumed (kWh) 1,184,146 1,852,223 7,366,745 4,519,408 2,961,601 9,435,705 . - 1,911,329 

Capacity DeductIon (kwh) - If any 19,823 - - - - - - - - 

Liberty Power Tech Ltd 
FO/PFO consumed (kWh( 27,165,891 2,572,275 2,179,292 3,436,114 - 7,223,974 9,934,709 1,696,935 2,733,103 

Capacity OediJction (kWh) - if any 921,526 274,906 437,697 615,923 32 83,023 263,888 110,413 364,833 

Narowal Energy Ltd. 
FO/PFO consumed (kwh) 3,210,129 6,951,116 1,853,167 2,726,130 167,242 989,556 415,259 62,141 32,192,274 

Capacity Deduction (kWh) - if any - - - - - - - - 

Foundation Daharki Power Company 
FO/PFO consumed (kwh) 34,004 2,990,666 16,598 3,980,750 29,151 561,337 15,750 58,008 190,609 

Capacity Deduction (kwh) - if ony - - - - - - - - - 

Halmore Power Generation Com sany 
P0/Pro consumed (kWh) - - - - - - - - 2,029,984 

Capacity Deduction (kwh) - if uny 415 1,193,741 433,106 699,171 1,243,289 - - - - 

Uch-Il Power Pvt Ltd 
FO/PFO consumed (kWh) 3,224,529 92,467 255,630 103,162 40,853 4,495,686 130,721 265,296 2,598,377 

Capacity Deduction (kWh) - if coy - - - - - - - - - 
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3WC AF FERGUSON&CO. 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

To the members of Central Power Purchasing Agency (Guarantee) Limited 

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Opinion 

We have audited the annexed financial statements of Central Power Purchasing Agency 
(Guarantee) Limited (the Company), which comprise the statement of financial position as at June 
30, 2021, and the income and expenditure statement, the statement of comprehensive income, the 
statement of changes in general fund, the statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and 
notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other 
explanatory information, and we state that we have obtained all the information and explanations 
which, to the best of our knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purposes of the audit. 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, 
the statement of financial position, the income and expenditure statement, the statement of 
comprehensive income, the statement of changes in general fund and the statement of cash 
flows together with the notes forming part thereof conform with the accounting and reporting 
standards as applicable in Pakistan and give the information required by the Companies Act, 
2017 (XIX of 2017), in the manner so required and respectively give a true and fair view of the 
state of the Company's affairs as at June 30, 2021 and of the deficit, and other comprehensive 
loss, the changes in general fund and its cash flows for the year then ended. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as 
applicable in Pakistan. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the 
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are 
independent of the Company in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for 
Accountants' Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants as adopted by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (the Code) and we have fulfilled our other ethical 
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have 
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon 

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the 
information included in the annual report, but does not include the financial statements and our 
auditor's report thereon. 

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not 
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information 
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial 
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, 
based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other 
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard. 

A. F. FERGUSON& CO., Chartered Accountants, a memberfirm of the PwC network 
74-East, 2nd Floor, Blue Area, Jinnah Avenue, P.O.Box 3021, Islarnabad-44000, Pakistan 
Tel: +92 (ii) 2273457-60/2604934-37; Fax: +92 (si) 2277924, 2206473; <www.pwc.com/pk> 
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Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in  
accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and the 
requirements of Companies Act, 2017(XIX of 2017) and for such internal control as management 
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's 
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern 
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the 
Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

Board of directors are responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process. 

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors report 
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee 
that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan will always detect a 
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered 
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the 
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with lSAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional 
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether 
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and 
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for 
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal control. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management. 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of 
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty 
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's 
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we 
are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the 
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our 
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's 
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to 
continue as a going concern. 
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• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, 
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying 
%I !a, 4Shll,gti v,.pin., ... *.

r * - - -- 

We communicate with the board of directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope 
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in 
internal control that we identify during our audit. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion: 

a) proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the Companies 
Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017); 

b) the statement of financial position, the income and expenditure statement, the statement 
of comprehensive income, the statement of changes in general fund and the statement of 

cash flows together with the notes thereon have been drawn up in conformity with the 
Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and are in agreement with the books of account and 
returns; 

c) investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the year were 
for the purpose of the Company's business; and 

d) no Zakat was deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIII of 

1980). 

Other Matter 

Prior Year Financial Statements Audited by Predecessor Auditor 

The financial statements of the Company for the year ended June 30, 2020 were audited by 
another auditor, M/s Riaz Ahmad & Company Chartered Accountants, whose report dated 04 
November 2020 expressed a qualified opinion relating to agency accounting for K-Electric and 
recognition of Delayed Payment Interest (DPI) due from Principals and K-Electric. Further, their 
aforementioned report included emphasis of matter paragraph relating to advance to Lakhra 
Power Generation Company Limited, markup receivable not acknowledged by DISCOs, 
payable to Water and Power Development Authority (WAPDA) and contingencies. 

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor's report is 
Asim Masood lqbal. 

Chartered Accountants 
Islamabad 
Date: December 13, 2021 
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CENTRAL POWER PURCHASiNG AGENCY (GUARANTEE) LIMITED 

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 

AS AT 30 JUNE 2021 

30June 30June IJuly 
2021 2020 2019 

Restated Restated 
NOTE (Rupees in thousand) 

ASSETS 

Non-current assets 

Property and equipment 6 89,292 109,491 94,785 

Intangible assets 7 60,584 36,291 40213 

Right-of-use asset 8 154,887 223,726 292,565 

Deferred income tax asset 9 - - - 
Long term security deposits 10 21,264 21,264 21,264 

326,027 390,772 448,827 

Current assets 

Taxation recoverable - net 11 59,500 45,328 
Advances, prepayments and other receivables 12 142,120 131,599 265,777 

Bank balances - deposit accounts 13 22,070,478 13,969,805 24,520,543 
22,272,098 14,146,732 24,786,320 

Total assets 22,598,125 14,537,504 25,235,147 

FUND AND LIABILITIES 

FUND 

General fund (56,063) 188,155 105,200 

LIABILITIES 

Non-current liability 

Lease liability 14 110,472 183,019 243,178 

Current liabilities 

Accrued and other liabilities 15 22,471,169 14,106,171 24,791,652 

Current portion of lease liability 14 72,547 60,159 49,387 

Provision for taxation 45,730 
22,543,716 14,166,330 24,886,769 

Total liabilities 22,654,188 14,349,349 25,129,947 

Contingencies and commitments 16 

Total fund and liabilities 22,598,125 14,537,504 25,235,147 

The annexed notes I to 30 form an integral part of these financial statements. 



CENTRAL POWER PURCHASING AGENCY (GUARANTEE) LIMITED 

INCOME AND EXPENDITURE STATEMENT 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021 

2021 2020 

INCOME 

NoTE (Rupees irrthuubdrid) 

Market operation fee 17 447413 414,455 
Profit on bank accounts 296,283 458,653 

743,696 873,108 

EXPENDITURE 

Operating expenses 18 (927,237) (775,237) 
Finance cost 19 (25,120) (32,420) 

(952,357) (807,657) 

(DEFICIT) I SURPLUS BEFORE TAXATION (208,661) 65,451 

TAXATION (CHARGE)ICREDIT 20 (32,434) 18,572 

(DEFICIT) I SURPLUS AFTER TAXATION (241,095) 84,023 

The annexed notes 1 to 30 form an integral part of these financial statements. 

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER DIRECTOR CH'I1J - IAL OFFICER 



CENTRAL POWER PURCHASING AGENCY (GUARANTEE) LIMITED 

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021 

2021 2020 
4RLIpees inthauand) 

(DEFICIT) / SURPLUS AFTER TAXATION 

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS 

Items that will not be reclassified to income and expenditure statement: 

(241,095) 84,023 

Remeasurement loss on defined benefit obligation (3,123) (1,068) 

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE (LOSS) I INCOME FOR THE YEAR 

The annexed notes 1 to 30 form an integral part of these financial statements. 

(244,218) 82,955 

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER 
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CENTRAL POWER PURCHASING AGENCY (GUARANTEE) LIMITED 

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN GENERAL FUND 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021 

GENERAL 
JIkL1	  

I JI1I 

(Rupees in 
thousand) 

Balance as at 30 June 2019 105,200 

Surplus for the year 84,023 
Other comprehensive (loss) for the year (1,068) 
Total comprehensive income for the year 82,955 

Balance as at 30 June 2020 188,155 

(Deficit) for the year (241,095) 
Other comprehensive (loss) for the year (3,123) 
Total comprehensive (loss) for the year (244,218) 

Balance as at 30 June 30 2021 (56,063) 

The annexed notes 1 to 30 form an integral part of these financial statements. 

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER "IRECTO 

NS 



Th annexed notes 1 to 30 form an integral part of these financial statetients. 
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CENTRAL POWER PURCHASING AGENCY (GUARANTEE) LIMITED 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

(Deficit) I Surplus before taxation 

Adjustments for non-cash charges and other items: 

Depreciation 
Amortization 
Depreciation on right-to-use asset 
Provision for gratuity 
Profit on bank deposits 
Finance cost 
Cash flows from operating activities before working capital changes 

Working capital changes: 

(Increase) I decrease in current assets 

Advances, prepayments and other receivables 

Increase I (decrease) in current liabilities 

Accrued and other liabilities 

Cash generated from I (used in) operations 

Income tax paid 
Gratuity contribution paid 
Profit on bank deposit received 

Increase in long term security deposits 

Net cash generated from I (used in) operating activities 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 

Capital expenditure on operating fixed assets 
Intangible asset purchased 

Net cash used in investing activities 

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 

Payment of lease liability 

Net cash used in financing activities 

Net increase! (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year (Note 13) 

2021 2020 
Restated 

(Rupees in thousand) 

(208,661) 65,451 

45,084 44,039 
12,033 8,419 
68,839 68,839 
51,544 17,732 

(296,283) (458,653) 
24,809 31,535 

(302,635) (222,638) 

(9,978) 54,566 

8,331,760 (10,689,410) 

8,321,782 (10,634,844) 

8,019,147 (10,857,482) 

(46,606) (72,486) 
(21,429) (14,871) 
295,740 538,265 
227,705 450,908 

8,246,852 (10,406,574) 

8,246,852 (10,406,574) 

(24,885) (58,745) 

(36,326) (4,497) 
(61,211) (63,242) 

(84,968) (80,922) 

(84,968) (80,922) 

8,100,673 (10,550,738) 

13,969,805 24,520,543 

22,070,478 13,969,805 



CENTRAL POWER PURCHASING AGENCY (GUARANTEE) LIMITED 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021 

1. THE COMPANY AND ITS OPERATIONS 

Central Power Purchasing Agency (Guarantee) Limited ("the Company") is a Company limited by guarantee and 
200-9-under the -repealed C-ompame-s-Ordinance, 

1984 (now the Companies Act, 2017). its registered office is situated at 73-West, Shaheen Plaza, Fazal-E-Haq 
Road, Blue Area, Islamabad, Pakistan. The Company is incorporated to function as a not-for-profit organization, 
and the objects, for which the Company is established, are to implement and administer market mechanisms for 
electric power procurement and sale, by undertaking and performing functions and discharging responsibilities 
as are or may be laid down from time to time for the Company to undertake or perform in or pursuant to and in 
the manner prescribed under or pursuant to the provisions of the Regulation of Generation, Transmission and 
Distribution of Electric Power Act, 1997, and in the secondary legislation pursuant thereto, as amended from time 
to time, and to do all such other things as are incidental or conducive to the attainment of or in furtherance of the 
aforesaid objects and in furtherance of the policies, objectives and provisions of or contemplated under the 
aforesaid Act and secondary legislation made thereunder. 

Pursuant to the commencement of National Electric Power Regulatory Authority (Market Operator Registration, 
Standards and Procedure) Rules, 2015 (Market Rules) notified vide SRO 541 (1)/2015 dated 28 May 2015, the 
Company was deemed to be authorized and registered as the market operator under the aforesaid rules to 
commence and conduct the market operations. To enable its function as market operator, the Company signed 
a Business Transfer Agreement (BTA) dated 03 June 2015 with National Transmission and Despatch Company 
Limited (NTDCL), a separate government owned Company. NTDCL transferred its functions, operations, assets 
and liabilities related to the Central Power Purchasing Agency, a department of NTDCL and Contract Registrar 
and Power Exchange Administrator (CRPEA) to the Company (collectively referred to as Market Operations 
Undertaking). 

On 16 November 2018, National Electric Power Regulatory Authority (NEPRA) approved the registration of the 
Company as market operator under Rule 3 of the Market Rules. The Commercial Code of the Company, 
required to be prepared under the Market Rules was also approved by NEPRA under Rule 5 of the Market Rules 
vide SRO 542(1)/2015 dated 02 June 2015 amended vide SRO 912 (1)/2015 and SRO 538 (1)/2016 dated 07 
September 2015, 08 June 2016 and 17 February 2020 respectively. 

The main operations and responsibilities of the Company as defined in the Market Rules are as follows; 

a) To acquire, take over or assume the functions and business of settlement and development of 
competitive power market from NTDCL and to carry on these functions and business; 

b) Procurement of electric power on behalf of the DISCOs, including import of power from other countries; 

c) Generation invoice verification on the basis of meter reading or dispatch scheduling report and term of the 
respective Power Purchase Agreements; 

d) Billing to the DISCOs based on the meter readings at Common Delivery Points as per the procedure 
defined in the Commercial Code; 

e) Collection from the DISCOs and settlement to the market participants as per the Commercial Code; and 

f) Management of cash flow, treasury management and other relevant banking functions for the purposes of 
collection and disbursement as per the Commercial Code. 

As per the Market Rules, the Market Operator (i.e. the Company) shall not, except to the extent specified in the 
terms and condition of registration or in an authorisation, stand surety, give guarantees or in any other manner 
offer or provide security for the indebtedness or obligations of any other person. Further, the payment 
responsibilities of the Company in the role of Market Operator as per the Commercial Code are as follows; 

"The Company in this process (settlement and billing), shall act as an agent of DISCOs without assuming 
payment responsibilities. Payment and debts remain with DISCOs. The Company shall not be held liable 
for non-payment to maricet participants." (Clause 8.8.2) 

1.2 
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The Company has signed Power Procurement Agency Agreements (PPAAs) with government-owned distribution 
companies (DISCOs). Hence, the DISCOs have appointed the Company as their agent to perform the 
designated purposes (i.e. procurement of various electrical and related products contracted under Power 
Purchase Agreements (PPAs) and centralized collection and settlement of products cintracted under PPAs and 
use of system charges and payment by DISCOs to NTDCL and power generation companies, as regulated and 
determined by NEPRA in accordance with Uommerclai Uoaej and procure power for andon behffuftiie 
DISCOs, as per the regulatory framework prescribed by NEPRA and I or under the Commercial Code. The 
liabilities arisen out of power procurement on behalf of DISCOs shall always remain with DISCOs as provided in 
PPAAs as follows: 

Under Article 3.1.7 of the PPAAs; 

uTitle  to the purchased electrical energy and generation capacity procured by CPPA-G for and on behalf of 
DISCO as well as obligation of DISCO to make payment of transmission charge or use of system charge always 
vest in DISCO and shall not pass to CPPA-G at any time." 

And under article 5.6.1 of the PPAAs: 

"The DISCOs shall honor any Power Purchase Agreements entered into by the CPPA-G on behalf of the 
DISCOs pursuant to this Agreement. The DISCO shall be the principal and primary obligor in respect of all 
payments and obligations of the purchaser towards the seller or supplier under the Power Purchase Agreements 
and the transmission use of system charge regulated and determined by NEPRA'. 

Accordingly, the liabilities arisen out of power procurement on behalf of DISCOs shall always remain with 
DISCOs as provided in the Market Rules, Commercial Code and PPAAs. 

1.2.1 The Power Procurement Agency Agreement (PPM) with K-Electric has not been signed till the date of 
authorization for issue of these financial statements as disclosed in note 22.1.1.1. However, the management is 
confident that the PPM with K-Electric will be signed retrospectively. Further, K-Electric has also confirmed that 
PPAA has been duly initialled by both the parties, and expected to be executed after requisite Government I 
regulatory approvals, which entails the scope, powers, rights and obligations of the Company as K-Electric's 
agent including regularisation of pre-existing agency arrangement. 

1.3 As per the Market Rules, the Company's responsibilities include development of competitive market in Pakistan. 
In pursuance of its responsibilities, the Company submitted detailed design for the Competitive Trading Bilateral 
Contract Market (CTBCM) which are approved by NEPRA. The Company is currently in discussion with all the 
relevant stakeholders for the implementation of the CTBCM plan as approved by NEPRA and other relevant 
authorities, 

2. RESTATEMENT OF PRIOR YEAR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

The Company is registered as a Market Operator and its functions include procurement of electric power on 
behalf of the distribution companies. Accordingly, the Company has signed power procurement agency 
agreements with DISCOs whereby the Company has been appointed as an agent of DISCOs for the designated 
purposes and the DISCOs shall be the primary obligor in respect thereof. Further, title to the purchased electrical 
energy and generation capacity procured by the Company for and on behalf of DISCO as well as obligation of 
DISCOs to make payment of transmission charge or use of system charge always vest in DISCOs and shall not 
pass to the Company at any time. The Company's rights, obligations and functions are also defined in the Market 
Rules and Commercial Code which are applicable to all the market participants (market participants include 
market participants representing demand, market participants representing offer and NTDCL). 

In pursuance of the same the Company has entered into power purchase agreements (PPAs) with Government 
Owned Generation Companies (GENCOs) and other power generation companies including Independent Power 
Producers (lPPs) and these agreements have been entered into by the Company on behalf of the distribution 
companies and accordingly, the Company acts as an agent of the Distribution Companies. 

Further as per the PPAs signed with GENCOs, the Commercial Code provides for the levy, settlement and 
recovery of all commercial matters. As per the Commercial Code approved by NEPRA the Company shall act as 
an agent of DISCOs without assuming payment responsibilities. Payment and debts responsibilities remain with 
DISCOs and the Company shall not be held liable for non-payment to market participants. 
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In light of the above laws, regulations and underlying agreements, during the year, the Company has obtained a legal opinion on 
its rights and obligations as a market operator and management has assessed that the Company being a market operator is 
acting as an agent on behalf of DISCOs and K-Electric to procure electricity from power generation companies and collection 
from the DISCOs and K-Electric for settlement to market participants as per the Commercial Code. The Company is responsible 
to issue settlement advices to DISCOs and K-Electric as per the charges billed by power generation companies after verification 
and NTDCL's Use of System Charges. The Company's obligation to pay to the market participants and Power Holding Limited 
(PHL) only arise at the time of receipt of cash from DISCOs and K-Electric. Further, as disclosed in note 1.1 the Company 
signed BTA with NTDCL and as per the legal opinion obtained by the management, the Company is acting as an agent of 
distribution companies in respect of the assets and liabilities transferred to the Company under BTA with NTDCL. 

Accordingly, from the current year, the Company has recorded liability for payments to be made to market participants and PHL 
in respect of designated purposes on behalf of DISCOs and K-Electric (together 'the Principals') to the extent of amount 
received from the Principals but not yet paid by the Company. 

Previously, the Company had recognised due from Principals, receivable from NTDCL through loan notes, markup receivable 
from DISCOs, advances in its role as a Market Operator, energy and other payables and energy payable swapped by 
Government of Pakistan - (Payable to PHL) on gross basis in the statement of financial position. From the current year as 
explained above, the aforementioned balances have been excluded from the statement of financial position and recorded only to 
the extent of amount received from DISCOs and not yet paid to market participants. The adjustments in this respect have been 
retrospectively accounted for in these financial statements and comparative information has been restated; which has not 
affected prior years' income, surplus/deficit for the year and general fund. In accordance with the requirements of lAS-i 
"Presentation of Financial Statements", a third statement of financial position as of 1 July 2019 has also been presented. The 
effects of the restatement are summarised below: 

Statement of financial position 

As at 30 June 2020 

Current assets 

Impact of 
As presented 

restatement 
(Rupees in thousand) 

Restated 

Due from principals 2,236,377,588 (2,236,377,588) 
Receivable from NTDCL through loan notes 41,900,008 (41,900,008) 

Advances, prepayments and other receivables 6,733,391 (6,601,792) 131,599 
Mark-up receivable 46,339,044 (46,339,044) 

Current liabilities 
Energy payables swapped by Government of Pakistan 946,942,400 (946,942,400) 
Energy and other payables 1,398,382,203 (1,398,382,203) 
Accrued and other liabilities 14,106,171 14,106,171 

As at 30 June 2019 

Current assets 
Due from principals 1,709,214,290 (1,709,214,290) 
Receivable from NTDCL through loan notes 41,648,936 (41,648,936) 
Advances, prepayments and other receivables 6,617,352 (6,351,575) 265,777 
Mark-up receivable 45,785,131 (45,785,131) 

Current liabilities 
Energy payables swapped by Government of Pakistan 784,462,871 (784,462,871) 
Energy and other payables 1043,328,713 (1,043,328,713) 
Accrued and other liabilities 24,791,652 24,791,652 

Statement of cash flows 
For the year ended 30 June 2020 

Cash flows from operating activities 

(Increase)! decrease in current assets 
Due from principals (527,163,298) 527,163,298 
Receivable from NTDCL through loan notes (251,072) 251,072 
Advances, prepayments and other receivables (195,651) 250,217 54,566 
Mark-up receivable from principals (553,913) 553,913 

Increase I (decrease) in current liabilities 
Energy payables swapped by Government of Pakistan 162,479,529 (162,479,529) 
Energy and other payables 355,049,561 (355049,561) 
Accrued and other liabilities (10,689,410) (10,689,410) 
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION 

3.1 Statement of compliance 

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as 
applicable in Pakistan. Approved accounting and reporting standards applicable in Pakistan comprise of: 

International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) issued by the International Accounting Standards 
Board (lASB) as notified under the Companies Act, 2017; 

Accounting Standard for Not for Profit Organizations (Accounting Standard for NPOs) issued by the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan as notified under the Companies Act, 2017; and 

Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017. 

Where provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ from the lFRSs or the 
Accounting Standard for NPOs, the provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 have 
been followed. 

3.2 Basis of measurement 

These financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost convention except for certain items as 
disclosed in the relevant accounting policies below. 

3.3 Functional and presentation currency 

These financial statements are presented in Pakistani Rupee (PKR/Rupees) which is the Company's 
functional currency. 

3.4 Significant accounting estimates and areas of judgements 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the approved accounting standards requires the 
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that effect the application of policies and 
related reported amounts of assets and liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and associated 
judgements based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under 
the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making judgernent about carrying value of assets and 
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual amounts may differ from the estimates. 

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting 
estimates are recognized in the period in which estimates are revised if the revision affects only that year, or in 
the year of the revision and any future year affected. 

In the process of applying the Company's accounting policies, the management has made the following 
estimates, assumptions and judgements which are relevant to these financial statements. 

a) Property and equipment and intangible assets 

The Company reviews the method of depreciation and amortization, useful life, residual value of assets 
and value of assets for impairment on an annual basis. Any change in the estimates in the future might 
affect the carrying amount of respective item of property and equipment and intangible asset with a 
corresponding effect on the depreciation I amortization charge and value of assets for possible 
impairment. 
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b) Income tax 

In making the estimates for income tax currently payable by the Company, the management takes into 
account the current income tax laws and the decisions of appellate authorities in the past. This involves 
judgements on future tax treatments of certain transactions. 

Deferred-tax-assets re recegred-for U 
that taxable income will be available against which such losses and credits can be utilized. 

c) Defined benefit plan 

Defined benefit plan requires assumption to be made for future outcomes, the principal ones being in 
respect of increase in salary rate, discount rate used to convert cashflows to current values. The 
assumptions are determined by independent actuary annually. 

d) Leases 

The Company assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease at inception of the contract. This 
assessment involves the exercise of judgment to determine if the control of an identified asset has 
been passed between the parties. Control exists if substantially all of the economic benefits from the 
use of the asset are transferred to the lessee and the lessee has the ability to direct its use for a period 
of time. As per lFRS 16, the Company assess the lease term as the non-cancelable lease term and 
uses incremental borrowing rate as the discount rate to determine the present value of lease payments 
for determination of lease liability and related right to use asset. 

e) Provision for impairment on financial assets 

For the financial assets covered under lFRS 9 "Financial Instruments", the assessment of Expected 
Credit Loss for financial assets require the use of assumption to determine the credit losses, if any, at 
each reporting date. 

f) Agency arrangements 

The Company assesses whether it acts as a principal or agent (i.e. the Company is acting on behalf of 
another entity) in its arrangements/ contracts in the role of a Market Operator. In making this 
assessment, management considers whether it controls the present economic resource and has a 
present obligation to transfer the economic resource as a result of past events or the liabilities and 
assets rest with Principals and other entities and the Company only acts as an agent. Management has 
assessed that liabilities and assets rests with Principal and other parties where the Company only acts 
as an agent. 

4. NEW AND AMENDED STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS 

The following International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS standards) as notified under the Companies 
Act, 2017 are effective for accounting periods beginning from the dates specified below: 

Effective date 
(annual reporting 
periods beginning 

on or after) 

lAS I Presentation of Financial Statements (Amendments) 
lAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and 

Errors (Amendments) 

lAS 16 Property, plant and equipment (Amendments) 
lAS 12 Income Taxes (Amendments) 

January 1,2023 
January 1,2023 

January 1,2022 
January 1, 2023 
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Effective date 
(annual reporting 
periods beginning 

on or after) 

lAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets (Amendments) 

IFRS 3 Business Combinations (mendments)  

IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts (Amendments) 

Annual improvements to IFRS standards 2018 - 2020; 
Amendments to lFRS 9 "Financial Instruments", IFRS 16 " Leases', lAS 41 
'Agriculture" 

Amendments to IFRS 9 "Financial Instruments", lAS 39 "Financial Instruments: 
Recognition and Measurement", IFRS 7 "Financial Instruments: Disclosures", IFRS 4 

Insurance Contracts" and lFRS 16 "Leases" for interest rate benchmark reform - 
Phase 2 

January 1, 2022 

January 1,2022 

January 1,2023 

January 1, 2022 

January 1, 2021 

The management anticipates that the adoption of the above standards, amendments and interpretations in 
future periods will have no material impact on the financial statements other than in presentation I disclosures. 

Further, the following new standards and interpretations have been issued by the International Accounting 
Standards Board (lASS), which are yet to be notified by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan, 
for the purpose of their applicability in Pakistan: 

FRS 1 
IFRS 17 

First-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards 
Insurance Contracts 

The following interpretation issued by the lASS has been waived off by SECP: 

IFRIC 12 Service concession arrangements. 

5. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods presented in these 
financial statements; 

5.1 Property and equipment 

Property and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any. 

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as 
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the 
Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The cost of day to day servicing are charged to 
the income and expenditure statement during the period in which they are incurred. 

Depreciation is charged to the income and expenditure statement on straight line method at the rates specified 
in Note 6. Depreciation on additions to the fixed assets is charged from the month in which the asset is 
available for use and no depreciation is charged for the month in which the property and equipment is 
disposed off 

An item of operating fixed assets is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are 
expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on disposal of the asset which is determined by 
comparing the proceeds from disposal with the carrying amount of property and equipment is included in the 
income and expenditure statement. 
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5.2 Intangible assets 

An intangible asset is recognized if it is probable that future economic benefits that are attributable to the 
asset will flow to the Company and the cost of the asset can be measured reliably. 

Intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortization and any identified impairment loss. 

 Subsaquerit_cosis ara includeft in The assefs_carrying_amaunLo recognizM_as_a_separate_aset,  c  
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the 
Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other costs are charged to income during 
the period in which they are incurred. 

Amortization is charged to income and expenditure statement on straight line method at the rates specified 
in Note 7 from the month in which the asset is available for use and no amortization is charged for the 
month in which intangible asset is disposed off. 

An item of intangible assets is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are 
expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on disposal of the asset which is determined by 
comparing the proceeds from disposal with the carrying amount of intangible asset is incliided in the 
income and expenditure statement. 

5.3 Leases 

The Company assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease at the inception of a contract and whether 
the contract conveys the right to control the use of underlying asset for a period of time in exchange of 
consideration. 

i) Right of use assets 

A right-of-use asset is recognized at the commencement date of a lease. Right-of-use asset is initially 
measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability, adjusted for, as applicable, 
any lease payments made at or before the commencement date net of any lease incentives received, 
any initial direct costs incurred, and an estimate of costs to be incurred in dismantling and removing 
the underlying asset, restoring the site on which it is located or restoring the underlying asset to the 
condition required by the terms and conditions of the lease, unless those costs are incurred to produce 
inventories. 

Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight line basis from the current date over the earlier of 
the end of lease term or the useful life of the right-of-use asset. Where the Company expects to obtain 
ownership of the leased asset at the end of the lease term, the depreciation is charged over its 
estimated useful life. Right-of-use assets are subsequently stated at cost less any accumulated 
depreciation and impairment loss (if any) and are adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. 

The Company has elected not to recognize a right-of-use asset and corresponding lease liability for 
short-term leases with terms of 12 months or less and leases of low-value assets. Lease payments on 
these assets are charged to income as incurred. 

ii) Lease liabilities 

A lease liability is recognized at the commencement date of a lease. The lease liability is initially 
recognized at the present value of the lease payments to be made over the term of the lease, 
discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily determined, the 
Company's incremental borrowing rate. Lease payments comprise of fixed payments less any lease 
incentives receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, amounts expected 
to be paid under residual value guarantees, exercise price of a purchase option when the exercise of 
the option is reasonably certain to occur, and any anticipated termination penalties. The variable lease 
payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are expensed in the period in which they are 
incurred. 
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The lease liability is remeasured when there is a change in the future lease payments arising from a 
change in an index or rate, if there is a change in the amount expected to be payable under a residual 
value guarantee or if there is a change in the assessment of whether the Company will exercise a 
purchase, extension or termination option that is within the control of the Company. 

When the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying 
iiiourit of the rightof-use asset, or is recoruec in tne income ana expenaiture statement ii me 

carrying amount of the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero. 

Lease payments are allocated between a reduction of the liability and a finance cost. The finance cost 
is charged to the income and expenditure statement as finance cost over the lease period so as to 
produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability for each period. 

Further, requirements of lFRS 16 "Leases' have been waived off by SECP in respect of power 
purchase agreements entered by companies up to 01 January 2019. As explained in note 2 to the 
financial statements, the Company has assessed that it acts as an agent on behalf of DISCOs and 
accordingly, there is no impact of the same on these financial statements. 

5.4 Impairment of non-financial assets 

The Company assesses at each statement of financial position date whether there is any indication that 
assets may be impaired. If such indication exists, the carrying amounts of such assets are reviewed to 
assess whether they are recorded in excess of their recoverable amounts. Where the carrying value 
exceeds the recoverable amount, assets are written down to the recoverable amount and the difference is 
charged to the income and expenditure statement. A previously recognized impairment loss is reversed 
only if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the asset's recoverable amount since 
the last impairment loss was recognized. If that is the case, the carrying amount of the asset is increased to 
its recoverable amount. That increased amount cannot exceed the carrying amount that would have been 
determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset in prior years. Such 
reversal is recognized in the income and expenditure statement. 

5.5 Taxation 

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax expense is recognized in statement of 
income and expenditure, as incurred. 

(I) Current tax 

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively 
enacted at the end of the reporting period. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax 
returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It 
establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax 
authorities. The charge for current tax also includes adjustment, where considered necessary, to 
provision for tax made in previous years arising from assessments framed during the year for such 
years. 

(ii) Deferred tax 

Deferred tax is accounted for using the liability method in respect of all temporary differences arising 
from differences between the carrying amount of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and 
the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of the taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are 
generally recognized for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets for all deductible 
temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which 
the deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses and tax credits can be utilized. Deferred tax 
assets are reviewed at each statement of financial position date and are reduced to the extent that it is 
no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realized. 
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Deferred tax is calculated at the rates that are expected to apply to the period when the differences 
reverse based on tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date. 
Deferred tax is charged or credited in the income and expenditure statement, except to the extent that 
it relates to items recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in the fund. In this case the tax 
is also recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in the fund, respectively. 

5.5  PsnndconThignc1es 

Provisions are recognized in the statement of financial position when the Company has a present legal or 
constructive obligation as a result of past event and it is probable that outflow of economic benefits will be 
required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of obligation. Provisions 
are reviewed at each statement of financial position date and adjusted to reflect current best estimate. 

A contingent liability is disclosed when the Company has a possible litigation as a result of past events, 
whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future 
events not wholly within the control of the Company; or the Company has a present legal or constructive 
obligation that arises from past events, but it is not probable that an outflow of resources embodying 
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation, or the amount of the obligation cannot be 
measured with sufficient reliability. 

5.7 Foreign currencies 

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into Pak Rupees using exchange rate at the date of 
transaction. All monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into Rupees 
at exchange rates ruling on the statement of financial position date. Exchange gains and losses, where 
applicable, is credited / charged in income and expenditure statement. 

5.8 Cash and cash equivalents 

For the purpose of cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise of cash at bank. 

5.9 Income recognition 

I) Revenue from contracts with customers 

The Company's net income mainly arises on account of market operation fee received from DISCOs and K-
Electric. The Company is acting as an agent and the title to the energy procured always vest with distribution 
companies (DISCOs) and K- Electric as per Power Purchase Agency Agreements. Revenue is recognised 
when the Company satisfies a performance obligation by transferring a promised good or service to a 
customer. The Company recognises income in respect of market operation fee when services are rendered 
as the performance obligation are generally met over time. The Company uses output method and recognise 
income at the amount invoiced if the Company's right to invoice is based on value of services transferred 
and the amount invoiced represent the value transferred to DISCOs and K-Electric. It is measured at 
transaction price and the method for charging of market operation fee to DISCOs and K-Electric is approved 
by NEPRA in the commercial code. The rate of market operation fee is determined by NEPRA and payable 
by DISCOs and K-Electric on receipt of invoice. 

ii) Interest income on bank deposits 

Profit on bank deposits is calculated using effective interest rate method and recognised in the income and 
expenditure statement. 

5.10 Accrued and other payables and liabilities 

Liabilities for accrued and other payables are carried at cost which is the fair value of the consideration to be 
paid in future for goods and services received, whether or not billed to the Company. 

Where the Company is acting as an agent of the Principals, the liabilities are recognised to the extent of 
remittances received by the Company from the Principals but not yet paid to the power generation 
companies. 
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5.11 Employee benefits 

Salaries, wages and benefits are accrued in the period in which associated services are rendered by 
employees of the Company. The accounting policy for provident and gratuity benefits are described below: 

Provident fund 

The Company operates a contributory provident fund scheme for all its regular employees. Monthly 
contributions are made both the Company and employee @ 5% of the basic salary. 

Gratuity fund 

The Company operates an approved funded gratuity scheme under an independent trust for its regular 
employees who have completed the minimum qualifying period of service as a defined benefit plan. The 
gratuity scheme is managed by trustees. The Company's obligation in respect of the defined benefit plan is 
calculated by estimating the present value of future benefit that employees have earned in return of this 
service in the current and prior periods; that benefit is discounted to determine its present value. The 
defined benefit obligation is calculated annually by an independent actuary using the projected unit credit 
method. The latest valuation was carried out as at 30 June 2021 details of which are disclosed in note 
15.2.1 to the financial statements. 

The interest is calculated by applying discount rate to the net balance of the defined benefit obligation and 
fair value of plan assets. The cost is included in employee benefit expense in the income and expenditure 
statement. 

Past service costs are recognized immediately in income and expenditure statement. 

Remeasurement gain/losses are recognized in other comprehensive income. 

5.12 Financial Instruments 

Financial assets and liabilities are recognized in the statement of financial position when the Company 
become a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. All the financial are derecognized at the time 
when the Company loses control of the contractual rights that comprise of financial assets. All financial 
liabilities are derecognized at the time when they are extinguished that is, when the obligation specified in 
the contract is discharged, cancelled or expired. Any gain or losses on derecognition of the financial assets 
and financial liabilities are taken to the income and expenditure statement. 

a. Classification of financial assets 

The Company classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories: 

- fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL); 

- fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI); and 

- at amortized cost. 

The Company determines the classification of financial asset at initial recognition and the classification 
depends on the Company's business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual cashflow 
characteristics. The Company reclassifies its debt investment when and only when its business model for 

managing those instruments changes. 
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Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at amortised cost: 

- the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets in order 
to collect contractual cash flows; and 

- the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely 
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. 

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at FVTOCl: 

- the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting 
contractual cash flows and selling the financial assets; and 

- the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely 
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. 

By default, all other financial assets are subsequently measured at FVTPL. 

Classification of financial liabilities 

The Company classifies its financial liabilities in the following categories: 

- at fair value through profit and loss ("FVTPL"), or 
- financial liabilities at amortised cost. 

Financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost, unless they are required to be measured at FVTPL 
(such as instruments held for trading or derivatives) or the Company has opted to measure them at FVTPL. 

Initial recognition 

The financial assets are initially recognized at fair value, plus, in case of a financial asset not at FVTPL, 
transaction costs. Transaction cost of financial assets carried at FVTPL are expensed in the income and 
expenditure statement. All financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value and in the case of loans and 
borrowings (if any) and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs. 

Subsequent measurement 

Financial assets and liabilities 

at amortized cost 

Subsequent to the initial recognition, these are measured at effective interest rate method and subject 
to impairment. Gains and losses are recognized in income and expenditure statement when the asset! 
liability is derecognized/ or modified or the assets is impaired. 

at FVTPL 

Subsequent to the initial recognition, these are carried in the statement of financial position at fair 
value with net changes in fair value recognized in income and expenditure statement. 

Financial assets (other than equity instruments) at FVTOCI 

Subsequent changes in the carrying amount are taken through 001, except for the recognition of 
impairment gains or losses, interest income and foreign exchange gains and losses which are 

recognized in income and expenditure statement. 
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Impairment of financial assets 

The Company assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit losses associated with its financial 
assets. The impairment methodology applied depends on whether there has been a significant increase in 
credit risk. 
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expected lifetime losses to be recognised from initial recognition of the receivables. 

Life time ECLs are the ECLs that results from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial 
instrument. 12 months ECLs are portion of ECL that result from default events that are possible within 12 
months after the reporting date. 

ECLs are a probability weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured as the present value 
of all cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference between cash flows due to the entity in accordance with the contract 
and cash flows that the Company expects to receive). 

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off when the Company has no reasonable 
expectation of recovering a financial asset in its entirety or a portion thereof. 

De recognition 

The Company derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Company's obligations are 
discharged, cancelled or they expire. 

I) Financial assets 

The Company derecognises financial assets only when the contractual rights to cash flows from the 
financial assets expire or when it transfers the financial assets and substantially all the associated 
risks and rewards of ownership to another entity. On derecognition of a financial asset measured at 
amortised cost, the difference between the asset's carrying value and the sum of the consideration 
received and receivable is recognised in the income and expenditure statement. In addition, on 
derecognition of an investment in a debt instrument classified as FVTOCI, the cumulative gain or loss 
previously accumulated in the investments revaluation reserve is reclassified to income and 
expenditure statement. in contrast, on derecognition of an investment in equity instrument which the 
Company has elected on initial recognition to measure at FVTOCI, the cumulative gain or loss 
previously accumulated in the investments revaluation reserve is not reclassified, but is transferred to 
statement of changes in equity. 

ii) Financial liabilities 

The Company derecognizes a financial liability (or a part of financial liability) from its statement of 
financial position only when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expired. 
The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and the 
consideration paid and payable, including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is 
recognized in the income and expenditure statement. 

iii) Offsethng of financial assets and financial liabilities 

Financia' assets and financial liabilities are set off and the net amount is reported in the financial 
position if the Company has legally enforceable right to set off the recognized amounts and the 
Company intends either to settle on a net basis or realize the assets and to settle the liabilities 
simultaneously. 



At 30 June 2020 
Cost 
Accumulated depreciation 
Net book value 

97,597 

(69,2341 
28,363 
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6 PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT 

Operating fixed assets 

Furniture 
and fixture 

Leasehold 
improvements 

Electric 
installations 

Vehicles 
Office 

equipment 

14,455 
(7,481) 

(Rupees in thousand)  

19,830 
- (18,546) 

9,314 
(3,98j1 

6,974 1,284 5,333 

6,974 1,284 5,333 

11,697 30,127 43,232 1,851 
(4,540) (5,838) (6,817) (184) (1,991) 
14,131 24,289 36,415 1,100 5,193 

26,152 30,127 43,232 19,830 11,165 
(12,021) (5,838) (6,817) (18,730) (5,972) 
14,131 24,289 36,415 1,100 5,193 

14,131 24,289 36,415 1,100 5,193 
3,307 3,884 1,139 494 

(5,509) (6,238) (8,855) (1831 (2,327) 
11929 21,935 28,699 917 3,360 

29,459 34,011 44,371 19,830 11,659 
(17,530) (12,076) (15,672) (18,913) (8,299) 
11,929 21,935 28,699 917 3,360 

20% 20% 20% 10% 20% 

35,145 

35,145 
(35,145) 

Capital work 
in progress 

Total 

35,145 

169,358 
(74,573) 
94,785 

6.1 Certain assets were transferred to the Company on 03 June 2015 by NTDCL in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Business Transfer Agreement between NTDCL and I 
Company. However, transfer of title of the 4 vehicles (2020: 4 vehicles) in the name of the Company is under process with the Vehicle Registration Author ties. 

Year ended 30 June 30 2021 
Opening net book value 
Additions 
Depreciation (note 18) 
Closing net book value 

At 30 June 2021 
Cost 
Accumulated depreciation 
Net book value 

Annual rate of depreciation (%) 

94,785 
58,745 

(44,039) 
109,491 

228,103 
(118,612) 
109,491 

109,491 
24,885 

(45,084) 
89,292 

252,988 
(163,696) 

89,292 

IT and 
networking 
equipment 

At 30 June 2019 

Cost 
Accumulated depreciation 
Net book value 

Year ended 30 June 2020 
Opening net book value 
Additions I transfers 
Depreciation (note 18) 
Closing net book value 

28,363 
16,061 

(21,9721 
22,452 

113,658 
(91,2061 
22,452 

33% 

90,614 

(44,5651 
46,049 

46,049 
6,983 

(24,6691 
28,363 
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7 INTANGIBLE ASSETS 

            

Enterprise 
Resource 
P1anning 
System 

    

Computer 
Softwares 

and License 
fees 

 

Assets under 
development 
(ote-71-) 

  

Total 

 

         

         

            

At 30 June 2019 

 (Rupees in thousand)  

Cost 37,543 4,191 9,569 51,303 

Accumulated amortization (10,441) (649) (11,090) 

Netbookvalue 27,102 3,542 9,569 40,213 

Year ended 30 June 2020 

Opening net book value 27,102 3,542 9,569 40,213 

Additions during the year 131 3,080 1,286 4,497 

Amortization charge (note 18) (7,539) (880) (8,419) 
Closing net book value 19,694 5,742 10,855 36,291 

At 30 June 2020 

Cost 37,674 7,271 10,855 55,800 

Accumulated amortization (17,980) (1,529) (19,509) 

Net book value 19,694 5,742 10,855 36,291 

Year ended 30 June 2021 

Opening net book value 19,694 5,742 10,855 36,291 

Additions during the year 33,348 2.978 36,326 

Transferred to operating intangible assets 4,750 (4,750) 

Amortization charge (note 18) (7,534) (4,499) (12,033) 
Closing net book value 12,160 39,341 9,083 60,584 

At 30 June 2021 

Cost 37,674 45,369 9,083 92,126 

Accumulated amortization (25,514) (6,028) (31,542) 

Netbookvalue 12,160 39,341 9,083 60,584 

Annual rate of amortization (%) 20% 20% 

7.1 As at 30 June 2021 the assets under development represents payment made in respect of implementation 
of Enterprise Resource Planning Solution (Phase Ii) and Electricity Load Forecast Tool which are under 
development. 
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8 RIGHT-OF-USE ASSET 

Opening net book value 

2021 2020 
Rupees In thousand 

223,726 
Right of use asset recognized on adoption of lFRS 16 as at July 1, 2019 292,565 

(68,839) (68,839) uepreiationtha f1 the-year-(note i8)  
Closing net book value 154,887 223726 

Cost 292,565 292,565 
Accumulated depreciation (137,678) (68,839) 
Net book value 154,887 223,726 

Annual rate of amortization (%) 20% 20% 

8.1 The Company obtained building on lease for office use. Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis 
and contain a wide range of different terms and conditions. The lease period is from 01 October 2018 to 30 
September 2023 (5 years). 

9 DEFERRED INCOME TAX ASSET 

Deferred tax asset as at 30 June 2021 to the extent of Rupees 79.166 million (2020: Rupees 17.751 
million) has not been recognized as the Company is uncertain about the timing and extent of future taxable 
income against which such benefits can be utilized. 

This comprises of following: 

Deferred tax asset on deductible temporary differences in respect of: 

2021 2020 
Rupees in thousand 

Unused tax losses 32,697 
Unused tax depreciation and amortisation 10,465 
Accelerated accounting depreciation I amortization 13,452 7,354 
Leases 8,158 5,641 
Provision for staff benefits 14,394 4,756 

79,166 17,751 

Less: Unrecognized deferred tax asset (79,166) (17,751) 

Unused tax business losses of Rs 112.749 million will expire in the tax year 2027. 

10 LONG TERM SECURITY DEPOSIT 

These deposits are not carried at present value as the impact was considered not material. 

11 TAXATION RECOVERABLE - NET 
2021 2020 
Rupees in thousand 

Balance at the beginning of the year 45,328 (45,730) 
Provision (made) I reversed during the year - net (32,434) 18,572 
Income tax paid I deducted at source during the year 46,606 72,486 

Balance at the end of year  595O0 45328  
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12 ADVANCES, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 
2021 2020 

Note Rupees in thousand 

Advances - unsecured, considered good: 
Staff advances 

       

  

1,662 

   

1,704 

4,680 

7,573 

99,718 

19,628 

Advances to suppliers 

  

n_A_f_n-,  

H 

 

   

    

   

33,289 

22,009 

66,651 

20,171 

   

Prepaid expenses 
Other receivables from NTDCL - a related party 
Accrued profit on bank accounts 

12.1 

    

        

142,120 131,599 

12.1 This includes amount of Rupees 44.257 million (2020: Rupees 99,718 million) on account of advance given 
for custom clearance for import of energy from Tavanir which is recoverable from NTDCL and Rupees 
22.394 million (2020: Rupees nil) on account of receivable from NTDCL against pension contribution of 
NTDCL employees permanently absorbed in the Company during the year who were previously serving on 
deputation in the Company from NTDCL and the same shall be placed in the gratuity fund of the Company 
upon realisation. The aggregate maximum amount due from NTDCL at the end of any month during the 
year was Rupees 66.651 million (2020 : Rupees 99.718 million). 

13 BANK BALANCES - DEPOSIT ACCOUNTS 

Note 2021 2020 
(Rupees in thousand) 

Balance in escrow account 13.1 10,794,357 3,910,985 

Cash at bank 13.2 11,276,121 10,058,820 

13.3 22,070,478 13,969,805 

13.1 This represents restricted cash amounting to Rupees 1.140 million (2020: Rupees 4.757 million) and 
Rupees 10,793 million (2020: Rupees 3,906 million) held in escrow account for payment to WAPDA Hydel 
and escrow account for profit / rental payments of Pakistan Energy Sukuk-I I Sukuk-Il, respectively. 

13.2 This includes cash at bank amounting to Rupees 11,275.152 million (2020: Rupees 10,058.775 million) 
collected from the Principals as at the reporting date pending settlement among the market participants by 
the Company as per the Commercial Code. Cash at bank amounting to Rupees 0.969 million (2020: 
Rupees .045 million) is held by the Company for running its operations. 

13.3 The balances in deposit accounts carry mark up which ranges from 3.45 % to 6.10% (2020: 3.45% to 
6.50%) per annum. 

14 LEASE LIABILITY 
Note 2021 2020 

Rupees in thousand 

Total lease liability 
Less: Current portion shown under current liabilities 

183,019 243,178 

(72,547) (60,159) 

 

110,472 183,019 
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14.1 Reconciliation of lease liability 

2021 2020 
Rupees in thousand 

Opening balance 243178 
Lease liability recognised on adoption of FRS 16 on 01 July 2019 292,565 
Unwinding ot interest on tease iiabiF 24809  31535  
Payments during the year (84,968) (80,922) 
Closing balance 183,019 243,178 
Less: Current portion shown under current liabilities (72. 547) (60.159) 
Non-current portion 110,472 183,019 

15 ACCRUED AND OTHER LIABILITIES 

Payable by the Company to the market participants 

Note 2021 2020 
Restated 

Rupees in thousand 

representing offer* 11,018,622 9,908,632 
Payable to Power Holdings Limited (PHL) in respect of 

energy payables swapped by GoP 13.1 10,793,217 3,906,228 
Neelum Jhelum surcharge 15.1 61,247 44,326 
Electricity duty 15.1 196,423 110574 
Accrued and other payables by the Company 15.2 401,660 136,411 

22,471,169 14,106,171 

*As  per Commercial code, the power generation companies licenced by the NEPRA, having PPA signed 
by, assigned to administer by the Company on behalf of DISCOs have been defined as market participants 
representing offer. 

15.1 These represent Neelum Jhelum surcharge and Electricity Duty collected from IPPs on Back Feed billing 
(also known as Export Energy billing which means issuing electricity bills to IPPS for importing electricity 
from National Grid at rates determined by NEPRA) and payable to Government of Pakistan on demand. 

15.2 Accrued and other payables by the Company 

Advance from DISCOs and K-Electric (related parties) against 

Note 2021 2020 
Rupees in thousand 

market operation fee - unsecured 250,736 34,823 
Withholding tax payable 1,371 1,558 
Payable to employees contributory provident fund 1,676 9 
Payable to employees gratuity fund 15.2.1 72,031 16,399 
General sales tax payable - net 6,488 8,975 
Payable to suppliers 9,136 9,363 
Accrued and other liabilities 60,222 65,284 

401,660 136,411 
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15.2.1 Payable to employees gratuity fund 

The latest actuarial valuation was carried out at 30 June 2021, using the projected unit credit actuarial cost method. 
The amounts recognised in financial statements are determined as follows: 

8tatemen4-of fi-rancla4-pGs1-tion 

2021 2020 
(Rupees in thousand) 

Present value of defined benefit obligation 123,612 49,819 

Less: Fair value of plan assets (51,581) (38,112) 

Benefits due but not paid - 4,692 
Balance sheet liability 72,031 16,399 

Movement in present value of defined benefit obligation 

Present value of defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the year 49819 32,913 

Current service cost 20,664 17,046 

Past service cost 53,190 - 

Interest cost on defined benefit obligation 3,968 4,690 

Benefits due but not paid - (4692) 

Benefits paid (6,273) - 
Remeasurement loss recognised in other comprehensive income 2,244 (138) 
Present value of defined benefit obligation at end 123,612 49,819 

Movement in present value of plan assets 

Fair value of plan assets at the beginning of the year 38,112 20,443 

Contributions 21,429 14,871 

tnterest income on plan assets 3,884 4,004 

Benefits paid during the year (10,965) - 

Remeasurement loss recognised in other comprehensive income (879) (1,206) 
Fair value of plan assets at end 51,581 38,112 

Expenses recognised in the income and expenditure statement 

Current service cost 20,664 17,046 

Past service cost 53,190 

Interest cost on defined benefit obligation 3,968 4,690 

Interest income on plan assets (3,884) (4,004) 
73,938 17,732 

Less: Past service cost to be paid by NTDCL 12.1 (22,394) 
51,544 17,732 

Remeasurement loss recognised in other comprehensive income 

Remeasurement loss on defined benefit obligation 2,244 (138) 

Remeasurement loss on planned assets 879 1,206 
Remeasurement loss recognised in other comprehensive income 3,123 1,068 

Movement in net liability recognised in statement of financial position 

Opening liability 16,399 12,470 

Expenses for the year recognised in income and expenditure statement 51,544 17,732 

Past service cost reimbursable by NTDCL 22,394 

Remeasurement loss recognised in other comprehensive income 3,123 1,068 

Contributions (21,429) (14,871) 
Closing liability 72,031 16,399 
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Significant actuarial assumptions 
2021 2020 

(Rupees in thousand) 

Discount rate used for year end obligation 
Salary increase rate used for year end obligation 
Next salary is increased at 
Mortality rates  

Withdrawal rates 

Duration of obligation 

10.25% 
9.25% 

01 July 2021 
SLIC 2001-2005 

etoacK 

Moderate 

11 

8.50% 
7.5% 

01 July 2020 
SLIC 2001-2005 
a St I 

Moderate 

9 

The Company expects to make a contribution of Rs 102,196 million to the employee gratuity fund trust during the 
next financial year which includes Rs 22.394 million receivable from NTDCL. Further, the expected expense for the 
next year amounts to Rs 30.165 million. 

Plan assets comprise: 

30 June 2021 30 June 2020 

Government Bonds 98.78% 
Others - 98.45% 
Cash at bank 1.22% 1.55% 

100.00% 100.00% 

Year end sensitivity analysis on defined benefit obligation 

Rupees in 
thousands 

Discount rate +100 bps 111,603 
Discount rate -100 bps 137,810 
Salary increase +100 bps 137,963 
Salary increase -100 bps 111263 

Expected benefit payments for next 10 years and beyond 

Rupees in 
thousands 

Financial year 2022 5,761 
Financial year 2023 9,568 
Financial year 2024 10,299 
Financial year 2025 22,013 
Financial year 2026 10,354 
Financial year 2027 10,653 
Financial year 2028 51,648 
Financial year 2029 29,754 

Financial year 2030 7,721 

Financial year 2031 30,813 

Financial year 2031 onwards 3,048,888 
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The Company faces the following risks on account of defined benefit plan: 

a) Discount Rate risk - The risk of changes in Discount Rate, since Discount Rate is based on corporate/government 
bonds, any decrease in bond yields will increase Plan liabilities. 

b) Salary Increase I Inflation risk - The risk that the actual salary increase are higher than the expected salary increase, 
where benefits are linked with final salary at the time of cessation of service, is likely to have impact on liability. 

c) Mortality Risk - The risk that the actual mortality experience is lighter than that of expected i.e. the actual life 
expectancy is longer than assumed. 

d} Withdrawal Risk - The risk of actual withdrawals experience may be different from that assumed in the calculation 
which can impose a risk to the benefit obligation. The amount of liability can go either way. 

16 CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 

CONTINGENCIES 

16.1 The Company filed a tax reference on 13 June 2018 before Lahore High Court (LHC) against Appellate Tribunal Inland 
Revenue (ATIR) followed by Commissioner Inland Revenue (Appeals) (ClR(A)) wherein the order of Assistant 
Commissioner Inland Revenue (ACIR) creating demand of Rupees 1,514 million, Rupees 816 million and Rupees 934 
million for tax years 2016 and 2017 vide notices dated 11 January 2017 and 10 August 2017 under section 153(1)(b) of 
the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001, as final settlement for withholding of tax from use of system charges was upheld. The 
taxation authorities have recovered tax amounting to Rupees 1,751 million against the collective demand of Rupees 
3,264 million through attachment of bank accounts of the Company whereas the Company recovered/adjusted that tax 
from NTDCL as required under section 161 (2) of ITO, 2001 and obtained stay from LHC against remaining outstanding 
demand, On 07 November 2018, LHC set aside the orders of ATIR and CIR(A) and remanded back the case to the 
taxation officer for re-determination of tax liability. NTDCL has not yet acknowledged the recovery made by the 
Company in respect of this matter. 

16.2 Tax authorities have issued a show cause notice on 08 May 2019 disallowing the input tax of Rupees 3,291 million 
(2020: Rupees 3,291 million) claimed on invoices of GENCO-Ill in October 2017, which has been challenged before the 
Honourable Lahore High Court on 30 August 2019, being illegal, unlawful and without jurisdiction and having no legal 
effect which matter is pending adjudication. Lahore High Court had granted interim relief to the Company till the next 
date of hearing. Further, subsequent to year end, Lahore Court has disposed off the petition filed by the Company on 
25 October 2021 as the show cause notice was withdrawn by tax authorities. 

16.3 Tax authorities issued show cause notice for tax liability of Rupees 5,567 million on 20 November 2018 on account of 
turnover tax and super tax under the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001, assuming that the settlement of power generators 
invoices to DISCOs are the sales of the Company. The Company has filed writ petition against the show cause in 
Lahore High Court on 20 December 2018 where the matter is pending adjudication. Lahore High Court has suspended 
the show cause notice till the next date of hearing. 

16.4 Tax authorities have issued two show cause notices amounting to Rupees 46,790 million and Rupees 62,640 million on 
23 August 2016 and 07 February 2017 respectively for the year 2015-16 in respect of sales tax on account of 
suppression of sales / inadmissible input, the claim against which writ petitions have been filed in IsIamabad and 
Lahore High Courts on 14 October 2016 and 28 March 2017 respectively which are still to be decided. The Company 
has obtained stay till the next date of hearing for the writ petitions filed in Islamabad and Lahore High Courts. The 
revised monthly sales tax return supported by complete record including sales tax invoices, supply registers have been 
provided to FBR. The matter was resolved with FBR and a MOU was signed with FBR on 24 June 2017 and as a result 
commissioner IR condoned/allowed issuance of credit notes for Rupees 6,094 million to DISCOs. MOU includes a 
clause that FBR would only proceed further if any discrepancy of non compliance would be observed in this regard and 
no notice has been received from FBR subsequent to the signing of MOU. Further, subsequent to year end, Lahore 
High Court has disposed off the petition filed by the Company to on 25 October 2021 along with suspension of the 
show cause notice issued by tax authorities. 

16.5 Tax authorities have issued notice dated 7 January 2019 stating that input sales tax credit for the tax period December 
2015 and March 2016 amounting to Rupees 466.266 million claimed prior to registration is not allowable in term of 
section 59 of the Sales Tax Act 1990. The Company has filed writ petition to challenge the impugned notice in Lahore 
High Court on 12 February 2019 and show cause notice is suspended by the Lahore High Court till next hearing. The 
Company considers that the impugned notice is liable to be declared as illegal and without jurisdiction. 
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COMMITMENTS 
2021 2020 

(Rupees in thousand) 
Contractual commitments of the Company: 

- in respect of intangibles 18,341 23,673 
- m respect OtpToprty id c.uipiiiiit 92g: - 

27,634 23,673 

MARKET OPERATION FEE 

Market operation fee 518,899 480,767 
Less: sales tax (71,586) (66,312) 

447,413 414,455 

17.1 This represents market operation fee determined by National Electric Power Regulatory Authority 
(NEPRA) for the administration, maintenance and implementation of the Commercial Code, NEPRA 
(Market Operator Registration, Standards and Procedure) Rules, supervision of compliance by 
market participants and billing, collection, settlement and payments procedures. 

OPERATING EXPENSES 
Note 

2021 2020 
(Rupees in thousand) 

Salaries and other benefits 18.1 & 18.2 643,116 535,249 

Repair and maintenance 5,325 7,114 

Legal and professional 27,474 22,524 
Directors' meeting fee 18,750 17,125 

Auditor's remuneration 18.3 2,830 804 
Depreciation 6 45,084 44,038 
Amortization 7 12,033 8,419 
Depreciation on right-to-use asset 8 68,839 68,839 

Rent 4,550 2,892 

Utilities 9,764 6,920 

Communication 9,094 7,254 

Travelling 5,024 5,454 

Vehicles' running . 8,577 6,136 
Training expenses 4,254 15,440 
Office supplies 7,024 5,834 

Printing and stationery 2,925 3,379 

Fee and subscriptions 33,222 11,234 

Advertisement 10,649 1,832 

Security services expenses 2,373 2,356 

Miscellaneous 6,330 2,394 

927,237 775,237 

18.1 This includes salaries paid to employees of NTDCL transferred to the Company on deputation 
amounting to Rupees 71.16 million (2020: Rupees 77.34 million). 

18.2 Salaries and other benefits include provident fund arid gratuity fund charge of Rupees 9.535 million 
and Rupees 51.54 million (2020: Rupees 8.19 million and Rupees 17.73 million) respectively by the 
Company. 

16.6 

17 

18 
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Auditor's remuneration 

Audit fee 
Audit fee - Employees retirement funds 

2021 2020 
(Rupees In thousand) 

2,315 638 
290 166 

Out of pocket expenses 

2,830 804 

Audit fee includes sales tax of Rupees 359,310 (2020: Rupees 104,000). 

FINANCE COST 

2021 2020 
(Rupees In thousand) 

Imputed interest on lease liability 24,809 31,535 
Bank charges 311 885 

25,120 32,420 

TAXATION 

Current tax: 
- current year 35,793 73,267 
- prior year (3,359) (91,839) 

32,434 (18,572) 

ReconciliatIon of tax charge for the year 

(Deficit)/income before tax (208,661) 65,451 

Tax at applicable rate of 29% (60,512) 18,981 

Tax effect of minimum tax on certain income / expenses 35,793 33,156 

Tax effect of prior year (3,359) (91,839) 

Deferred tax asset not recoanized 61,417 17,725 

Others (905) 3,405 

3434 (18,572) 

PROVIDENT FUND RELATED DISCLOSURE 

The investments of provident fund have been made in accordance with the provisions of section 218 
of the Companies Act, 2017 and the rules formulated for this purpose. 

22 BALANCES BE1WEEN THE MARKET PARTICIPANTS THROUGH THE COMPANY IN ITS 
AGENCY ROLE AS A MARKET OPERATOR NOT REFLECTED IN THESE FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS 

The Company is acting as an agent of DISCOs and K-Electric in respect of designated purposes as 
explained in note 1.2 to the financial statements. Accordingly the Company performs verification of 
invoices submitted by power generation companies, under PPAs signed by the Company on behalf 
of DISCOs. The Company calculates the transfer charge on monthly basis for the settlements 
between the market participants in accordance with the applicable provisions of the Commercial 
code. Details of amount due to I from market participants and PHL (in respect of energy payables 
swapped by GOP) through the Company as at the reporting date and not reflected in these financial 
statements are as follows: 

18.3 

18.3.1 

19 

20 

20.1 

21 
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22.1 Details of payables I receivables between the market participants as on June 30, 2021 has been provided 
as under; 

Note 2021 2020 
(Rupees in thousand) 

Payable by market participants representing demand 22.1.1 2,478,188,894 2,282,716,632 
Eatable by NTDCL through loan notes,  

a Government owned entity 22.1.2 b, 1oi,o 4-1900,008 
Advance paid to Lakhra Power Generation on demand on 

behalf of market participants 22.1.3 5,490,877 5,490,877 
Advance payment to Collector of Customs 308,915 

2,510,449,622 2,330,416,432 

Receivable by market participants representing offer 22.1.4 1,678,316,064 1,398,090,892 
Payable by HUBCO 22.1.5 (802,000) (802,000) 
Energy payables swapped by Government of Pakistan 22.1.6 854,747,397 946,942,400 

2,532,261,461 2,344,231,292 
Less: Payable by the Company to market participants and in 
respect of energy payables swapped by GoP and recorded in 
financial statements 15 (21,811,839) (13,814,860) 

2,510,449,622 2,330,416,432 

*Market participants means the licenced ten Ex-Wapda DISCOs which shall share the power pool as per the 
power pool allocation currently operated by the system operator and K-Electric. 

Note 2021 2020 
(Rupees in thousand) 

22.1.1 Payable by market participants representing demand * 22.1.1.1 & 
22.1.1.1.2 

Government owned distribution companies 

Lahore Electric Supply Company Limited (LESCO) 246,094,143 218,728,774 
Faisalabad Electric Supply Company Limited (FESCO) 98,880,996 111,560,005 
Multan Electric Power Company Limited (MEPCO) 160,617,659 170,744,651 
Quetta Electric Supply Company Limited (QESCO) 467,655,664 392,142,381 
Gujranwala Electric Power Company Limited (GEPCO) 23,853,376 43,564,188 
Islamabad Electric Supply Company Limited (IESCO) 99,991,836 151,977,407 
Peshawar Electric Supply Company Limited (PESCO) 450,035,096 413,155,675 
Tribal Areas Electric Supply Company Limited (TESCO) 30,684,119 27,600,500 
Hyderabad Electric Supply Company Limited (HESCO) 333,127,693 282,106,660 
Sukkur Electric Power Company Limited (SEPCO) 303,720,784 255,670,600 

2,214,661,366 2,067,250,841 

K-Electric Limited 22.1.1.3 292,114,721 212,526,747 
Tariff Differential Subsidy - unallocated 22.1.1.4 (53,826,046) (43,400,000) 
Markup on energy payables swapped by GoP 22.1.1.5 25,238,853 46,339,044 

2,478,188,894 2,282,716,632 

22.1.1.1 These represent amounts due against settlement of energy to DISCOs and K-Electric. The Company has 
signed Power Procurement Agency Agreements (PPAAs) with all DISCOs to perform the designated purposes 
on the terms and conditions set forth in the agreements subject to the stipulations prescribed by NEPRA and / 
or Commercial code. Power Procurement Agency Agreement with K-Electric has not been signed till the date of 
authorization of these financial statements. The GoP has approved the withdrawal of electricity by K-Electric 
from the previous limit of 650 MW to 1100 MW as temporary arrangement. The capacity limit may be enhanced 
to 2050 MW by the year 2023. The PPM between CPPA-G and K-Electric has been agreed for withdrawal of 
electricity by K-Electric upto 2050 MW. The agreed PPAA would be signed by the parties after approval of GoP 
and NEPRA. There will be two effective dates for the PPAA, one for the electricity withdrawn by K-Electric from 
2015 for 650 MW to 1100 MW and the second one will be prospectively from the actual enhancement. 



-24- 

22.1.1.2 DISCOs and K-Electric have not yet acknowledged delay payment interest (DPI) amounting to Rupees 223,920 
million (2020: 196,890 million) and Rupees 84,242 million (2020: 58103 million) respectively from the period 
2009 to 2021, This includes DPI charged to DISCOs and K-Electric amounting to Rupees 110,630 million 
transferred from NTDCL under BTA for the period 2009 to 2015 which has not been acknowledged on the 
grounds that NEPRA has disallowed the respective DISCOs and K-Electric for claiming these charges in their 
tariff determination. Further, NEPRA has allowed the DISCOs to offset DPI after 2015 to the extent of late 
pvment charges recovered from consumers by the DISCOs. 

On 29 June 2018, the Company filed petition with NEPRA for regularization of DPI amounting to Rupees 
110,630 million vide letter No. CPPA-G12018/CEO/5924-25 followed by the reminders dated 17 October 2018, 
29 May 2019, 15 January 2020, 19 June 2020, 21 July 2020 and 2 September 2020. On 3 November 2020, 
NEPRA vide letter number NEPR.AJADG(TarifflfTRF-100/39259) decided that the consumer end tariff is 
determined in accordance with the Tariff (Standards and procedures) Rules -1998 and that the matter has 
already been settled which was notified in the official gazette and is now past and closed transaction and cannot 
be considered and allowed retrospectively. Subsequently, the Company vide letter number 
CFO/DGMF(CA&T)/(B&R)/Rec18586-87 dated 9 July 2021 filed reference with Ministry of Energy (Power 
Division) Government of Pakistan (GoP) for regularisation of DPI not acknowledged by DISCOs including 
Rupees 110,630 million transferred under BTA. On 25 August 2021, GoP in a meeting held with DISCOs 
decided to take up the matter with DISCOs for early resolution and afterwards the Company will issue necessary 
adjustments to DISCOs in this regard. 

The matter is pending for settlement till the date of authorisation of these financial statements. 

22.1.1.3 NTDCL entered into Energy Supply Agreement (ESA) with K-Electric on 26 January 2010 which expired in 
January 2015. According to expired ESA, the invoice for every month is to be cleared by K-electric within 15 
days while the remaining amount payable along with next month invoice. Mark-up © KIBOR plus 3% is 
chargeable on any delayed payment of invoices. The Company has filed a suit for recovery of Rupees 83,990 
million not acknowledged by K-Electric along with interest from the date of default against K-Electric in Civil 
Court, Islamabad where the matter is pending adjudication and next hearing is fixed on 12 October 2021 for 
announcement of the orders on the said application. K-Electric is of view that this should be adjusted against its 
subsidy receivable from GoP. 

The ECC has accorded approval in principle for agreed draft of arbitration agreement for the settlement of 
receivables I payables, including subsidy payable by GOP, between K-Electric and Government departments 
including the Company/NTDCL and has empowered the arbitrator to take final decision thereof. The Federal 
Government Cabinet has ratified the ECC decisions as on 08 June 2021. The proceedings of civil suit by the 
Company shall be subject to the resolution under the said arbitration agreement. The Privatization Commission 
will provide the secretarial support for coordination among the different Government Divisions or Entities. 

As per the Draft Arbitration Agreement, arbitrator will determine the outstanding receivable from and payable to 
K-Electric by the Government department and the same shall be set off by the arbitrator to settle the past 
payables and receivables of the K-Electric. The ECC has constituted an inter-ministerial committee under the 
convenorship of Minister for Planning, Development and Special Initiatives with secretariat support by 
Privatization Commission of Pakistan. 

As per the draft arbitration agreement as mentioned above, the parties to the agreement have agreed on the 
settlement of any dispute arising out of or in connection with the claims of either parties by arbitration, through 
the sole arbitrator appointed in accordance with the Terms of Reference (ToRs) which is yet to be finalized 
between both the companies. In pursuance to the above, the recovery suit filed by the Company against K-
Electric in Civil Court, Islamabad would be withdrawn after the signing of Arbitration agreement. 

22.1.1.4 This represents unallocated balance of economic stimulus package of Rupees 46,200 million, Prime Minister's 
Relief package of Rupees 3,960 Million for small and medium size enterprises (SMEs) on account of COVID-19 
pandemic, subsidy received for small and medium size enterprises (SMEs) AJK & Gilgit Baltistan of Rupees 
2,500 million, Zero rated industrial rebate of Rupees 1,146 million. This balance will be allocated to DISCOs in 
accordance with Government's directions which are still awaited. 
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22.1.1.5 This represents aggregate net receivable from DISCOs on account of mark-up on energy payable swapped by 
Government of Pakistan amounting to Rs 290,682 million as explained in Note 22.1.6. These balances are paid 
to Power Holding Limited (PHL) on account of markup and recovered by DISCOs through levy of Finance Cost 
Surcharge (FCS) from final consumer as determined by NEPRA and repaid to the Company by DISCOs. The 
markup was initially charged to DISCOs in prior years and certain DISCOs did not acknowledge the transfer of 
this mark-up amounting to Rupees 53,937 million (2020: Rupees 53,937 million). However after levy of FCS, 
DISCOs_navjhe FCS to the Company, after collection from the consumers. Accordingly, the markup receivable 
from DISCOs as at June 30, 2021 amounts to Rs 25,238 million (2020: t-s 4b,ii miitoriTtT moun-t--iz--te bc 
paid by DISCOs through levy of FCS from consumers. 

Note 2021 2020 
(Rupees in thousand) 

22.1.2 Payable by NTDCL through loan notes 22.1.2.1 

Loan note payable by NTDCL 42,412,169 42,412,169 
Net worth transferred back to NTDCL in FY 2018-19 (7,163,223) (7,163,222) 
Overbooked revenue by NTDCL transferred back to 
NTDCL in FY 2018-19 251,061 251,061 

Settlement made during the FY 2020-2 1 
- Through adjustment of DISCOs payables to NTDCL (11,416430) 
- Through adjustment of use of system charges payables by DiSCOs (3,713,726) 
Receivable from GoP in lieu of K-Electric previously 

allocated to GENCOs 6,400,000 6,400,000 
26,769,851 41,900,008 

22.1.2.1 As detailed in note 1.1 above, the Company entered into a BTA with NTDCL in 2015. The detail of assets and 
liabilities transferred to the Company by NTDCL (under the BTA) in its capacity as agent of DISCOs and K-
Electric as per resolution passed in meeting of Board of Directors of the Company held on 13 February 2017 
and the terms of the BTA are as follows: 

Assets transferred to the Company 

Rupees in 
thousand 

Property and equipment, net of accumulated depreciation 4,137 
Trade receivables 316,074,535 
Advances, deposits and prepayments 2,926,482 
Advances to suppliers and contractors 2445 
Accrued interest 7,570,720 
Other receivable from associated companies 802,000 
Current account lOT (net receivable) 128,046,147 
Government loan mark-ups receivable adjustments in DISCOs 68,551,593 
K-Electric differential of marginal cost (payable by GoP) 6,400,000 
Events after the statement of financial position date 11,291,401 
Other receivable 65,493,054 
Cash and bank balances 6,339,070 

613,501,584 

Liabilities transferred to the Company 

Net worth 7,163,233 
Trade payables 480,873,218 
Miscellaneous accounts payable 874,327 
Provision for KESC accrued markup 7,559,332 
Current account lOT (net payable) 159,443,643 

655,913,753 

Loan note receivable from NTDCL as at 30 June 2015 42,412,169 
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In a meeting held on 26 January 2017, the Company and NTDCL agreed that a net liability of Rupees 42,412 
million is payable by NTDCL to the Company. 

The settlement of this transaction through loan notes would be treated as full and final payment of the entire 
consideration in lieu of transfer of Market Operations Undertaking. However, as per BTA, any assets, 
receivable or liability relating to Market Operations not known to NTDCL and discovered by either party after 
the date of closing but by  02 June 2019, shall be immediately transferred to the Company. In case any assets, 
receivable or liability relating to Market Operauons are aiscovered 
between the parties that the purchase price of Rupees 42,412 million shall accordingly be adjusted as per the 
requirements of BTA. The parties agree and acknowledge that the purchase price of Rupees 42,412 million 
has been calculated on the basis of the actual book value of the Market Operations Undertaking (excluding 
the transferred employees). If, at any time, it is determined by both parties that the purchase price of Rupees 
42,412 million is required to be revised on account of change in book value, or due to prior miscalculation of 
the book value, of the Market Operations Undertaking (excluding the transferred employees), then the parties 
shall in good faith re-calculate the purchase price. The loan note amount payable as at 30 June 2021 is 
Rupees 26,770 million (2020: Rupees 41,900 million) of which Rupees 6,400 million is yet to be 
acknowledged by NTDCL. 

22.1.3 This represents advance given, on behalt DISCus, against operations and maintenance expenses and for 
fueling of a Power complex wholly owned by government and government related entities. The operations of 
plant have been discontinued under the directives of the Federal Government. The advance shall be adjusted 
upon the directives of the Federal Government. 

Note 

Receivable by market participants representing offer 221.4.1 
& 

22.1.4.2 

2021 2020 
(Rupees in thousand) 

Government owned generation companies (GENCOs) 82,148,159 65,542,380 
WAPDA Hydel Company 247,519,527 219,542,182 
Nuclear Power Plants 117,821,563 75,760,246 
Independent Power Producers (lPPs) 1,149,529,034 955,927,467 

1,597,018,283 1,316,772,275 

Payable balance to WAPDA 133,970,873 133,970,873 
Less: balance receivable from WAPDA (53,500,918) (53,500,918) 
Amounts due to WAPDA 22.1.4,3 80,469,955 80,469,955 

Amounts due to WAPDA for HUBCO 22.1.5 802,000 802,000 
Others 25,826 46,662 

1.678,316,064 1,398,090,892 

22.1.4.1 This includes an amount of Rupees 135,737 million (2020: Rupees 137,863 million) due by market 
participants in respect of late payment interest. As on June 30, 2021, an amount of Rupees 100,754 million 
(2020: Rupees 104,513 million) is disputed in respect of liquidated damages penalties, imposed on power 
producers due to non-fulfilment of contractual provisions of PPAs. On resolution of dispute, the recovery of 
this amount shall be passed to the market participants representing demand and is not reflected in these due 
balances. 

22.1.4.2 Invoices by lPPs amounting to Rupees 61,933 million (2020: Rupees 58,766 million) were submitted to the 
Company however included in the transfer pricing to DISCOs subsequent to the close of the financial year. 
Under the respective PPAs, the invoices are payable after 25/30 days of submission of invoices by the lPPs. 
Therefore, the settlement to DISCOs is being done on the basis of invoice receipt and trued-up as per 
verification of the Company as per Commercial Code. Had the invoices been received / verified by the 
Company as at the reporting date, the same would have been added in the transfer pricing to DISCOs and the 
payable by the market participants representing demand and receivable by the market participants 
representing offer would have been increased by the same amount. 

22.1.4 
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As per agreements signed with IPPs by the Company, the invoices for the delayed payment interest is 
— submitted by lPPs when a payment against the original invoice is paid in full. The Company transfers the 

amount of delayed payment interest to the DISCOs that is verified and acknowledged as payable to the lPPs. 
As at 30 June 2021 if all the amount due and payable to IPPs is paid, the lPPs would have been entitled for a 
delayed payment interest amounting to Rupees 57,639 million (2020: Rupees 51,560 million) and the same 
would have been transferred to DISCOs as payable by market participants representing demand. The 
allocation amngDlSCOs would have been in the ratio amount due from each DISCO (Principal) as 
appearing in this note. Further, the Company has not recognised net amount of Rupees f,t4b mituon i,z020: 
6,143 million) on account of balance reconciled with a power generation company and invoices pending final 
determination of tariffs from the regulatory authorities. 

22.1.4.3 This mainly represents balances transferred by WAPDA to NTDCL in 2008-09 which were later transferred to 
the Company as a result of BTA in 2015. Further, this also includes Rupees 2,318 million (2020: Rupees 
2,318 million) payable by WAPDA on behalf of Japan Power Generation Limited (JPGL) and Rupees 533.93 
million (2020: Rupees 533.93 million) on behalf of SEPCOL. The amount receivable from JPGL represents 
advance given for fueling of power complex. This advance was given with the objective to provide continuous 
electricity supply to the general public during the times of heavy Ioadsheddings as JPGL did not have funds 
for fuel purchasing. Recovery suit has been filed against JPGL and SEPCOL on 19 October 2015 and 10 
October 2016 respectively for the recovery of outstanding amount before competent jurisdictions. As per the 
latest audited financial statements of JPGL and SEPCOL, its financial position is adverse and its equity has 
been eroded and its total liabilities have exceeded its total assets and the honourable Islamabad High Court 
has ordered for winding up proceedings of SEPCOL through an order dated 11 January 2019. WAPDA has 
not acknowledged the aforementioned advances aggregating to Rupees 2,926 million (2020: Rupees 2,926 
million). Further, amount receivable from WAPDA includes Rupees 3,396 million (2020: Rupees 3,396 million) 
on account of credit issued for a DISCO and adjusted against WAPDA which has also not yet been 
acknowledged by WAPDA. 

22.1.5 This represents amount due from HUBCO on account of HUBCO first fuel fill, sanctioned by GOP through 
Pakistan State Oil (PSO). Ministry of Finance made the subject payment to PSO and instructed HUBCO to 
book a payable towards WAPDA. HUBCO has denied the payment of this amount and has disputed with 
WAPDA, and it was agreed between both the parties on 01 April 2009 that both parties will have the 
legitimate opportunity on commencement of 20th anniversary of plant to raise this matter. The Company 
approached HUBCO on 01 November 2017 to settle the matter but HUBCO refused to recognize the said 
balance. Resultantly, the Board in a meeting held on 09 May 2018 resolved to adjust the cost of first fill along 
with interest against overdue late payment charges invoiced by HUBCO and in case HUBCO disagrees, 
resolve the issue through dispute resolution mechanism. HUBCO has disputed the adjustment and filed case 
against the Company in Sindh High Court. Pursuant to the initiative of Government of Pakistan, through 
master agreement dated 11 February 2021 signed between the parties, it was agreed that HUBCO shall 
withdraw the suit before Sindh High Court and proceed under the dispute resolution mechanism of the PPA 
and accordingly HUBCO has withdrawn the suit and the Company and HUBCO are finalizing the nomination 
of arbitrator for settlement of the matter. 

22.1.6 The tariff and regulatory structure of the power sector ensures such working capital mechanism for the power 
producers, that enables them to keep a secured supply of electricity, which depends on the procurement of 
fuel. Since the payments to the power producers have been secured by sovereign guarantee issued by the 
Government of Pakistan (GoP), if the power producers are not paid on due dates, they shall start calling upon 
the sovereign guarantees. Further, a late payment surcharge is also imposed due to which the power sector 
remains under circular debt. 

This leads GoP to swap the energy payables with commercial loans and ijara agreement from banks. In 
accordance with the Economic Coordination Committee (ECC) decisions, these syndicated term finance 
facilities are being parked in Power Holding Limited (PHL) which transfers the funds received under these 
financing facilities to the Company on direction of Ministry of Energy, Power Division. The Company, acting in 
the capacity of agent of DISCOs and K-Electric, makes payment against these funds to power generation 
companies and repay these amounts to PHL on demand in accordance with the instructions received from 
GoP. 
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Servicing of loans amounting to Rupees 290,862 million (2020: Rupees 290,862 million) are being managed 
by way of Financing Cost Surcharge levied on end consumers under sub-section 5 of section 31 of the 
Regulation of Generation, Transmission and Distribution of Electric Power Act, 1997 vide S.R.O. 908(1)/2014 
dated October 03, 2014. Further, as per ECC decisions, servicing of loans amounting to Rupees 55,000 
million (2020: Rupees 55,000 million) and Rupees 41,000 million (2020: Rupees 41000 million) are the 
responsibility of GoP (Finance Division) and DISCOs respectively whereas servicing of loans amounting to 
Rupees 143,176 million (2020: Rupees 215,806 million) shall be managed by a surcharge yet to be levied by 
GoP. 

Further Power Holding Limited (PHL) has raised Rupees 199,967 million and Rupees 200,000 million in 
financial year 2019-20 and 2018-19 respectively to swap the energy payable by issuance of shariah compliant 
Sukuk Certificates for a tenure of ten years and payment of rental markup is the responsibility of DISCOs. 
Sukuk rentals payable to PHL by DISCOs as at 30 June 2021 amounts to Rupees 7,380 million (2020: 
Rupees 9,578 million). 

As at 30 June 2021, Rupees 82,633 million (2020: 65,270 million) have been paid by the Company to PHL on 
account of servicing of loan, as per the instructions of Ministry of Energy (Power Division) GoP, relating to 
loans where notification of surcharge for servicing of loan is yet to be levied by GoP and where servicing of 
loan is responsibility of GoP (Finance Division). The balance so paid to PHL is netted off from energy payable 
swapped by Government of Pakistan. 

22.2 As at June 30, 2021, Use of system charges payable by DISCOs to NTDCL is Rupees 38,181 million (2020: 
Rupees 28,372 million). 

22.3 Details of cases handled by the Company on behalf of Principals 

As disclosed in note 1.1, 1.2 and 22.1.2.1, as a result of BTA, all disputed balances and litigations pertaining 
to the Principals on account of purchase of energy was transferred to the Company from NTDCL in 2015. The 
below notes summarizes the pending litigations in respect of matters where Company is acting in the capacity 
of agent on behalf of the Principals under the applicable laws, regulations and underlying agreements with 
Principals. Management expects a favorable outcome of these cases however, impact if any, in respect of 
these contingencies will be borne by the Principals. Litigation / arbitration expense incurred on actual basis 
are being charged to the Principals as pass through item as capacity transfer price. 

22.3.1 On 08 June 2017 and 29 October 2017, through partial and final awards respectively, London Court of 
International Arbitration (LCIA) awarded an amount of Rupees 20,269 million (2020: Rupees 20,269 million) 
in favor of 9 lPPs i.e. Atlas Power Limited, Nishat Chunian Power Limited, Nishat Power Limited, Liberty 
Power Tech Limited, Narowal Energy Limited, Saif Power Limited, Sapphire Electric Company Limited, 
Halmore Power Generation Company Limited and Orient Power Company (Private) Limited for their claims on 
account of dispute relating to withheld capacity payments. lPPs filed an application before Lahore High Court 
on 29 November 2017 for enforcement of Final Award that is pending adjudication. Further, the Company is 
contesting the enforcement proceedings initiated by the lPPs, which matter is also presently pending before 
the Lahore High Court. 

Pursuant to the initiative of GoP to rationalize the tariff during the year, the parties have entered into a Master 
Agreements and Power Purchase Agreements (PPAs) Amendment dated February 11, 2021. As per the PPA 
Amendments the parties have agreed to resolve the outstanding LCIA Award amicably in good faith by 
extending the current agreement years for the disputed periods and the Company has agreed to make 
disputed period payments amounting to Rupees 3,273 million to the lPPs. In consideration of this, the lPPs 
have agreed to forego the amount awarded under LCIA. Further, lPPs and the Company have agreed that 
upon later of the date of disputed period payments and the first installment to be made by the Company under 
payment mechanism agreed in Master Agreement for the payment of outstanding receivable balances to 
lPPs, the parties will file a joint application before the Lahore High Court stating that on account of this 
agreement the enforcement proceedings between the parties are withdrawn. Payable balance to the power 
generation companies by the Principals includes Rupees 3,273 million as at 30 June 2021. However, the 
payments have not yet been made by the Company on behalf of the Principals pending compliance of 
codal/regulatory formalities. Further, the payment to Nishat Chunian Power Limited will be made after getting 
approval of GoP. Management believes that the payment will be made in due course to all lPPs except for 
Nishat Chunian Power Limited as per the approval of GoP and the LCIA award proceedings will be withdrawn 
by the lPPs in the ensuing period. 
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22.3.2 The London Court of International Arbitration decided the awards in favor of Atlas Power Limited (APL), 
Nishat Chunian Power Limited (NCPL), Liberty Powertech Limited (LPL) and Nishat Power Limited (NPL) 
for payment of delay payment on delay payment invoices. As per the awards, amount of Rupees 387 
million, Rupees 2,319 million and Rs 1,886 million were awarded to APL, LPL and NCPL respectively with 
interest at KIBOR plus 4.5% per annum compounded semi-annually from the date of final award until 
payment of these amounts by the Company. Whereas for NFL the Arbitrator directed the Company to pay 

.sect-inerestonJnterestoa'iments, the amount of which is yet to be estimated by 
the Company. 

Atlas Power Limited and Nishat Power Limited filed enforcement petitions for the awards in Lahore High 
Court on 17 June 2017 and 18 December 2018 respectively and Nishat Chunian Power Limited and Liberty 
PowerTech Limited has filed their enforcement petitions on 10 December 2020 in Islamabad High Court. 
The Final Awards by LCIA for LPL, NFL and NCPL have also been challenged by the Company in Civil 
Court Lahore and award for APL was challenged in Lahore High Court where the matters are pending for 
arguments. During the year the Company has entered into Master agreements with these lPPs as per which 
the Company has agreed to follow the PPA mandated FIFO payment principle in relation to past and future 
payments and the lPPs in consideration of the same have agreed to forego all of its claims of late payment 
interest on late payment interest invoice and to withdraw all such claims for awards decided by LCIA. 
Management believes that APL, LPL and NFL will withdraw their claims in accordance with Master 
agreements in due course. Whereas for NCPL, approval of Government of Pakistan for release of overdue 
payments under Master Agreement is pending and over due payment will be made after approval of GoP 
subsequent to which NCPL will withdraw the claim. Management is confident that the claims under the 
awards will be withdrawn by the lPPs as per the signed Master Agreement. 

22.3.3 The Company has adjusted USD 0.447 million (equivalent to Rupees 70.447 million) from FFC Energy 
Limited and USD 2.659 million (equivalent to Rupees 419.058 million) (along with interest of Rupees 283.5 
million) from Orient Power Company (Private) Limited (Orient) in respect of liquidated damages on account 
of non-commissioning of plant operations on the Required Commercial Operation Date (RCOD). Orient has 
filed a petition in Lahore High Court on 10 March 2015 against the imposition of liquidated damages. The 
Company has filed a reference against FEC Energy Limited on 9 April 2017 against the decision of NEPRA 
to reimburse the liquidated damages to FFC energy Limited. Both cases are pending for arguments. 
Management believes that it has reasonable grounds to impose liquidated damages. 

22.3.4 The Southern Electric Power Company Limited (SEPCOL) filed a suit in the International Court of Arbitration 
("ICA') against the Company claiming damages amounting to Rupees 5,027 million with the Company on 
account of non fulfillment of provisions of the Power Purchase Agreement (PPA). However the suit has 
been kept in abeyance by SEPCOL in an attempt to resolve the matters amicably out of court in May 2008. 
Where as, the Company has also raised liquidated damages amounting to Rupees 8,343 million on 
SEPCOL for the period from February 2008 to June 2015 during which plant remained non-operational. 

Further as disclosed in note 22.1.4.3, the Company has also filed recovery suit against SEPCOL, for 
recovery of outstanding fuel advance. 

22.3.5 The Company has disputed mark up charged by WAPDA amounting to Rupees 4,900 million (2020: 
Rupees 4,900 million) on pre-BTA loan obtained by WAPDA to fulfil the working capital requirement of the 
Company. However, the Company has denied the payment of the said mark up with argument that in the 
absence of any formal PPA with WAPDA Hydro Electric, it is unable to entertain the same. 

22.3.6 The Company has a long pending dispute with JPGL on various issues excavating from the application of 
PPA with JPGL. In view of the disputes, JPGL filed a request for arbitration in the International Court of 
Arbitration (ICA) on 12 January 2009. 

On 07 March 2014, lCA announced its final award and declared that WAPDA is liable to pay Rupees 596 
million, Rupees 50 million and Rupees 134 million for pre-award interest on additional capacity claim, NEC / 
indexation and interest thereon and pre-award interest under the settlement agreement claim, respectively. 

c4 



-30- 

Further, WAPDA is liable to pay to JPGL post-award interest at the base rate plus 2% compounded semi-
annually on settlement agreement claim and additional capacity claim from 12 February 2014 onwards and 
on Rupees 100 million fuel advance refund from 09 July 2013 onwards all down to the date of actual 
payment of such mentioned claims. Furthermore, WAPDA is also liable to reimburse to JPGL Rupees 109 
million on account of lawyer's fees, hearing costs and travel and accommodation costs. 

On the other hand, lCA directed JPGL to pay forthwith Liquidated Damages (LDs) amounting to Rupees 
778 million-along  with Rpe-es55&mi1Iionand Rupees 7a6  million on account of pre-award interest on LD's 
and fuel advance claim, respectively. 

Each party was further advised to equally share cost of arbitration amounting to Rupees 108 million. 

As per clause 15.3 of PPA signed and executed between the Company and JPGL, any dispute between the 
parties shall be finally settled through arbitration according to rules of arbitration of International Chamber of 
Commerce. According to PPA, the final award of lCA becomes contractual obligation of the parties. To 
date, JPGL has not submitted the ICA award for enforcement before any Court of competent jurisdiction in 
Pakistan. As per the relevant laws, JPGL was required to submit the award for enforcement within six years 
from the date of the award which period has been expired as of 30 June 2021. Management believes that 
enforcement proceedings are not expected to be d y ,ither party and confident that no liability will be 
payable by the Principals on account of this matter. 

22.3.7 M/s TNB Liberty Power Limited (TNB Liberty) initiated arbitral proceedings in respect of dispute on capacity, 
energy and late payment interest charges on account of non supply of electricity by TNB Liberty due to gas 
disconnection by gas supplier, Sui Northern Gas Pipelines Limited (SNGPL) before the International Court 
of Arbitration of the International Chamber of Commerce ("ICC") vide its Request for Arbitration on 24 
January 2017. 

The Tribunal rendered an award dated 30 March 2020 as amended on 12 August 2020, in favor of TNB 
Liberty under which the Company was prohibited to offset liquidated damages imposed against TNB Liberty 
by the Company against the unpaid and undisputed capacity, energy and late payment interest payments 
amounting to Rupees 11,448.50 million as at 30 June 2019. Further the Company was directed to pay the 
costs of arbitration amounting to USD 1.559 million (equivalent Rs 245,741 thousand), pre-award and post-
award interest on the undisputed late payment interest invoices at 8.25% per annum and at 5.33% per 
annum respectively, and the ICC's administrative expenses and the Tribunal's fee and expenses amounting 
to USD 435,000 (equivalent Rs 68,556 thousand). 

Further, an amount of Rupees 1,683 million has been claimed by TNB Liberty as at June 30, 2021 on 
account of disputed capacity purchase price payments. TNB Liberty, on the request of Government of 
Pakistan, has agreed to withdraw the Award and the disputed capacity payments. The settlement terms 
have also been agreed between the parties. The parties will execute the formal Agreement on completion of 
codal formalities and after seeking approvals from competent authorities for giving final affect to the 
settlement terms. TNB Liberty will accordingly withdraw the Award amount and dispute thereafter. 

22.3.8 The Company had a dispute with lPPs - JDW-II, JDW-lll, RYK Mills Limited and Chiniot Power Limited on 
account of fixed components of NEPRA's tariff over and above of 45% of Annual Plant Capacity Factor 
(APCF). IPPs had filed writ petition on 04 April 2019 against the matter before Islamabad High Court where 
the matter is pending adjudication. During the year, in accordance with the master agreements signed by 
the Company with JDW-ll, JDW-lll and RYK Mills Limited, the Company has settled an amount of Rupees 
1,743 million to the lPPs in respect of this matter as final settlement. As per the Master Agreement signed 
between the aforementioned parties, the parties shall jointly proceed to file applications for disposal of 
pending litigations before the Courts in relation to the matters in respect of the Master Agreement which are 
yet to be withdrawn by the parties. The Company is confident that since final settlement payment has been 
made, the pending litigations will be withdrawn by the lPPs in the ensuing period and there is no exposure in 
this regard. In respect of Chiniot Power Limited, the Company is confident that no liability will be payable by 
the Principals on account of this matter. 



2021 2020 

(Rupees In thousand) 

2,221,575 1,148,734 
1,183,790 1647,277 

849729 1,065,039 
339,065 279,234 

1,176,983 740,348 
1,857,431 2,112,191 

23,628 29,557 
840,413 68,286 

1,317,549 1,096,371 
73,864 460,380 

1,191,969 1,055,330 
1,947 1,467 

34,713 57,936 
10957,822 4,207,655 
22,070,478 13,969,805 

66,651 99,718 

16,811 18,301 
1,806 - 

254  401  
1,070 642 

230 283 
20,171 19,628 
86,822 119,346 

21,264 21,264 
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23 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RISK MANAGEMENT 

23.1 Financial Instruments by category 

Financial assets at amortised cost 

Maturity up to one year 

2021 2020 
Restated 

(Rupees in thousand) 

Other receivables 86,822 119,346 
Bank balances - deposit accounts 

Maturity after one year 

Long term security deposits 

Financial liabilities at amortised cost 

Maturity up to one year 

22,070,478 

21,264 

13,969,805 

21,264 

Accrued and other liabilities 21,954,904 13905,915 
Current portion of lease liability 

Maturity after one year 

Lease liability 

72,547 

110472 

60,159 

183,019 

23.2 Credit Quality of Financial Assets 

The credit quality of the Company's financial assets has been assessed below by reference to external credit rating of 
counterparties determined by The Pakistan Credit Rating Agency Limited (PACRA) and VIS Credit Rating Company 
Limited (VlS). 

Bank balances 
Rating 

Short 
term 

Long term Agency 

National Bank of Pakistan AI+ AAA PACRA 
Allied Bank Limited Ai+ AAA PACRA 
Askari Bank Limited AI+ AA+ PACRA 
Faysal Bank Limited Al + AA PACRA 
Habib Bank Umited A-l+ MA VIS 
The Bank of Punjab Al+ PACRA 
Standard Chartered Bank (Pakistan) Limited AI+ AM PACRA 
United Bank Limited A-1+ AM JCR-VlS 
MCB Bank Limited Al+ AAA PACRA 
Bank Alfalah Limited AI+ M+ PACRA 
Bank Al-Habib Limited Al+ MA PACRA 
First Women Bank Limited A2 A- PACRA 
Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited AI+ AA+ PACRA 
Meezan Bank Limited A-1+ IAAA VIS 

Counterparties with external credit ratings 

Other receivables from NTDCL- a related party Al+ M+ PACRA 
Accrued profit on bank accounts 

National Bank of Pakistan Al + MA PACRA 
Faysal Bank Limited Al + A PACRA 
FffWinanicUmited  A2  -A--  PACRA  

Meezan Bank Limited A-1+ AAA VIS 
Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited A-i + MA VIS 

Counterparties without external credit ratings 
Long term security deposits 



-32- 

23.3 Financial Risk Management 

The Company's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk. The Company's 
overall risk management programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimize potential 
adverse effects on the financial performance. 

The Company's risk management poilcies are established to identify and analyze the risks faced by the Company, to set 
approprtae risk iii itsendountro6, nd t sk-s-and-odherence-te !mitse-CompayroQghJt&g_and 
management standards and procedures, aims to develop a disciplined and constructive control environment in which all 
employees understand their roles and obligations. 

'Risk management is carried out by the Company under policies approved by the Board of Directors (the Board). The 
Board of Directors of the Company oversee how management monitors compliance with the Company's risk 
management policies and procedures, and reviews the adequacy of the risk management framework in relation to the 
risks faced by the Company. 

The main areas of financial nsks faced by the Company are as follows: 

(i) Credit risk 

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counter-party to a financial instrument fails to meet 
its contractual obligations. 

Bank balances and profit accrued on bank deposits represented by other receivables in note 23.1 are subject to the 
requirements of IFRS 9 and the identified impairment loss was immaterial as the Company limits its exposure to credit 
risk by maintaining accounts with banks that have reasonably high credit ratings. Credit ratings and exposure of bank 
balances is disclosed in note 23.2. 

In addition to above, financial assets include other receivables from NTDCL and long term security deposits. Credit 
ratings and exposure are disclosed in note 23.2. In respect of receivable from NTDCL, the Company is government 
owned and given a good credit rating and the balance is neither past due nor impaired. Management has assessed that 
there is no impairment loss in respect of financial assets of the Company and these are recoverable In full. 

(ii) Liquidity risk 

Liquidity risk is the risk that an entity will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with financial liabilities. 

The table below analyses the Company's financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining 
period at the date of statement of financial position to the maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the table are 
undiscounted cash flows: 

Carrying 
amount 

Contractual cashflows 
Less than Between I Over 5 years 
one year to5years 

(Rupees in thousand) 
As at June 30, 2021 

Accrued and other liabilities 21,954,904 21,954,904 

Lease liabilities 183,019 89,216 117,379 

As at June 30, 2020 (Restated) 

Accrued and other liabilities 13,905,915 13,905,915 

Lease liabilities 243,178 84,968 206,595 
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(iii) Market risk 

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices will affect the Company's income or the value of its holdings of 
financial instruments. The objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures within 
acceptable parameters, while optimizing the return on financial instruments. 

(a) Currency risk 

Currency risk is the risk that changes in foreign exchange rates will affect the Company's income or the value of its 
holdings of financial instruments. The objective of currency risk management is to manage and control currency 
risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimizing the return on financial instruments. 

The Company is not exposed to currency risk since the Company, being an agent of DISCOs, passes on all 
exchange gains / losses on translation of foreign exchange denominated financial liability to DISCOs with no 
impact on these financial statements. 

(b) Interest rate risk 

This represents the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of 
changes in market interest rates, 

The Company has no significant interest-bearing financial assets except for bank balances in deposit accounts 
other than escrow accounts whose payments are restricted as disclosed in note 13.1 to the financial statements. 

At the reporting date the interest rate profile of the Company's interest bearing financial instruments was: 

2021 2020 
(Rupees in thousand) 

Floating rate instruments 

Financial assets 

Bank balances - deposit accounts 

Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments 

11,276,121 10,058,820 

If interest rates at the year end date, fluctuate by 1% higher / lower with all other variables held constant, surplus I 
deficit before tax for the year would have been Rupees 112.761 million higher / lower (2020: Rupees 100.588 
miiiion), mainly as a result of higher / lower interest income on bank balances. This analysis is prepared assuming 
the amounts of bank balances at reporting dates were outstanding for the whole year. 

(c) Price risk 

Price risk represents the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of the financial instruments will fluctuate 
because of changes in market prices (other than those arising from interest rate risk or currency risk), whether 
those changes are caused by factors specific to the individual financial instrument or its issuer, or factors affecting 
all similar financial instruments traded in the market. At the period end Company is not exposed to price risk since 
there are no financial instruments, whose fair value or cash flows will fluctuate because of future changes in 
market prices. 

23.4 Fair value of financial asset and financial liabilities 

Carrying amount of all financial assets and liabilities, reflected in the financial statements are reasonable approximation 
of their fair value. 



8,652 158,359 221,745 
Contribution to provident fund 445 6,572 5,427 

17,996 397,868 324,185 
Number of persons 1 1 70 69 
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23.5 Determination of fair values 

A number of the Company's accounting policies and disclosures require the determination of fair values, for both 
financial and non-financial assets and liabilities. Fair values have been determined for measurement and I or disclosure 
purposes based on the following methods. 

Non-derivative financial assets 

The fair value of non-derivative financial assets is determined as the present value of future cash flows, discounted at 
market rates of interest, at the reporting date. This fair value is determined for disclosure purposes. 

Non-derivative financial liabilities 

The fair value of non-derivative financial liabilities is determined as the present value of future cash flows, discounted at 
market rates of interest, at the reporting date or, where applicable, fair value is determined by reference to their quoted 
closing repurchase price, at the reporting dates. This fair value is determined for disclosure purposes. 

23.6 Offsetting financial assets and liabilities 

As on reporting date, recognized financial instruments are not subject to offsetting as there are no enforceable netting 
arrangements and similar agreements. 

24 REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS. CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER AND EXECUTIVES 

24.1 The aggregate amounts charged in these financial statements in respect of remuneration including certain benefits to the 
Chief Executive Officer and Directors of the Company are given below: 

Chief Executive Officer Executives 

2021 2020 2021 2020 

(Rupees in thousand) ----------- 

*Puuant to the approval of Federal Cabinet, Government of Pakistan vide notification dated 10 June 2020, additional 
charge was assigned to Additional Secretary-Il Power Division, Ministry of Energy for the post of Chief Executive Officer 
of the Company. No remuneration has been paid to CEO by the Company during the year. 

24.2 The aggregate amount charged in these financial statements in respect of meeting fee paid to 12 (2020: 10) directors is 
Rupees 18.750 million (2020: Rupees 17.125 million). 

No remuneration except meeting fee, was paid to non-executive directors of the Company. 

160,399 Managerial remuneration 

Allowances: 
House rent 
Utilities 
Medical 
Conveyance 
Bonus 
Leave encashment 

8,599 169,551 

- 4,004 76,298 72,180 
- 890 16,955 16,040 

- 890 16,955 16,040 
- 1,304 35,195 27,454 

- 809 62,277 13,829 
- 755 14,065 12,816 
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25 TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES 

Related parties comprise of Government of Pakistan and related entities under control of GoP 
including DISCOs and K-Electric, GENCOs, WAPDA, PAEC and NTDCL, provident fund, 
gratuity fund, directors of the Company and key management personnel. The amount due from 
and Ueu idrt ac sho m-n e especte-recei-vable-s-and pyab1csDetaiI of 
transactions with related parties other than specifically disclosed in these financial statements 
are as follows: 

25.1 Government related entities 

25.1.1 Market operation fee: 

2021 2020 

Invoicing Receipts Invoicing Receipts 

 (Rupees in thousand) 

FESCO 65,104 115,981 61,262 41,585 
GEPCO 48,715 89,045 44,877 45,356 
HESCO 28,367 20,524 28,677 9,977 
IESCO 46,129 84,700 42,883 40,477 
LESCO 105,135 197,369 92,062 90,598 
MEPCO 86,072 128,683 77,761 50,218 
PESCO 66,005 73,547 62,098 33,889 
QESCO 27,853 7,470 27,903 3,282 
SEPCO 19,507 11,408 18,919 4,577 
TESCO 5,964 3,035 5,485 965 
K-Electric 20,148 3,150 18,840 2,576 

518,999 734,912 480,767 323,500 

25.1.2 During the year the Company has received Rupees 1,538,931 million (2020: Rupees 1,432,958 
million) from or on the behalf of DISCOs in accordance with its mandate as market operator. 

25.1.3 During the year the Company paid to the Government owned market participants representing 
offer and PHL amounts to Rupees 585,387 million (2020: Rupees 642,347 million) in 
accordance with its mandate as market operator. 

25.2 Post employment benefit plan: 
2021 2020 

(Rupees in thousand) 

Average number of employees during the year 209 200 

18,795 13,294 
21,429 14,871 

2021 2020 

214 204 

Contribution to provident fund 
Contribution to gratuity fund 

26 NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES 

Number of employees as on June 30 
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27 CORRESPONDING FIGURES 

Comparative figures have been restated as a result of restatement of prior year's financial 
statements as referred in note 2 to these financial statements. 

28 IMPACT OF COVID-19 (CORONA ViRUS) ON THESE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

The spread of Covid - 19 as a pandemic and consequently imposition of lock down by Federal and 
Provincial Governments of Pakistan (Authorities) caused an overall economic slow down and 
disruption to various businesses. From the very outset of Covid-19, the management has adopted 
various policies and practices to minimize adverse impact of Covid-19 on the operations of the 
Company. Based on management's assessment, there is no material impact on the carrying values 
of assets and liabilities as of 30 June 2021 and the results of its operations. The Company is 
continuously monitoring the situation in order to proactively address any challenges which may 
arise from Covid-19. 

29 GENERAL 

Figures have been rounded off to the nearest thousand of Rupees unless otherwise stated. 

30 DATE OF AUTHORIZATION FOR ISSUE 

These financial statements were authorized for issue on I V 2321 by the 

  

Board of Directors of the Company. 

  

CHIEF EXECU VE OFFICER 



Terms of Reference: Restructuring/Business Process Re-engineering (BPR) Consultant 

CPPA-G is seeking a forward-thinking Lead Restructuring/Business Process Re-engineering (BPR) 
Consultant. The successful candidate will play a critical role in developing, reviewing and improving 
th.. Gorpote-Bines rueeses--o-f-of the-Market-Operator (MO) and specialized business funs-tinns  
of the MO as per the defined standards. The candidate will also lead and manage the automation of 
ERP/Backofflce functions for CPPA-G and MO. The ideal candidate will have experience with 
business process reengineering, process improvement, business analysis, and project management. 
The candidate must be able to work in a fast-paced environment. The candidate should have the ability 
to adapt to challenging and changing situations quickly while being able to facilitate the completion of 
multiple tasks and assignments. 

Key Role and Responsibilities: 
The Restructuring/Business Process Re-engineering (BPR) Consultant shall: 

• Work with stakeholders and a cross-functional team to identify and analyze business 
requirements, processes and risks, and implement business process improvements 

• Define, implement and maintain business processes and procedures to meet business 
objectives 

• Identify application and process functional gaps in the processes of the organization 
• Evaluate current business processes and recommend solutions for improvements 
• Evaluate proposed changes using analytical based decision making 
• Provide technical advice on processing technology, capability, risks 
• Responsible for effective transitioning of existing project teams and the facilitation of 

project teams in the accomplishment of project activities and objectives 
• Leverage experience with business process analysis, re-engineering, change management, and 

other performance improvement and general management consulting activities 
• Analyze client operations and business processes using Business Process Re-engineering 

(BPR) or Business Process Improvement (BPI) methods, best practices, and tools 
• Lead the process improvement sessions with client staff using process mapping and process 

improvement expertise, including leading client interviews for data collection 
• Supervise the documentation of as-is state of client processes, identify process gaps and 

develop recommendations for improvement, and document an agreed upon to-be state for 
revised processes 

• Lead implementation activities using change management approaches and interact with 
client personnel and senior leadership to accomplish project objectives. 

• Work in a team environment and client project settings and provide project management 
expertise to client engagements and project work streams 

• Supervises the preparation of technical reports by collecting, analyzing, and summarizing 
information and trends 

• Lead standardi7ation of the organizational business processes documentation for each level 
• Provide group facilitation, interviewing, training, and provides additional forms of 

knowledge transfer 
• Liaison between the business unit teams and development/technology teams 



• Work closely with key business partners and subject matter experts in the definition and 
documentation of the functional requirements. 

• Identify requirements via industry standard analysis techniques 
• Participate in technical teams' meetings to facilitate the understanding, clarification, and 

impieme-nad-rquiremenr-s- inJAgileorXLaterfall)develcipmentenvironment  

Consultancy Deliverables / Outcomes 

• Defme and develop Templates as per the industry standards and practices 
for documenting the MO Business Processes 

• Develop templates required for the MO Functional Models for the automation of functions 
• Develop Business Process Maps and Cross-Functional Flowcharts for MO required for the 

automation of business processes 
• Develop requirements for the MO Applications development 
• Develop and implement Quality and Compliance System for review of the developed 

Business Process documents and Functional Specification documents (from both internal 
and external sources) with the defined standards 

• I\ianage and Assist development team for the implementation and automation of ERP / 
Backoffice applications for CPPA-G legacy functions and MO functions 

• Implement and rollout Projects Monitoring system for the Team, Tasks, Work Items, Issues 
and Functional Releases management. 

• Compilation of the periodic Monitoring Reports / Tracking Gantt Charts on automation 
project activities 

• Develop Gap Analysis and Performance Assessment reports on analyzing the efficiency of 
developed Business Processes and Models using related tools and techniques. 

• Maintenance of repositories and versions of the MO Business Process maps and functions 
manual documents. 

• Prepare periodic reports on deficiencies in the developed reports and share with the 
concerned stakeholder for the desired changes or revisions. 

Required Skills and Competencies: 

• The ideal candidate must have strong Business Process mapping and designing skills 
• Excellent hands on knowledge of BPR best practices and life cycle. 
• Excellent analytical and organizational skills, including a thorough understanding of how to 

interpret customer business needs and translate them into application and operational 
requirements. 

• Experience in working on the specialized Business Process Modeling tools, along with 
strong experience in basic modeling tools like vIicrosoft Visio or in the similar kind of tool. 

• Experience in working on Business Process Simulation tools to analyze business scenarios 
efficiencies and comparison with different Business Process I'viodels. 

• Ability to perform analysis using Excel or any specialized tool for making business models 

comparison reports and benchmarking analysis. 
• Must have knowledge of standard Business Analysis life cycle, Project Management 

knowledge areas and Software Development life cycle 



• Must have knowledge of the latest and trending software development methodologies, 
frameworks, architecture concepts and terminologies. 

• Ability in transforming the business requirement into technical Requirement Specification 
document for the implementation team 

— Abil .voricindependentbror  c partof team.  

Qualification / Certifications: 
• MBA, MIT, BBA, MSc or BS degree (16 years of HEC equivalent education) in Business 

Management, Computer Sciences, or Project Management 
• MS/MPhi1 (18 years of HEC equivalent education) degree in any of the above-mentioned 

category would be given a preference 
• Certifications in Business Analysis, Project Management be an added advantage 

Required Experience: 
• vlinimum 20 years of post-qualification experience including at least 15 years of experience 

in Business Process Re-engineering, Business Analysis, ERP Implementation Management, 
and Business Process Improvement related projects 

• Verifiable experience of at least three large-scale Business Process Re-Engineering projects 
in the public-sector (preferably in Pakistan). 

• Verifiable experience of at least three projects in Managing or Leading the implementation 
of ERP systems in the public-sector or large-scale private organizations. 

• The experience in power sector be an added advantage 

• Age limit for the position is up to 50 years at the time of closure 

Period of assignment/services: 

• The duration of the assignment is two years. 



Term of Reference 
For Hiring a Consultant on 

"System Operator Strengthening, Technical Aspects of Power Contracts, Alignment of 
Regulatory Codes, and Economic Dispatch Order" 

A. Background 

CPPA has been operationalized in 2015 and is functioning as the Market Operator for Power 
Sector of Pakistan. While complying with Market Rules and Commercial Code, main functions 
of CPPA include Billing and Settlement , Power Procurement, Legal and Corporate Affairs, HR, 
IT and Market Development. It is also important to mention here the two Stages envisaged in 
CPPA's internal organizational strengthening and capacity building and external market 
development journey. Stage-I (operationali7ation of CPPA) materialized in June 2015, however, 
a lot of effort has currently been exerted to strengthen the core functions of CPPA under this 
phase and to accomplish this at the earliest possible. Under Stage-Il new functions that were 
envisaged to be added in-order to ensure CPPA's role as an effective Market Operator have also 
been initiated and have been largely materialized in 2017-18. 

7 One of the important roles of the Market Operator is to facilitate the Power Market transition 
from Single Buyer to Competitive regime by 2020 as mandated by ECC in 2015. During this 
transition process, CPPA-G is playing the role of a mentor organization. One of the important 
tasks for CPPA-G to perform is to build the capacity of the power sector entities (within certain 
boundaries) for the main market functions which is an important prerequisite for Competitive 
Market Operations. 

3. CPPA-G with the help of a reputable international Market Development Consultancy firm has 
prepared a Market Model and Roadmap for its implementation that has been submitted to the 
Regulator for approval after due process. 

4. Besides reform process of introducing a wholesale electricity market in Pakistan, there is a surge 
of VREs in the Pakistani grid in line with the global trends. 

5. These two developments along-with supply adequacy coming in the power sector require 
immediate attention towards: 

a. Updates iii the Grid Code to cater the emerging scenarios 
b. Strengthening of System Operator for improved dispatch operations 
c. Operationalization of a security constrained economic dispatch tools for system 

operation. 
d. Separation of connection agreement from PPA for open access 

6. In this regard, CPPA-G that has already been centrally facilitating the power sector entities for 
creating an enabling environment for seamless implementation of Wholesale Market, requires 
the services of an Individual Consultant (IC) from the market, who wifi work with the Strategy 
and Market Development Department of CPPA-G. 



7. The consultant will assist CPPA to identify gaps and suggest amendments that are required in 
the Grid Code to align it with the Market Model and to cater for an increased shared of VREs. 

B. Scope of Work 

8. The scope of work for the consultant includes: 

i. Work with the Market Development Consultants engaged with CPPA-G for working on 
the details of Market Model so that it is aligned with the Regulatory Codes, Rules and 
Regulations of Pakistan. 

ii. Propose amendments in the current regulatory documents that may be required to enable 
environment for implementation of Wholesale Electricity Market. 

Assist NTDC (System Operator) and CPPA-G (Market Operator) in collaboration with 
Market Development Consultants for institutionalization of (i) Short-term models (Day-
ahead to few weeks) with expected results including hourly prices, units dispatch, flows in 
lines, ancillary services schedule etc., (ii) the Medium-term model (few weeks to couple of 
years) with expected results including hourly prices, units dispatch, flows in lines, fuel 
consumption of selected units etc. The information derived from these exercises is a must 
for providing a level playing field to all the market participants 

iv. The consultant is also required to critically evaluate the Medium-teiin (dispatch 
optimization) model and short term (Unit commitment model) developed by Market 
Operator and System Operator, its inputs and assumptions and also devise processes and 
systems to improve them overtime. 

v. Assist in coordination with NEPRA for getting approval of the proposed regulatory 
amendments. 

vi. The consultant shall also review the technical part of the existing power purchase 
agreements and if required propose measures to make Technical part of these PPAs 
aligned to Grid Code and International Technical Standards. The assignment will also 
include improving the power system operations at the system operator which is a key 
function of the new competitive market structure. Also, propose commercial alignment 
in accordance with technical changes proposed. 

vii. Perform any other relevant task assigned. 

C. Period of assignment/services: 

9. The duration of the assignment is two years. 

D. Consultant's Qualification 

10. Bachelor's Degree in Electrical Engineering (Masters will be preferred), minimum 15 years of 
overall experience in power sector, and minimum 10 years of experience in system operations. 



11. The Consultant is expected to be well versant with the regulatory framework, regulatory codes 
and power purchase agreements. 

12. The Consultant's previous experience in similar and/or related assignments would be an 
addidonal advantage. 
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CONTRACT AGREEMENT FOR PROVISION OF HEADHUNTING SERVICES TO CPPA-G FOR RECRUITMENT IN 

SENIOR & MIDDLE MANAGEMENT CADRES. 

This Agreement is entered into and executed here at Islamabad on 31-12-2021 by and between. 

Central Power Purchasing Agency (Guarantee) Limited (CPPA-G), a company incorporated under the 

Companies Ordinance 1984 having its head office located at Shaheen Plaza, A.K Fazi e Haq Road, Blue Area, 

Islamabad; hereinafter referred to as 'CPPA-G/CPPA-G'. 

AND 

Professional Employers (Private) Limited, a company incorporated under Companies Ordinance 1984, having 

its principal office located at 2' Floor, 1-C, iehlum Block, Green Fort II, Canal Bank Road, Lahore; hereinafter 

to referred to as 'Headhunting Firm/Firm'. Jointly referred to as 'Parties'. 

Now therefore, in consideration of the mutual covenants contained herein, it is hereby agreed as follows: 

1. ARTICLE 1: THE ASSIGNMENT 

1.1. The Assignment, for which Services are required to be performed and delivered under this Agreement, 

is Provision of Headhunting Services for Recruitment in CPPA-G against Senior & Middle management 

cadre or equivalent and any other relevant services ancillary thereto. 

2. ARTICLE 2: SCOPE OF SERVICES 

2.1. The scope of consultancy and other professional services (herein referred to as hlServicesu) to be•  

per-formed by the Headhunting Firm for the Assignment under this Agreement as described in TORs of 

the RFP #TS465020E dated 7-11-2021. 

3. ARTICLE 3: EFFECTIVE DATE OF COMMENCEMENT 

3.1. Effective Date of Commencement of Services shall be 31-12-2021. 

3.2. Term of Contract: The term of the Contract shall be three years from the date of commencement of 



Services, subject to extension I amendment, if any, under the Contract. 

3.3. Extension of Time: Extension of Tirrie for completion of Services andthe terms and conditionsthereof 

shall be mutually agreed between the CPPA-G and the ServiceProvider as and when required. 

4. TERMS & CONDITIONS: 

4.1. The work relates to recruitrrient proCess 'ércompassing dvertiseriietit désigm for th vacancies, 

receiving applications n response thereof, reaching out to potential candidates handling, processing 

and preparing database of the applicants. 

4.2. It includesshort listing of the'.applications on the prescribes minimum eligibility criteria advertised and 

segregating them into eligible & ineligible candidates by clearly mentioning the reasons of ineligibility 

and send reporting lists to CPPA-G within 7 days from the closing date of advertisement in prescribed 

format. 

4.3. Conduct initial interviews/evaluation as per the job description and the advertised criteria. 

4.4. The Headhunting firm wfllcondUct intial interview of provisionally eligible candidates who have met 

the minimum criteria (age, qualification, experience) according to the job description and towards the 

end of'this step shall share the detailed report of final :hortlisted candidates*hile clearly mentioning 

the, reason of their shortlisting, suitability with the role or any other related information with CPPA-G. 

The HeadhUnti'n firm. will end. SMS/E.'mail/Wh'atsApp & Letters (via registered post/Courier) for 

interview to. the initially shortlisted candidates. 

4.5. The He,adhuriting firm shall provtde all th.e record of initial interview including'a'ttendance sheet and 

interview assessment sheet. 

4.6. After conducting inftial interview of sh.ortUsted candidates, the Head Hunting Firm will share 10 

shortlistedr candidates against each po.st.with CPPA-G for further interviews along with their complete 

attested documents (as per advertised criteria i.e. education experience, certificates, equivalence 

certificates (if required), initial interView scoring by. maintaining:secrecy and accuracy. However, the 

CPPA-G reserve the right to increase or' decrease' 'the number of candidates to be appeared for 

interviews against any post inn final ihteMe round with selection committee based on the detailed 

report ubmitted by The H'eedhunt.ing firm and.orgahizatidnal requirement. 

4.7. CPPA-G reserves the right to examine the. initial interview process by nominating any official, if required. 

4.8. Final interviews will be conducted by. CPPA-G. NoTA/DA shall be given to candidates for interview by 

CPPA-G. 

4.9'. Prior to making any written.job offer by CPPA-G, the Headhunting firm shall ar'rnge.attested copies of 

following documents.from selected candidate: 

(i) CNIC 

(ii) 2 Fresh Photographs 
(iii) One Person& reference. etters frorn.8ovt orserril govt officer 

(iv) Undertaking that he has never been terminated! dismissed! removed from service on 

account of fraud, forgery, disciplinry action, or any othe'rcharge. 

(v) All the educational documents (degrees with transcripts), 

(vi) All the experience and t'rinin certificates' 

(vii) Last pay Drawn certificate inckding' all other benefits certificate; 

cviii) Any other.docunienit as per CPPA-'s requirement. 

4.10. The Headhuntingfirm shallarrange verification from the refereeS and the former'empLoyers with 
respect to the inforination mentioned in the application including job title, responsibilities, salary,'and 

benefits, The CPPA-G may arrangere-verification of the above info'rmtion on its own or through any" 

other source. 

4.11. The Headhunti'ng Firm'shall carryout background check of.th.e selected candidate. 

4.12. The Headhunting Firm shall inform through SMS/Email/Letterto all the'unsuccessful applicants 

about the outcome of their applications and satisfy query of any applicant at any forum. 



4.13. On completion of recruftment cycle foreach positior, the Headhunting Firm shall provide below 

ocumentsto CPPA.G.along,with ihv.oice for payment by CPPA-G, 

4.13.1. Longlist of all, applicants with rea5on of their shortliting or rejectiQn and finally 

'successful/u ti'successful 

4.13.2. Declaration oninforming about all the unsuccessful applicants about their status along with list 

LL)I.ILOIIILII6' IIOIIC;  UQ.0 OIIU $14'JLaC ti-I ¼..J.IIIIIfl4IIIt.ClI.!LII, 

4.13.3..Declaration of not referring selected candidate to other employers.fo.1year'froni the date:of 

joining date; 

4.14. The whole: process from'the publication of advertisement should talçe not take 'mpre thn 45 

days: 

4.15. It shall be sole responsibility that any damage suffered by the procuring agency or loss arisin3 

due to any irregularity or non- compliance to CPPA-G polices/SOP/Instructions etc. on part of the 

Headhunting Firm shall be recoverablefrom the Headhunting Firm. 

4.16. The Headhunting Firm will have to perform'the following jobsin accprdanc,e with the  guidelines 

and d[rections of the CPPA-G. Management to be issued from time to time. 

4.17. CPPA-G requires the services of a. specialized headhunting firm for executive searching for 

recruitmentin the following management ca,dres as and whenrquired: 

Senior Management Cadre Chiefs (CFO, CTO dO, etc), Dy 

.':General .Ma:nage,rs, Functional Reads, 

arid other ..titIes.nfth'js :cadre:iricluding 

Consultants/Advsors 

MiddleManagementCadre (Sr Manager, Manager Dy Manager, 

any other title Of thi.s.lcádre) 

4:18. The payment will be. made  to: H'adj Hunting Firm at the quoted rates in financial proposal i.e. 

Rs 116 000/- for Middle Management Cadre positions & Rs 232 000/- for Senior Management Cadre 

positions (irrespective of ni1imber of vacancies) inclusive of all applicable taxes 

.5. PAYMENT MObE& TERMS:  

5.1. The paymeilt for each position wilt be rnadeto the Headhunting Firm after issuance of..Offer Letter to 

Seleted candidate by CPPA-G upon completion of associated tasks e.g., Reference & Documents 

Verification of selected candidate. 
5.2. The Headhunting. Firm shall submft a...error free liwbice, n, terrnóf the alo said payment schedule, 

to CPPAG with all supporting data /documents 

5.3. Subject to deductionsofapplicabletaxes, levies, and penalties, if any, theCompany undertakes to pay 

all valid Invoice in full withinThirty (30) days from receiving of invoice. 

5,4. If a hiring process gets ended without selection of tandidate (s) due to any CPPA-G management 

decision , the fee wIll be paid as follows: 

Last Step of Recruitment Amount Payable to The Headhunting firm 

Position cancelled by CPPA-G after 

advertisement but prior to applications 

submission deadline. 

CPPA-G will pay 5% of total fee peradvertised 

position. 

Applications screening & initial applications 

Shortlisting Performed 

CPPA-G will pay 10% of total fee per advertised 

position. 

Initial liiteM,ews and assessments conducted by 

Firm 

CPPA-G will pay 30% of total .fee per dvertise 

positiOn. 

Interviews conducted by CPPA-G selection 

committee, and no suitable candidate found. 

.CPPA-G will pay40% of total fee per advertisd. 



In Case of re-screening from the same pool .CPPA'-G' will not pay ahy additional charges. 

Payment will be made upon selection of 

candidate from the re-screened same pool. 

In Case of re-advertisernentofth'C said post It will be treated as a new assignment and 

payments will be made according to the 

payment terms upon completion of' project on 

quoted rate. 

6. RECRUITMENT PROCESS:  

6.1. Advertisement: 

a) Review advertisements for all:the positions as may be declared vcarit bythe CPPA-G from time totirne 

for va rious job groups, rarging from Deputy Manager and above. 
b) Hold at least one consultation rdeetin with CPPA-G's focal peron td design the draft adVertisement 

that captures the job requirements. 

c) The Calling of applications (Applications niy be received through on-line or through conventional 

method or both) at the closing date of advertisement. 

d) The official'advertisementfor the Vacancies will be. issued bythe CPEA-G in the newspaper, however, 

the headhuntirig firm can post/use the same advertisement for sourcing purposes on their official sites 

or job boards. In case of any discrepancy in the posts by headhunting firm from the actual post 

advertised by CPPA-6 is found, headhunting will besolely responsible. 

e) CPPA-G will process publishing ofjob advertIsement ln'th.e newspaper and in the job ad, email! postal 

address (as mutually agreed.between CPPA-G and 1-leadhunting Firm) details of the. head firm will be 

mentioned for the submission of.job applications. 

6.2. Applications Handling: 

a. Candidates willdirectly apply through Headhunting Firm. 

b The Headhunting Firm will receive applications against the advertisement as well as reach out to 

potential candidates and provide information regarding position by using multiple mediums The 

Headhu,ntingfirm shall use all efforts to'attract qualified;  experienced, and compethnt candidates to 

apply for the job. 

c. The Headhuntirig Firm will receive the applica,tionsag[nst the advertised positions by assigningan 

"Application No and with record of 'Date of receipt of anolicatton' This "Apolication No and 

"Date of receipt of application" should be dulytraceable, if required arid will be provided to the 

'a ppli'cantsas acknowledgm'eht of receipt df application. 

d. The Headhunting firm will ensure a mechanism that no application should be consideredafter the 

expiry of.last date of submission of Applications. 

e The Headhunting firm will develop a valid and reliable database for maintaining the record of all 
applicants against advertised posts arid will ensure the minimum fields of the data base are available 

as determined by CPPA-G. Ths database will be a classified informatiori nd will not be used for any 

'purposeotherthan for CPPA-G. 

f. The Headhunting firm must have the abilityto process arid evaluate above 1000 or more applications 

for recrUitment of different categories. 

g. The. Hedhu.nting firm will be responsible for arswering any query raised by theapplicants and will 

resolve/guide the candidates in.cae of any difficulty/ambiguity faced by them' duringthe application 

process by maintainiriga valid telephone number and a responsive e-mail facility. ........- 

h The Headhuntng firm will ensure a mechanism that only eligible candidates are able to submit 

applications against a particular position however information provided by the applicant will be 

crossed check with documentary evidence. 

6.3. Screening Process: . 
1. The screeningof the applications will be made by The Headhunting firm as per criteria. m.entionedin 

advertisement and segregate the applicants into 'Eligible' & 'Ineligible' within 7 days from the closing 

date. 

2 Firm shall receive all the applications screen in line with the job requirements i e age qualification 

and experience and generate list of eligible and ineligible candidates. 



3. Firm shall conduct initial 'interviews, of all the candidates fulfilling the minimum requirement, to 

evaluate the technical and behavioural aspects of eligible candidates and share a detailed report 

contiriing advice arid record of the interie'v proceedingS. to CPPA-G for final interviews by the 
selection committee of .CPPA-G. 

4. Along with detailed report, initially, Headhunting Firm shall share top 10 shortlisted candidates and 

their complete attested dgcum nts(as per advertised criteria)Le., education, xpe.rience certificates, 

equivalence certiticates (it requireoL initiai interview assessment sheet, scorng, uitabiiity witft Lhe 

role for final interviews in mutually agreed format. 

5, The CPIPA-G. reserves the, right to increase or decreasa.the'num'ber'of candidates to be appeared fQr 

interviewsagainst any"p'ost in final interview'round with 'selection committee based on the detailed 

report submitted by the Headhunting firm and organizational requirements. 

6. Headhuriting Firm will Liaise with cafldidates throughout the récniftnient processto ensure that 

candidates have a positive experience. 

6.4. Reporting: 

Provide weekly ijdates to CPPAG on the' recruitment pioce'ss i'nfbrth'of m'utually',agreed format. 

Handover compLete data of project pertaining to each recruitment with CPPA-G HR upon closure of the 

position.. 

iii	 The Headhunting Firm shall ensure that there is no conflict of interest of any of its shortlisting team 

with candidates: 
iv. The Headhunting Firm 'shall provide acess to the process and when required by CPPA-G for 

mOnitoring urpose. 

V;	 The Headhunting Firm shall ensure that the'entire evaluation process shall be carried out in highly 

transparent, professional, and objective manner using moSt. modern techniques nd best HR practices 

pievaleiit in the: corpOrate:world 

vi. Th'e Headhu'nting Firm shall be exclusively respbnSible to address complaints, demands and claims 

if any.from the, prospective candidates or any third party about .shortlistingof candidates by the 

Headhunting Firm or any. other act done 'during performance. of its duties accruing from the 

contract. The H'eadhuñtihg Firñ also undertakes toindemnify.CPPA-G agai?isthy such oniipLaints, 

demands and claims. 

vii. The Headhunting Firm shall ensure that all applicable laws 'are strictly adhered to, in the course of 

evaluation/screen ing/shortlis'ting process. 

viii. CPPA-G reserves the right to withdraw one'or'more positions at any time (before andduring the 

execution of contract) especially if the referred candidates do not meet the desired quality and 

experience, 

6.4.1. Deliverables / Services with timelh,es: Timelines 'for provision of deliverables I services ate as 

under from the awarding of Contract to successful. Headhunting. Firm: 
i.,	 The Headhuntihg Firm will provide list ofshortlisted candiates.for'required positions withIil 7 Days 

to CPPA- from the last date of receipt of applicatiots as mentioned in job dvertis'ement. 

ii. The Hedhunting Firm Will provide list of shortliSted 'cndidàtes 'for' final iñteMe.ws along with 

required documents wlthin 15' Days tO CPPA-G from the date of. submission of initial 

eligibility/ineligibiLity list to CPPA-G 

iii. Any other ancillary' delivera bier  if so required. 

7. ARTICLE 7: MODE,OF OPERATIONS 

7.1. Obligations of the Headhunting Firm 

TheHéadhunting Firm shall 'be obligated 'to perform the obligation and services;as described under 

the TORs mentioned in RFP which shall be read as integral part hereto 

ii. The Headhunting Firm shall perform Services as an independent HeadhL4riting Firm in accordance 

with recognized standards, applicable laws and regulations. 

UI. the Headhunting Firm shall apppint 02 Sénior 'Consultants who shall represent the Headhunting 

Firm for'purposes of this Contract and shall ber'esponsible for the ad'mi'nistr'atiop of the Contract 



including performance of Services thereunder. They shall remain in contact with the 2 nominated 

representatives of the. CPPA-G to keep it fully informed on all matters relating to the provision of 

Services by the Headhunting Firm. 

iv. In case the CPPA-G does not appOint any of the shortlisted candidate for. a position and decides to 

re-advertise the. positiori,.•if so require by the CPPA-G, the Headhuntihg Firm shall undertake re 

doing .ostreeningj.shordiing of fresh appi tui '-d'A a  of screening / 

shortlstingfora position") 

v. The Headhuntingl Firm shall carry out the Services with due diligehce arid efficiency and in 

conformity with sound industrial practices 

vi. The Headhunting Firm shall act at all times so as to protect the interests of the CPPA-G and shall 

take all reasonable steps to keep all expenses to a minimum consistent with sound ecOnomic, 

adnuiriistrative and managerial practices. 

vii. The Headhuntirig Firm sh1I furnish the CPPA'G uch nformatioh relating to, the Services as the 

CPPA-G 'may from time-to-time reasonably request. 

viii. Except with the prior wrItten approval of 'the CP'PA-G the Headhunting Firm shall not assign or 

transfer the Agreement for Services or any part thereof nor engage any other independent 

Headhunting Firm or sub Headhunting Firm to perform any part of the Services 

ix. The Headhunting. Firm agrees that no proprietary and confidential information received by the 

Headhuriting Firrnfrom the CPPA G shall be disclosed to a third party unless the Headhunting Firm 

receives a written permission from the CPPA G to do so 

7.2. OblIgations of the CPPA-G: The çPPA-G shall provide to the Headhunting'Firrn: 

I. The CPPA-G shall designate a person to act s its representative, on all matters pertaihing to' this 

Agreement and to fully cooperate with the Senior Consultants of the Headhuntirig Firm 

ii	 The CPPA G shall take all necessary measures to make timely payments to tne Headhunting Firm as 

Stipulated herein. 

8. ARTICLE 8: REMUNERATION FOR SERVICES, 

The remuneration for Services rerdered b'ithè Headhiinting Firm willbeaccordingto the quoted price as 

below: 

Senior Management Cadre PositiOns PKR.232,000/- 1nclusiv of all applicable 

Taxes (Irrespective of Number of vacancies 

aganst any Ost) 

MiddleManagement Cadre Positions PKRi16,0O0/- Inclusive of all applicable 

Taxes (I rres pectiv of N umber'of' vaca rides 

against any post) 

9. ARTICLE 9: ADDITIONAL SERVICES 

The CPPA-G may ask 'the. Headhuntirig' 'Firm to perform Additional Services, during 'the currency of, this' 

Agreement, Such Additional Services;shall be per-formed with the prior concurrence of both the Parties. The 

Headhunting Firm shall submit an estimate of the additional time (if any) and th,eadditional remunerations for 

such Additional Services which shall be approved in writing bythe'CPPA-G before the commencement of the 

Additional Services. N 

10. ARTICLE 10: TERMINATION 

10.1. End of Services 
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The Agreement shall terminate when, pursuant to the provisions hereof, the Services have been completed 

and the payment of remunerations have. beert made. 

10.2. Termin'atioh by the Either Party: 

The CPPA G may, by a written notice of thirty (30) days to the Headhunting Firm, terminate this Agreement 

All accounts between the CPPA G and the Headhunting Firm shall be settled not later than Thirty (30) days of 
..a 

Li I LI! ULI I %.I III IG LILIII.. 

The. Headh,unting Firm may terminate this Agreemnt by giving thirty (30j da!/s advance' notice.oitetmintion 

of this agreement However, the Headhunting firm is bound to handover complete data of all recruitment 

projects to CPPA-G. and complete all pending assignmets. 

11. ARTICLE 11: FORCE MAJEURE 

The thrrñ aForce  Majeureu as employed herein 'shall mean acts of God,.strikes, lock-out.or any Other events, 

not within the control of either Party and which by the exercise of due diligence neither Party is able to 

overco me. 

If either Party is temporarily unable by reason of Force Majeure or'the' laws or regulations of Pakistan 

tD meet any of its obligations under the Agreement, and if such Party gives to the other Party written 

notice, of the event within fifteen (15) days after its occurrence', such obligations of the Party, as it is 

unable to perform by reason of the event, shall be suspended for as lbng'as the inability ontinues. 

Neither Party shall be liable to the other Party for loss or damage sustained by such other Party arising 

from any event referred toas Fo.rc Majeure or delays arising from such event. Force Majeure shall not 

include insufficiency of funds or failure to make any payment required under the Agreement 

12. ARTICLE 12:: BLACkLISTING 

If the HeadhUntihg:Firm/Bidder delays in performance of any:of the obligations, under the Contract, violates 

any of the provisionS ôfthe'Contract, commits breach of any of the termsand conditions of'theContract CPPA 

may, at any time, without prejudice to any other righr'of action:! remedyit mayhave blacklist the: bidder, either 

indefinitely rfora stated p'riod, for future Tenders in public sector. If the. bidder is found to have engaged in 

corrupt orfraudulent practices in cOmpetinfor the aw,ard of contract, during procurement process or during 

.the execution'.of the contract, CPPAmay,..at any, time, without prejudice to any other right of action / remedy 

it may have blacklist the bidder either indefinitely or for a stated period1  for future Tenders in public sector 

.-43 ARTICLE. 13: RESOLUTION OF DISPUTES 

u.n case ofanydispute or conflict arising out of this Contract, the Parties'agree fistto try in good faith to settle'. 

the dispute by refering the matter to mediation In asC, the PartieS failed to resolve the matter through 

mediation within 15days fro.m the refernce:Of the matter,. either party may refer the,matter  to Arbitrator 
'within 07-days of'failure of mediation. The place of arbitration shall be ms(am,abad. Tbe.arbi'trtion proceedings 

shall be governed by theArbitrati,n Act, 1940, a amended, and the rule's 'made thereunder The award of the 

Arbitrator shalt be final. 

14.,ARTICLE 14: APPLICABLE LAWS 

This Agreement shall, in all respects, be read and. cohstrued and Shall operate in conformity With the laws of 

Pakistan and the courts at Islamabad shall have exclusive jurisdiction for adjudicating and interpreting the 

Agreement. 

15; ARTICLElS: CONTRACT AMENDMENT 

No variation in or modificàtions,to the"terms of the Agreement shall be made, except by a: Written arriendmerit 

signed by the Partie hereto. 

.16. ARTICLE 16: NoTicEs 

Any: notice given by any of the Parties hereto shall bésufficient only if in writing and delivered in person or 

through registered mail a follows: 

To: The CPPA-G 



FOR AND ON BEHALF OF PROFESSIONAL 

2
EPLOY 'RS PVT LTD 

gned by: 24  

Designation:  -k74J  

FOR AND ON BEHALF iv PPA-G 

Signed by:.,'Ø.4 )7s.S( 

Designation: Chief (HR&A) Officer 

FOCAL PERSON 

PROFESSIONAL EMPLOYERS 

(Project Leads) 

Mr. Khurrar1ae— Regional 

Head Saps 

S 

Central Power Purchasing Agency (Guarantee) Limited, (CPPA-G), 

Shaheen Plaza, A.K Fazl e Haq Road, Blue Area, lslamabad.  

To: The Headhunting Firm 

Professional Employers (Private) Limited, 2 Floor, 1-C, Jehlum Block, Green 

Fort II, Canal Bank Road, Lahore  

or to such other address as either of these Parties shall designate by notice given as required herein. 

Notices shall be effective when delivered. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed this Agreement, in two (2) identical counterparts, each of 

which shall be deemed as original, as of the day, month and year first above written. 

Chief (HR&A) Officer 
CPPAG, slamabad 

(Seal) (Seal) 

FOCAL PERSON CPPA-G 

Rida Javaid - Deputy MagrRR 

— Ali Raza - Assiktant Manager TA 

Witness: Witness: 

Signatures: \\ ' Signatures 

Name:  tL4 C)_1,U - .A Name:7{bJ  

DesLgnation:  t'i'. Designation:  
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AGREEMENT FOR HIRING THIRDPARTY RECRUITMENT FIRM (TESTING AGENCY) FOR 
RECRUITMENT IN CENTRAL POWER PURCHASING AGENCY 

This Agreement is entered into and executed here at Islamabad Ofl  

by and between: 

M/s Central Power Purchasing Agency Guarantee Limited (CPPA-G), ci company 
incorporated under the Companies Act, 2017 having its head office al Shoheen 
Plaza, A.K Fazl e Haq Road, Blue Area, Islamabad, hereinafter referred to as 
"CPPA-G". 
AND 
M/s Open Testing Service, a company incorporated under the Companies Act, 
2017 having its principal office at Office # 1, Central Avenue, Bahria Town, Phase 
6, Islamabad, hereinafter referred to as 'OTS". 

Now therefore, in consideration of the mutual covenants contained herein, it is 

hereby agreed as follows: 

1. ARTICLE 1: THE ASSIGNMENT 

1.1 .The Assignment, for which Services are required to be performed and 
delivered under this Agreement, is Provision of Testing Services for 
Recruitment in CPPA-G and any other relevant services ancillary thereto. 

2. ARTICLE 2: SCOPE OF SERVICES 

2.1 .The scope of testing services (herein referred to as "Services') to be 
performed by 015 for the Assignmenf under this Agreement as described 
Artide 4.1 of the agreement. 

3. ARTICLE 3: EFFECTIVE DATE OF COMMENCEMENT 

3.1. Effective Date of Commencement of Services shall be t0OL-2-O'1_ 

3.2. Term of Contract: 
The term of the Contract shall be 3 years from the date of 
commencement of Services, subject to extension / amendment, if any, 

6ñjer the Contract. 

V 



3.3. Extension of Time: 
Exterision of Time fOr completion of Services'and"the. terms and conditions 
thre'of 'haU be, ut.ually agreed between the CPPA-G and OTS as and 
whenì req uired. 

4. TERMS & CONDITiONS: 
4',iScope of ti'T Aiqiiiizjiti 

a. 'The work relates to recruitment process encompassing odi,erfisement of 
'the vacancies, rOcéiving dpplicdtions fn rpons'e thereof, hdndling, 
processing arid preparing database a the applicants It includes short 
listing of the applications on th.e prescribed ctiter[a. advertised and 
segregating them into eligible and ineligible candidates by clearly 
mentioning, the reasons of ineligihilfty and reporting lists to CFP,A-G, 
managing test centres throughout 'Pakistqn wherever required 
generation, printihg. 'and, issuance. of Roll NO sl'Odmissldn cards) to 
eligible. candidates, preparation O.f qOestiOi. apert, conduct of 
examination result orocessing and announcement by maintaining 
secrecy and accuracy through OMR arrangemenr The resulT / merit list 
will be communicaTed to CPPA-0 as per prescnbed format (within defned 
timlin.e) both in hard and soft forms. The whole process from 
ddvertisemen.t to preparaflon of merit 1st and its communication thereof 
'to CP.PA-G Th'ould take not morG than 6 weeks. 

b. CPPAG reqUires' the servics.of OTS for mdhagiñ end t end recruitrnerit 
for the, following  csitiors or otly other 'po'siliorr as' per the business 
exigencies., 

i'.Assisfant Manager 
.iL5enior & Junior Executive 
iii.M'anagem'ent Trainee  Officéi 

.iv.Assistants 
v.Any other erttry level positibti including support staff posts.. 
v'i.Any other poition as per the requirement of the: comp:any. 

4.2..Recruitment' Process:  

a. Advertisement: 
Review advertisemen+s for all the posurions as may be declared vacant 
by the .CPPA-G from time to time for vdrioUs. job grdup.s. 

ii. Hold at ledst 'one cort'sulfdfion meeting with CPPA-G's 'focdl person to 
design the draft adVer.tiSementhat captures thejob  requfremeiits. 

Applications may be received through on-line or'throughconven,tional 
method or both'.at the. closing date 'of adveft1semnt, 

iv The official advertisement for the vacancies will be issued oy the CPPA 
G. in the newspaper, t:QWeri  OTS 'can post/use the same 
advertisement for sourcing purposes on their official sites or job boards 
lncdse 'of' any discrepancy, in the posts byOTS 'from the actual post 
advertised by CPPA-G is found, OTS 'will be solely responsible. 

v. CPPA-G will' process publishing of job adverffs,e.mOntin 'the newsa'per 
and in the job ad email! postal address details of OTS will be 
mentioned for the submission of job applications 



vi. OTS.will ntimcite The same to initially eligible candidat.es.for'th.eWriftn 
exam prioito testdafe. 

b'. Appcations Handng: 

I. OTS will ceive the applicat[ons dgQinst the. advertised .poifions by 
assiritng an tAp.ticafidn No." and with record of 'Date of receipt of 
opphthon This ..Aoohccition  P4o" and  Date of receipt of 
applica'tion"•.shauld be duly traceobleif required an.dlwill be provided 
to the applicdrifs' as a.cknowledgrnnt of receipt of application'. OTS 
will ensure a mechanism jhat no application should ce considered 
after the expiry'ot lastdate of submission of'Applibations. 

ir OTS will develop a valid and reliaole database for maintaining he 
record of ai1  applicants against advertised oosts and will ensure the 
minimum fields of the datd base d deternihed b'/ CPPA-G. This 
database wilt be a classified information and will not oe used for any 

Jrpos,e other than for CPPA-G. 
'iii'. OT must have the ability 'to process and: evaluate 1000 or more 

q pIications for recruitment of different categories.. 
iv, OTS will be responsible .,faransWering anquety raised by the ppli'ca'nts. 

and will resolve/guide the candidates in' case of any 
difficulty/ambiguity faced by them during the application process Dy' 

maintai'nihg d Valid telehOnenumbe.rdnd a responive e-m'dil facility. 

v. OTS will ensure .a mechanism that only eligible candidotes'are able to 
submit applicatilons against a particular position however .informdtion 
provided by the applicant will be cross checked with do.cuhierttdry' 
evidence. 

yL The scrnitng.  of the. applicfions will be made by OTS as per CPPA-Qs 
provided guidelines and generate the candidates fist with Eligible 
lneligible'. 015 ill prepae the list of El[gible'nd lreligible candidates 

immediately after closing dates by clearly mentioning the grounds of 
being not egil'e. 

viL 'The.forrn. at which andidates will apply shOuld be customized as per 
the.'jOb criteila mentioned in the advertisement, 

ix. .015 will .e.nsure a mechanism that ap'pliOañts mdy track thr 
applications and may know the updated. status. 

c. Screening Process: 

i. Receive all the applications, ~creen ii lin.e With the job requirements i.e, 
ae...qualificdtio.n. arid experience as advertised dt dosiri.date. 

u Clearly mention a reason of ineligibility against any disqualified 
application and same ill be conimubi'cated. to: 'applicant through 
website/rnai]ISMS. 

iii. Liaise With candidates during the recruitment process to. ensure that 
candidates have., a positive job.application exp.eience. 

d. Reporting: 

i Provide, weekly updates to CPAG the 'recrhit'rrient pro.ces in 
fOrm of mcituaily areed format. 

ii Must handover 'complee data pertoining to 'each recruitment to 
CPPAG" upoh. closure' of'the. position. 

e.. Pre-Test Tasks; 

iii Content of written test will be shared by CPFAG and bd'sed n this', 
OTS will share the sample paper. 
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iv. OTwUhissueROB No./ID Nota the eligible candidates to hold their' 
test. 

v The authorized, representative,s of 013 WIH ensure that only authorized 
candidates efer examination halls. 

vi The authorized security personnel of .OIS will ensure that no mob 
'ather5 near the examination halls / centers. 

assstonce_of-tocoL_pol ceot iThnrmc  in_caeo  
emergency condition (also in'.ub cldus iii abOve). 

vui OTS will arrange test centers / examination halls through it own 
resources and will ensure all types of arrangements for the smooth 
holdng of tests viz security arrangement of tnvigrlarors drin<ing 
water and other fdcilities. 

ix. OTS must have a pool of experts frorri diverse. disciplines 'and must 
have expertise for setting, of uesfron papers observing strict 
confidentiality. 

x The.wri.tte,ntesf 'ii!l be based o.n the. content provided by OPPAG. 
OTS' Will set and print of multiple. series bbjec.tiv,e Type Test Booklet. 
FOUr different sets of Question Papers (i.e. A. B,. C' & D) should be 

repare'd..Edbh set of Question Paer'should consist.samquestio'ns 
but with different serial numbers. 

xn 013 will also design OMR ansNer sneets for each set of question 
poper drid priht 0M answer sheets with' 'provision for arbon'l'ess 
copy. 

'xiii OTS v'ill make the delivery'as well as .cotlécfio.n of Question papers. 
and OMR.An'swer Sheets a.f and from the examination centres under 
fool proof security. The arrangement of such security shall be 
responsibility of OTS. 

'xiv, The responsibility of se'b'ured rintin and if s cohfidentidlifyiies With 
the 015. 

f. of Examination (Across Pakistan): 

'013 will arrange Test Centers so. that al eIgible candidates' are 
adjusted comfortably 
'OTS shdl! print Center-wise, Rofl No. wise, Name Wise list of' eligible 
a plica nts. 

iii 01Swill also :take  attendance sheetsfrom each center. 
iv .QTS'shall deploy center superintendent. invigilofors ond other staff'al 

each Centre, 
v OTS shall make Pre-defined center seating arrangement 
vi OTS shall print and disp[ay instructions for candidates at each' test 

centers at prominent places. 
vii Collection of test materials e;g. Question papers,. answer sheets etc. 

on completion of examination and sealing of ahswr sheets 'under 
supervision of eçamination  observer center superintendent and 
authorized officers shall be responsibility of OTS The answer sheets 
'should be in duplicate. 

'viii Prior 'tO t'et date,. CPPA-G will inform OTS regarding details 'of 
nominated Team of CPPA-G for test centres yiit during 'examination 
to check the arrange:merits. 

g. Post Tesi Requirements: 

i .0T will share 'the:question paper with CPPA-G after written 'exam. 
ii The authorized representatives of 0TS'wiU collect answer sheets from 

the 'candidates at each centre and ensure that dttenddnce sheet 
and number of answer sheets match.. 



iii: The bundles of answer,sheets viIl be sealed as per critesia laid down 
b OTS d.nd :OTS shall deliver ahswer sheet bundles to authorized 
representatives.of'QTS. 

iv The authorized representatives of OTS will open sealed answer sheets 
rid cross check with .aftendanc.e théets to .dscertdin dbte.htee 

data 

•v A report diong with the cehtre wise attendance sheet to be 
prepared. 

Vi Pre validate oh the answer sheets berore scanning 
vii Double.sc.anning of dns\'er sheets 
viii Identiriccion or double marking arid other errors highhightea by 

'OMR• mdchine. 
ix Answer Database to be compared with correct answers•fogive:the 

score for each, applicant. 
x Perform manual counter checking of result rdridomy. 
xi Generate checklist of error recdrds and absentees.. 

h. Key OiThufs/Deliverables  

Deliverable 1: OTS will nominate, one Project Director holdi'ng' senior 
position in QTS) as a 'focal person who.. 'Mhl be resohsible fo.i all. 
communication related, to rojeCts gild timely 'submisioh of all the 
deliverables to CPPA-G. 
Deliverable 2: Development of Tests as per job description/content 
provided by CPPAG: elafe to vacant pasition. 
Deliverable 3: Shortiisting of received -applications .dcordin to 
advertised criteria and a clear reason of eliibility/hOnehigibihity' mjJt 
be mentioned in the status report. 

Deliverable 4: Tests to be conducted at all mdjor cities of the country. 
Deliverable .5: Provide merit'}ist along with required documents in .a 
rnutudHy agreed format accordihg to advertisement criteria plus 60% 
passing marks in written 'test. 
D!iverQb(e 6: Resolution of all qUeries and complaints received 'from 
the candidates regarding test and shorthisting proces a't any 
forum/court/FIA/NABJFederal mbudsman'/Pakista Citizen Portal etc. 
will be' responsibility of OTS. 
Deliverable 7 All the data pertaining to anyrecruitment project will. be  
sole' property of CP'PA-G and OTS is bound to provide all the 
information to CPA-G. as .an Wher requied 
Deliverable 8 Responsive helpline/official contact/Email to ensure 
timely reacn and response to all candidates to give best candidate 
experience at every stage. 
Deliverable 9.: The OTS hahl Uridrtak'e a comprehensive eva]ua'tioil / 
screeilin' mechanism in conformity' with the' approved -shortlistihg 
criteria whil.e initially shorthistirig. profiles'for thewritten exam 

4.3. Services Timelines:  
1. Lost dote of submisSion of qppliatiotis Will be 5  days frOm 'the date 

o.f pubRcation. 
OTS will share the Summary :of'all appIicantwithin 2 'days 'fro.rn the 
closing date. 
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ii. CPPA-G will share 'th content 'of written 'test within 5 days from the 
submission of summary of applicants.  The' test' paper will' b.e 
c'onstitutd on 80% Job relevdnf and 20% General Discipline (English, 
General' Knowfedge,'lslamiat / ethics) 

v The Written test will be conducted within 1 0 days: after submisipn of 
the content. 

 	 OTS- 4e cadcrte-s-n A-G.cit  ast one weknricr to  
conduc'tin.g the ritfeh test 

vi OTS" wilil share the result of written exom and a merit list (With clear 
reason of eligibility/ineligibility) with CPPAG wit-un 14 days after 
condUct of written test along with (CV, Educational Degrees & 
Transcripts Experience Cerhficaes CNIC Personal lnformation 
Form, NIOC: (If' required) of the: cand)dafes' who have passed the 
eam. 

vU Tirnelin'e can be extended upon mutual consent of' both parties. 
vfll' Any other ancillary. deliverable, if so reqdired. 

5. AR1]CLE 5: MODE OF OFERATION 

5.1. O'TS Shall ensure" that there is no. conflict of interest of any of ifs 
short listing team. with candidates. 
5.2. OTS shall provide access to the process as and when.required 

by CPPA for monitoring purpose. 
5.3. OTS shalt ensure that the Cn.tire evaluation process shall be 

carried utin hi.ghly1ran:spreht,.p'rofes'sio'ndl, and'objec'tive manner. 
5.4. OTS shall be exclusively responible 'to address. compidinis, 

demands and cl.aims'if any from the'prospctiv candidates pr an:y 
third party about shortlisfing 'of' cq'ridldats by the Jesting Serce 
Agency or any other act done during performance Of it duties 
accruihg from the contract. 
5,5., OTS also:  undertakes to indemnify .CfFA-'G: against an.y such 

complaintS', demands and claims. 
5.6. 015 shall ensure that all applicable laws are strictly adhered' t'o 

in the course of .evaluationlscreening/shorflis.ting process. 

5 7 CPPA reserves the rigni io wirnaraw one or more poifions at 
any tirñe (before arid.'during the execUtion.oftontrdct); especially, if 
the referred cattdidates. do nt meet the d.sired qualify and 
experience. 

5.8. Obligations of OTS  

OTS shall be obligated to perform the services as desribed in this 
Agreement... 
OTS shall perform Services as an independent organization in 
accoidahce. with recognized standards, applicable laws and 
re'g uldtions. 

iii OTS shall appoint 02 SeniOr Consultants who: shall represent the 
company for purposes of this Contract and shall be responsible f.or 
the administration of the Contract including, performance. of 
Services Thereunder. They shall' emqin ih çntact with the '2 
nominated representatives of the CPPA-G to keep it fully informed 

on all  matters- relating tO'the provision'of Services. by OTS; 
iv In case the CPFA-G does not appoint any 'of the shortlisted 

candidate for a position and decides to re advertise the position if 
so, 'required by the CPRA-G, Th.e cost will be paid by CPPA-G. 

v OTS shall carry out the Services with due diligence and eficiency 
and in conformty with souna industry practices 



i QTSshall alwdys aCt so as to protect the inierestsotthe CPPA-G and 
shell take all redonable steps to keep all expenses to a minimum 
aohsistert with Sound ecOnOmic administrative and rn.anqgeni 
prdctices 

vii OTS h•a urns• •the CPPA-G suc.hinformatioh reIcting to.the Services 
as. the .CPPAGm.ayfrom time-to-time rédsonabi request. 

 	 Except w14h-t prior_Wrtffen_crppo.vciLCt  the CE?A.-GQIS sliall not 
asSign or trdnsfer the  Areem.ent for Serites or any part: thereof nor 
engage any other independent OTS or su-OTSto perform any part 
of the SérViOes. 

i OTS agrees that flo prbpiietary nd .aontiderthal irfarmction 
received by OTS from tie CPPA-G shall be disclosed to a third parry 
unleSs CTSredëives a written permission from The CFA-G to do so. 

5.9. Obligations of theCPPA-G  

CFPA-G. shall provideto OTS 
a.. CPPA-G Shall designate a person to act as its representative qn all 

matters pertdinin.g to this Agreement ard to fully cooperate w..h 
the Senior Consultants of OTS. 

b. CFPA- shalt take all neésa.r rnas.Ures to rndke. fihiely 
•pqyments. to OTS as stipulated herein. 

6. ARTICI.E 6: REMUNERATION EORSRVICESANDSCHEDU.LE OF PAYMENT 

The: remuneration for Services rendered. by O.TS and the mode o 
payment shall be as, under:. 

i	 OTS wilr chargé Rs.229/- per appliaation processing. (inclusive of all 
Cplicdbl taxeS) out of Which 50% will be paid by OPPAG an.d 50% 
by applicant. (Rs.. 11.4.5/- per application from candidte and Rs. 
11 4.5/-per application from .CPPA-G), 

ii	 ?ayment will be made to 015 on producfion of follpwing dacurnents 
in accordance with the payment plah as.fiq.lized'in the Agreement: 
Original error free invoice with Invoice number NTN and Bank 
account details 

'iv Provision of completion cc....ficate' of the said retruitment project 
v G'PPA-G will pay totl amount as per dgreement that is R's.229/-'per 

application rat e(inclusive o.f all faxes), in case of re-conduct of test 
of same project. 

vi SubjeCt to deduction of Cppli'cab.le taxes, levies .and. penolties. if 
any1  the CPPA-G shall pay the relevant InvOice in full within Thirty (30) 
days from receipt of invoice.. 

vii All ,paymnt's shdll be made to OTS thrugh. Cross Cheue in PKR. 

7. ARTICLE .7: ADDITIONAL SERVICES 

CPPAG may ask OTS' to perform Additional Servic.e during th.e 
currency of This Agreement Such Additional Services shall be 
performed with the p.riot .cohcUrrncé af both tfe Parties. OTS' Shall 
submit an estimate o.f the additional time (if any) and the ddifional 
remunerations for such Additional Services which shall be approved in 
writing by the' CPPA-G before the cóm,tn'encerne:nt ot th Addifion.dl 
Services. 



8., ARTICLE'8: TERMINATION 
8.],. End of Services 

Th'eAgreement'.sh'all terminate when, pursu'dnf to 'Tha provisionS hreOt, 
the contrdct duration have been completed and the ahien;t of 
reniunerations"have been made: with 'format notification; and can be 
exfe'ndab1e1 if reuired and 'mutually agreed by both parties. 

8.2. termination by me mner rarly: 
CPPA-G may, by'q writteh notice of'thirty (.30) days to OTS,. terminate 
this .Agrement. All accounts between the CPPA-G and the 015 shall 
be settled not later thdn Thirty (30) dPys  of the. date o such 
termination.. 0T may terminate, this Agreeine.nt by giving thirty ,3O 
days advance notice of termination of this agre.enent. HoweVer, 015 
is bound to handover complete data of all recruitment projects to 
CPPA-G and complete alt pending' assignments. 

9. ARTICLE 9: FORCE MAJEURE 

The term 'Force Majeure' as employed herein, shall moan acts of God, 
strikes, lock-out or any other events, not within the control cf eithet 
F'qtfy'and which by the exercise of due diligence neitherP.arty is qble 
to' overcome.. If either Party is temporarily unable by reason of Force 
MajeUre 'or th'o laws or regufatiops of' Pakistan to meet any of its 
obIiatio'hs under the Agreement, and if such Party gives to the other 
Farty. written notie, of the eVCnt'With'fi'tt'éep (15) days  after it 
o'cO'u'rreñce, 'uch .obligations:df the Party aS'it iSd'hdbl' to rforrn.by 
reason of "the event, holl' be suspended 'for as. long asI the, in.obilif 
con1inues Neither Party shall be Ii ble to th,e other Pdrt'y for loss or 
damag.esustained by such othzer Party arising from any event'referrd 
to. as Force Majeure or delays alising from such event. Force Mojeyre 
shall not indude insufficieney"ot'tu,nds  or fiture To make any:payment 
required under the Agreement. 

10. ARTICLE TO: BLACKLISTIN 

If OTS delays in performance of any of t'he obligations, under this 
Agreemeht; vi'olates'any of 'the provisions' of the Agree menf,'commits 
reaOh of any of the terms arid conditions of the Agreement, 

th CPPA-G may, at arty time, 'without prejudice to 'any other right of 
action / remedy It may have blacklist the OTS either indefinitely or 
for 'a stated period,, for future Tenders in public sector. If the QT,S' i.s 
found to have engaged in' corrupt or''fraudulenf practices in 
competing for the award of contract, during procurement processor 
dUring the execution of' thi Agreement, CPPA may, 'at any time, 
without prejudice to any.ofher right of a' ction / remedy it may have, 
blacklist th OTS; either i'nd.efi'i'iitely or 'for 'a', stated period', for 'future 
Tetide ,in public $eOtor. 

11. ARTICLf 11: RESOLUTION O DISPUTES 
In case of any dispute or conflict arising out of this Agreement the 
Parties agree firt' to t,iy in gdod faith to set tie the dispute bi ref err"ng 
tne matter to mediation Vi case the Parties fail to resolve the matter 
through mediati'oh within '1 5-days from the reference Of the matter, 
either party may refer the matter to Arbitrator within 07-days of failure 
of mediation. The place of arbitration shall, be lsiam'cbad. The 
arbitration proceedings shall. be  governed by the Arbitration Act, 
1940,. as amended, and the rules made th,e'rCunder. Thé.aWard of th 
Arbitrator shall be. final. 



12. ARTICLE 12: APPLICABLE LAWS 
This Agreement shall, in all respects, be read and construed and shall 
operate in conformity with the laws of Pakistan and the courts at 
Islamabod shall have exclusive jurisdiction for adjudicating and 
interpreting the Agreement. 

13. ARTICLE 13: CONTRACT AMENDMENT 
No variation in or moairicaiions toihelemis ufth Agit sht-
be made, except by a written amendment signed by the Parties 
hereto. 

14. ARTICLE 14: NOTICES 
Any notice given by any of the Parties hereto shall be sufficient only 
if in writing and delivered in person or through registered mail os 
follows: 

To: The CPPA-G 
Central Power Purchasinci Aciency (Guarantee)  
Limited, (CPPA-G) , Shaheen Plaza, A.K Fazi e Haci  
Road, Blue Area, Islamobad.  

To: The Recruitment Firm (Testing Agency) 

Open Testina Service (Private) Limited Office # 1,  
Central Avenue, Bohrio Town, Phase 6, IsIamabad.  

or to such other qddress as either of these Parties shall designate by notice given 
as required herein. Notices shall be effective when delivered. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed this Agreement, in two (2) 
identical counterparts, each of which shall be deemed as original, as of the day, 
month and year first above written. 

FOR AND LF OF CPPA-G FOR AND ON BEHALF OF OTS 

ihed by: Signed by: 
-' Mr. Rehan Hameed Mr. Muhdmmad Fcihim Khan 

Designation: Chief (HR&A) Officer 

(Seal) CPPA 

FOCAL PERSON CPPA-G 
Rida J.vai. - Deputy ManqeHR 

Ali Raze - Assistant Mana5Tër  TA  

Designation: Director Projects 

(Seal) .. 

FOCAL PERSON M/s OTS 
Mr. Muhammad Mateen 
Manager Projects 

Fayyaz Ahmed - Assistant Mr 
Projects, 

Witness: 
Signatures:  
Na me:  
Designation:  in'-&. W&.  

Witness: 
Signatures:  
Name:  r*i4? J--- 
Designation: S1J'T  
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